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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH
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603-271-9544 1-800-052-3345 Ext. 9544

Fax: 603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 H^vw.<lhlis.ah.gov

September 26, 2022

7

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to enter into a Retroactive, Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with the Contractor
listed below in bold for Recovery Housing Services and Supports for individuals with Opioid
and/or Stimulant Use Disorder, by increasing the total price limitation by $170,000 from
$1,258,045 to $1,428,045 and by extending the completion date from September 29, 2022 to
September 29, 2023. effective retroactive to September 29. 2022 upon Governor and Council
approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The individual contracts were approved by Governor and Council as specified in the table
below.

Contractor

Name

Vendor

Code

Area Served Current

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

G&C Approval

FIT/NHNH

Inc.

157730-

B001
Manchester $530,119 $170,000 $700,119

O: 6/19/19#29B

A1:1/22/21 #20

A2:10/13/21 #36

Hope on
Haven Hill,

Inc.

275119-

B001
Rochester $265,904 $0 $265,904

0: 6/19/19 #29B

A1:1/22/21 #20

A2: 10/13/21 #36

Homestead

Inn 1765, LLC
312235-

8001
Boscawen $362,022 $0 $362,022

0:10/23/19 #18

A1:1/22/21 #20

A2: 10/13/21 #36

Dismas Home

of New

Hampshire

290061-

8001
Manchester $100,000 $0 $100,000 O: 6/19/19 #29B

Totals: $1,258,045 $170,000 $1,428,045

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2023, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2024, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
If needed and justified.



His Excellency. G<^mof Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Cour>cP
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See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION.

This request Is Retroactive because the Department was notified by the Federal awarding
agency September 23, 2022 of the availability of funding beyond the current contract completion
date of September 29, 2022. Due to the delayed notification from the Federal awarding agency,
the Department was unable to present this request to the Governor and Council prior to the
contract expiration date. This request Is Sole Source because the Department is seeking to
extend the contract, beyond the completion date, with no renewal option available. The
Department was unable to re-procure for these services due to the limited timeframe between the
funding notification from the Federal awarding agency and the contract expiration'date. Any
delays or gaps In service provision may result in reduced or loss of access to services and
supports for individuals in need of these critical services.

The purpose of this request is to continue to provide Recovery Housing services and
supports to women with Opioid and/or Stimulant Use Disorder who need safe, stable, substance-
free housing to pursue recovery and transition to independent living. This request also adds
language clarifying coordination with other SOR vendors to improve the Government
Performance and Results Act (GPRA) data collection efforts. The Department supports the
development ofirecovery housing options, which include specialty populations who have complex
needs and/or gender-specific housing.

Approximately 15 individuals will be served from September 30, 2022 to September 29,
2023. The current range of time when residents utilize this specific housing is 10 to 18 months.

The Department will continue to monitor services through the review of data reports,
periodic surveys, and other data as requested by the Department. The Department will work with
community partners and other state agencies to collect data on the effectiveness of the services
for longer-term recovery, employment, and housing stability.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, these critical
services and supports would not be available to women with Opioid and/or Stimulant Use
Disorder. This could impede their recovery journey, increase the potential for future substance
misuse, and add to the burden on the health care system.

Source of Federal Fur>ds: Assistance Listing Number #93.788, FAIN #H79TI081685,
#H79TI083326,.and FAIN #H79TI085759.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner

Th€ Deparlmtnt of Htalth and Human Services'Mission is to join communities and families
in prooidingoppor'tunities for citieens to achieve health and independence.



DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

05-95.92.920510-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT.

HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SERVICES. SOR GRANT

100% Foderal Funds

(Vendor Name FIT/NHNH, Inc. Vendor# 157730

State Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount
Irtaease

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057040 $2,970.00 $0.00 $2,970.00

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057040 $127,555.00 $0.00 $127,555.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057040 $32,633.00 $0.00 $32,633.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057046 $36,799.00 $0.00 $36,799.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057048 $108,000.00 $0.00 $108,000.00

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057048 $54,000.00 $0.00 $54,000.00

2022 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Rel 92057048 $126,121.00 $0.00 $126,121.00

2023 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Rel 92057048 $42,041.00 $0.00 $42,041.00

2023 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Rel 92057056 $0.00 $127,500.00 $127,500.00

2024 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Rel 92057048 $0.00 $42,500.00 $42,500.00

Sub Total $530,119.00 $170,000.00 $700,119.00

(Vendor Name Hope on Haven Hill Vendor# 275119

State Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount Increase Revised Amount

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057040 $35,332.00 50.00 $35,332.00

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057040 $60,442.00 $0.00 $60,442.00
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057040 $26,970.00 $0.00 $26,970.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057046 $14,356.00 $0.00 $14,356.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057048 $42,133.00 $0.00 $42,133.00

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057048 $21,067.00 $0.00 $21,067.00

2022 074-500585 Grants tor Pub Asst and Rel 92057048 $49,203.00 $0.00 $49,203.00

2023 074-500585 Grants tor Pub Asst and Rel 92057048 $16,401.00 $0.00 $16,401.00

Sub Total 5265.904.00 $0.00 $265,904.00

(Vendor Name Homestead Inn 1765, LLC Vendor #312235

State Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount
Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Sennces 92057040 $85,500.00 $0.00 $85,500.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Sen/ices 92057040 $22,878.00 $0.00 $22,878.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057046 $25,411.00 $0.00 $25,411.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057048 $74,666.00 $0.00 $74,666.00

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057048 $37,333.00 $0.00 $37,333.00

2022 074-500585 Giants for Pub Asst and Rel 92057048 $87,176.00 $0.00 $87,176.00

2023 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Rel 92057048 $29,058.00 $0.00 $29,058.00

Sub Total $362,022.00 $0.00 $362,022.00

iVendorName Dismas Home of New Hampshire Verrdor# 290061

State Fiscal Year Class 1 Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount
Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

. 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057040 $38,567.00 $0.00 $38,567.00

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057040 $49,146.00 $0.00 $49,146.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057040 $12,287.00 $0.00 $12,287.00

Sub Total $100,000.00 $0.00 $100,000.00

Overall Total $1.258;045.00 $170,000.00 $1,428,045.00

Governor and Council Letter Attachment

Financial Detail
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DocuSlgn Envelope ID: DAE2B5CC-C467-4BDE-8F46-3B3593D03F8C

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3

This Amendment to the Recovery Housing Services and Supports for Individuals with Opioid Use Disorder
contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Heaith and Human Services
("State" or "Department") and Fil/NHNH, inc. ("the Contractor"). ^
WHEREAS pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 19, 2019 (Item #29B), as amended on January 22, 2021 (Item #20), and most recently amended
on October'l3 2021 (Item #36). the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions'specified In the Contract as amended and In consideration of certain sums specified; and
WHEREAS pursuant to Form P-37. Genera! Provisions, Paragraph .18, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, and
modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows: ^

1  Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:
September 29, 2023

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read;
$700,119

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read.
Robert W. Moore, Director. ■

4. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 6. State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards,
by adding subsection 6.14. to read:

6 14 The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department and other SOR funded Contractors, as
requested and directed by the Department, to improve the Government Performance and
Results Act (GPRA) data collection.

5. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, to
read:

1  This Agreement is funded by 100% Federal funds from the State Opioid Response Grant, as
awarded on 09/30/2018, by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services. Substance
Abuse and Mental Heaith Services Administration, CFDA #93.788, FAIN H79Ti081685, and
as awarded on 09/30/2020, by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance
Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, CFDA #93.788, FAIN H79TI083326, and
as awarded on 08/09/2021,, by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance
Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, CFDA #93.788, FAIN H79TI083326,
CFDA#93.788, FAIN TBD.

6. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section'2, to
read:

2  Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line items, as
specified in Exhibit B-1 Budget through Exhibit B-10 Budget - Amendment #3, SOR III.

7 Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 4
Subsection 4.1, Paragraph 4.1.3 Invoices supporting expenses reported, Subparagra^4.1.3.1

■ 1^!?
RT/NHNH.Inc. A-S-1.3 , Contractorlnitials
RFA-2019-BDAS-02-RECOV-02-A03 Page 1 of 4 Dale



DocuSign Envelope ID: DAE2B5CC-C467-48DE-8F48-3B3593D03F8C

Unallovyable expenses include, but are not limited to:, Part 4.1.3.1.4, to read: .

•  4.1.3.1.4. Fopdorwker.

8. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 4,
Subsection 4.1, Paragraph.4.1.3. Invoices supporting expenses reported, Subparagraph 4.1.3.1.
Unallowable expenses include, but are not limited to:, Part 4.1.3.1.7, to read:

4.1.3.1.7. RESERVED

9. Add Exhibit 8-9 Budget - Amendment #3, SOR III, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

10. Add Exhibit .B-10 Budget-Amendment #3. SOR III. which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein. i .

(5;
FIT/NHNH, Inc. ^ A-S-1.3 Conlractor Initials

107477(777
RFA-2019-BDAS-02-RECOV-02-A03 Page 2 of 4 • Date



DocuSlgn Envelope ID; DAE2B5CC-C467-4BDE-8F48r3B3593D03F8C

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective retroactive to September 29, 2022, upon
Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Sen/ices

10/4/2022

Date

•DocuStgrwd by:

E d900SB04CC3442...

Name:'^^^^^
Title: Director

10/4/2022

Date

FIT/NHNH, Inc.
DocuSlgnvd by:

^■<Hi7ap7<EmgName: Man a Dev. nn

Title. President & CEO

FIT/NHNH. Inc.

RFA-2019-BDAS-02-RECOV-02-A03

A-S-1.2

Page 3 of 4



DocuSign Envelope ID: DAE2B5CC-C467-4BDE-8F48-3B3593D03F8C

The preceding Amendment, haying been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and-
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

DocySlgmd by:

a.10/4/2022 ^

Date • Name:'^obyn Guarino -

Attorney•  ■ Title:

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendmerit was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of rrieeting) .

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

FIT/NHNH, Inc. A-S-1.2

RFA-2019-BDAS-02-RECOV-02-A03 Page 4 of 4



OoeuSJgn EtrMhp* tD; DAE2e5CC-C467U8Oe-8F4M83593O03FeC

BT-I.O Exhibit B-9 Budget • Amendment K, SOR i RFA-2019-BDAS-02-A03

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Complete one budget form for each budget period.

Contractor Name;

FIT/NHNH, Inc.

Budget Request for:
Recovery Housing Srvcs. & Supports for IndMduals with OUD

Budget Period SFV23-(September 29, 2022-June 30, 2023)

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable)9.10%

1  ' :i . tiHTO iterfij i ™
^  -Rfbgram'Costy
' Funded'by DHHSj

; ContractohShVre//
^  Match!.

^ TjOTAL'.R7,bgyamj
i  ■ costi • .j

$21,150 $0 $21,150

1. Salary & Wages

2. Fringe Benefits $3,100 $0 $3,100

3. Consultants $0 $0 $0

4. Equipment '  $0 $0 $0

S.fai SuDOlies • Educational $0 $0 $0

S.fb) SuDolies • Lab $0 $0 $0

fi frt Siinolles - Pharmacy $0 $0 $0

f^M) Supplies-Medical $0 $0 $0

S (ft) SuDDlles Office $0 $0 $0

6. Travel $0 $0 $0

7. Software - $0 •  $0 ■  $0

ft (a) Other - Marketinq/Communlcations $0 $0 $0

ft fbi Other - Education and Training SO ' $0 $0

ft. (c) Other - Other (please specify)
Other to/ease spec/M Occuparjcy i $91,660 $750 $92,410

Other (please spedM $0 $0 $0

nthfr /nlf*av> .^iwrifv) $0 $0 $0

Other (please spedM ' $0 $0 ■ $0

9. Sut>contracts $0 $0 $0

Total Direct Costs $115,910 $750 $116,660

Total Indirect Costs $11,590 $0 $11,590

TOTAL $127,500 .$750 $128,250

Page 2 of 2

Contractor Initials

Date
10/4/2022



OocuSign Envtlopt ID; OAE2B£CC-C467-4BOE-eF4fr<)8U»O03F8C

BT-1.0. Exhibit B-10 Budget • Amendment #3. SOR i RFA-2019-BOAS-024%ECOV<I2-A03

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Complete one budget form'for each budget period.

Contractor Name;

FIT/NHNH, Inc. ■

Recovery Housing Srvcs. & Supports for Individuals with OUD

Budget Request for: - ^ ;
Budget Period SFY'24 - fJu//f, 2023 ■; September 29, 2023)

Indirect Cost Rate (If applicable) 9.90% , . , ■ .

i

5-' i
Ul.TOiltemj f ^^ramiCpsT':' '  'Bn^ram'Cpst.:' '•

j CpjitracjpxSJiar.e/j
f  . . MatcHf

fdjAf^rBr.^r'a'ffli <
iCbsiv"

$7,050
1 ■ Salary & Wages

$0 $7,050

2. - Fringe Benefits $1,060 $0 $1,060

3. Consultants $0 $0 $0

4. Equipment' .$0 $0

5.(a) Supplies - Educational $0 $0
5.(b) Supplies-Lab $0 $0

_$0
_$0
$0

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0 $0
5.(d) Supplies-Medical $0 •$0
S.(e) Supplies Office $0 $0

6.. Travel $0 $0 $0

7. • Software SO $0 $0

8. (a) Other - Mafketing/Comrriunlcatldns $0 $0 $0
8. (b) Other • Education and Training $0 $0 $0
6. (c) Otfier - Other (please specify)

Otfier/p/ease"spec//y)' Occupancy $30,553 $250 $30.803
Other (please specify) $0 $0 $0

' Other (please specify) SO SO $0
Other (please specify). $0 $0 $0

9. Subcontracts $0 $0 $0

Total Direct Costs $38,663 $250 $38,913

Total Indirect Costs ^ $3,837 .  $0 $3,837

TOTAL $42,500 $250 . $42,750

Page 2 of 2

Contractor Initials

/  10/4/2022
Date



DocuSign Envelope ID: DAE2B5CC-C467-4BDE-8F48-3B3593D03F8C

State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTEFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary ofSlateofthe State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that FAMILIES IN TRANSITION is
oNew Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on May 13, 1994.1 further certify that

ell fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's ofHcc have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned.

Business ID: 207982

Certificate Number: 0005779491

5^

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 18th day of May A.D. 2022.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State



DocuSign Envelope ID: DAE2B5CC-C467-4BDE-8F48-3B3593D03F8C
•  f •

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

'• — Roy Tjlslgy ^ ^ • , hereby certify that
(Name of the elated Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly .elected ClerWSecretary/Officer of Families In Transition . ,
(Corporation/LLC Name) ^ ^

2. The fbliowng is a tnje of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholdere, duly called and
—{^0*' — which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders vrere present and voting,

VOTED.: Th^ Maria D^lin. President/CEO (may list more than one person)
(Name and Titie of Contract Signatory)

Is duly author^^ oh behalf of Farhili^ in Transition to enter into contracts or agreements vwth the State
(Narrie of Corporation/LLC) •

of New Hampshire and any" of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and ;a|l
docuitients,-agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modificatioris thereto, which
may In his/her judgrneht be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote. . ' .

3. I herebyMrtify th^ said vote has hot iDeeh amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of [the contract/cohtract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remalhs valid for
^Irty .(30) days'from" the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Harhpshire,.will Tely;dri .this :^ evidence that the person(s) listed al>ove cunrentjy occupy (he •
positibn(s) "indi.cated .ahd that they.h^e fulhauthority to bind theJioFporatfen. To the extent that there are any. "
limits oh the authority of ariy liisted Iridividual to bind the corpoi2tl6nin contracts withJbe-Stat5]0r>New Hampshire
all such ilmltatidns are expressly-stated herein.

Dated

Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Roy tilsley
Title: Board of Director, Chair

Rev. 03/24/20



ACORcf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DOTYYYYl

.  08/09/2022

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT; If the cerliflcato holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcylies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subjact to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this cortlfiCBte does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsomentls).

PROOUCCR

MTM Insurance Associates

1320 Oogood Street

NorthAndover MA 01645

N?MF* Jefrey MoriisseWe
(970)681-5700 (976)681-5777

A^RFSS' ceftiflcoles@mtmlnsure.com
MSURERtS) AFFORDING COVCRAOE NAICF

INSURER A: Phladolphla Insurance Company,

INSUREO

Families In Transition. Inc and FIT/NHNH

Family Willows Limited Partnership
122 Market Streel

Manchester NH 03101

INSURER 0 ■ State Healthcare

INSURER C:

INSURER 0:

INSURER E;

INSURER F !

COVERAGES ' CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 22-23 REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAIO'CIAIMS.

LTR TYPE OP INSURANCE
TOIDU

ma.

isonR
WVD POLICY NUMBER

WLievei-v
(uumoirrro IMWDDffYYY)

X COHMERCUL GENERAL UABUJTY

X

CLAWS-MAOe I OCCUR

Professional LiaUlity inci

EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMACE TOHtLNTtD
PREMISES (Ea oecuf7ti>e»

PHPK236507 01/01/2022 01/01/2023

MED EXP lAny 0»b pwon)

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

GENLAOCREOATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

□POICY
PRO
JECT LOC

GENERAL AGGREGATE

OTHER:

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGO

AUTOMOBILE UABILITY

ANYAUTO

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
IE« aectJcntI
BODILY INJURY (Pw ptnon)

OYMED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY X

SCHEDULED '
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

PHPK2363512 01/01/2022 01/01/2023 BODILY INJURY (P«r tcdftonl)

PROPERTY OAHAOE
(Per acddenO

1,000.000

100,000

6,000

1,000,000

3,000,000

3,000,000

1,000,000

X UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LtAD

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE 5,000,000

PHUB796016 01/01/2022 01/01/2023 AGGREGATE 5,000,000

OED X RETENT»0N$1£:°?®
WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABIUTY

ANY PROPRCTORffVSRTNER/EXECLmVE
OPFlCERAtEMBER EXCLU06D7
(Mwidslory In NH)
IfvM, tfnciba undw
DESCRlPnON OF OPERATIONS bolow

X PER
8TATUTE

OTH
ER

0 HCHS20220000SSS 01/01/2022 01/01/2023 E.L. EACHACCI06NT

E.l. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

e.L. DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT

Crime Coverage / Employee Dishonesty PHPK236507 01/01/2022 01/01/2023

Limit

Deductible

1,000,000

1,000,000

1,000,000

500,000

500

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS ILOCATIOHS / VEHICLES (ACORD101, AddlUonil RtmAiIci 8ch»<>ul«, imy b* •ttaehod U raof# ipiM It rwjulftd)

This certificate of insurance repmsenls coverage currently In effect and may or may not be in compliance with any written contract.

Stale of Now Hampshire Oopartmont of Health

and Human Services

' 129 Pleasant Strool

Concord . NH 03301
1  ̂ ^

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTK0Rt7.CD REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25(2016/03) The ACORD name and logo arc rogistorad marks of ACORD
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BerryDunn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors r ' .

Families In Transition, Inc. and Subsidiaries ^ ,

Opinion ' .

We have audited the" accompanying consolidated financial statement of Families In Transition, Inc..
and Subsidiaries (the Organization), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
of December 31, 2021 and the related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses and
dash flows for the year then ended,;and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements^

In our opinion, the'cbrisolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects,"th'e cdhsblidated financial ppsition of .the Organization as of December 31,-2021, and the
charigeslri'their ephsdiidated net'assets and their-cohsolidated cash flows for the year then ended jn
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. ^ ■

Basis for Opinion ■ f

We xonducted . dufvaudit •In:.accordance -with U.S.-_ generally, accepted^ auditingJstandards. Our
responsibilities .under those standards are further described in the AuditoPs Responsibilities for the
Audit'of, the. Consplidated Financial Statements section of our.report. We are required to be
indepe.ndentpf.the iQrganizatibn arid to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with^the
relevant ethical requirerrients relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we haye obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opiriion.

Responsibilities of, Management for the.Cpnsolldatep Financial Statements .

Management is responsible for'the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with U.S. gerierally accepted accounting principles,'and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free-from matefjaL rhisstatement, w.hether due to fraud or
error. . ' . >

In. preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there
are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,'that raise substantial doubt about the
Organization's ability, to cphtinue as., a, going concern within one year after the .date that the
consolidated financial statem"ents are available to be issued.

Moine • New Hampshire • Massachusetts • Connecticut • West Virginia • Arizona

berrydunn.com



DoouSign Envelope ID: DAE2B5CC-C467-4BDE-8F48-3B3593D03F8C

Board of Directors
Families in Transition, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Page 2 -

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors
reoort that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted In accordance with U S. generally
accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the overnde of
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based
on the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards, we.

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures-responsive to those
risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. ,

•  Obtain an understanding of Internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
-■ procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control. Accordingly, no-such opinion
is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by rnanagement. as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the Organization's ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time. ,

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited the Organization's 2020 consolidated financial statements and. in our
report dated March 29. 2021, expressed an unmodified opinion on those audited consolidated financial
statements In our opiriion. the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the
year ended December 31. 2020 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited consolidated
financial statements from which it has been derived.
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Board of Directors

Families In Transition, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Page 3

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a "whole, the accompanying supplementary Information, which consists of the
consolidating statement of financial position as of December 31, 2021, and the related consolidating
statements of activities and functional expenses for the year then ended. Is presented for purposes of
additional analysis, rather than to present the financial position and changes in net assets of the
Individual entities,-^and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such Information
ls;the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to.'.,the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The Information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of. the consolidated financial
statements and certain additional -procedures. Including comparing and reconciling such-mformation
directly to the underlying accpuntirig and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial
statements of.to the'C'onsolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures In
accordance vyith.U.S: generally accepted auditing standards. In' our opinion, the Information, Is fairly
stated ih'all material respects in relatlori to the consolidated financial statemerits as a whole.

Manchester, New Hampshire
March 23.'-2022
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FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2021

(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2020)

2021 2020

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Grants and contributions receivable
Prepaid expenses
Other currentassets

Total current assets

Replacement reserves
Reserve cash designated for properties
Investments

Investment in related entity

Property and equipment, net
Development in process
Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities
Current portion of long-term debt
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Other current liabilities

^  Total current liabilities

Long-term debt, net of current portion and unamortized deferred costs

Totalliabiiities.

Net assets

Without donor restrictions - controlling interest .
Without donor restrictions - noncontrolling interest

Total without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

'  Total liabilities and net assets

2,533,606 $ 3,536.208

54.462 67,946
779,471 1,691,498

148,305 87,753

52.054 60.946

3.567:898 5.444.351

543,800 512,271

787,044 847,300

2,704,576 1,235,007

1,000 1,000

33,326,635 34,425,916

416,959 218,835
. 30.638

,  41.347.912 $ 42.715.318

;  300,631 $ 345,909

299,996 889,234

281,146 264,583

80.526 134.693

962,299 1,634,419

15.046.178 15.173.778

16.008.477 16.808.197

22,097,454 22,831,326

2.015.189 2.344.795

24,112,643 25,176,121

1.226.792 731.000

25.339.435 25.907.121

$  41.347.912 $ 42.715.318

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

-4-
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FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Activities

Year End^ December 31, 2021
(With Cpmparatiye Totals for the Year-Ended December 31, 2020)

Revenue and su^ort.
Federal, state and oOier grant support
Coronavtrus Aid. Relief and Economic Security (CARES) Act-

grants

.Rental Income, net of vacancies
Thrift store sales

'Public support -
, Special events

:./>0eveloperfee8,
j Unrealteed gain on investments
Loss on'disposal of property and equipment

'Interest income

'  ' In-kind donations

Forgiveness of debt
Medicaid reimbursements
Other income

- Net assets.released from restrictions

Total revenue and support

Expenses

Program activities
Housing
Thrift store

-  - Total program activities
Fundraisirtg
Management and gerteral

Total expenses • .

(Deficiency) excess of revenue' and support over
expenses

Capital contn'butions
Partnership distributions

Change in net assets before redassirication of portion
attributable to noncontrollir>g interest in
subsidiaries '

Chartge in net assets attributable to noncontroHing interest in
subsidiaries

Change In net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

329.298

(733.872)

22.831.326

(329.298)

■  (329.606)

2.344795,

(1.063.478)

25.176.121

495.792

731.000

Without Donor Restrictions Without Doinor Restrictioris Total Without Donor With Donor Total Total

-ControllinQinterest - Noncontrdlliria Interest Restrictions. Restrictions 2021 2020

$  2.874.142 $. . - $ 2.874.142 8 1.082.148 8. 3,956,290 8 4,932.560

1.670.287 1.670.287 . 1,670;287 4.183.652
2,383.369 2.383.369 - 2,383,369 2.492.880
592.005 592.005. - 592,005 410.942

2.500.288 V  - - 2.500.288 - 2,500,288 2.952.466
342.619 342,619 ^ - 342,619 420.547

- - - . 121.670
234.310 234;310 . 234,310 103.827
(267,413) (267.413) . (287,413) (1.362)
.  2.334 2.334 . - 2,334 23.045
42.933 . 42.933 - • . 42,933 9.244
131.267 131.267 - 131,267 131.287

• 415.708 '  - 415.708 . 415,708 468,990
147.748 147.748 . 147,748 201.865
586.356 586.356 (586.356) . .

11.655.953 11.655.953 495.792 12.151.745 16.471 593

10,274.521 10.274.521 10,274,521 10.277.005
412.054 412.054 . 412.054 415.817

10.686.575 '  - 10.686.575 10,686,575 10.692.822
809.441 809.441 . 809,441 1,074.295

1.226 858 1.226.858 . 1.226.858 1.186.537

12.722.874 12.722.874 .  ■ 12.722.874 12,953.654

(1.066.921) (1.066,921) - 495.792' (571,129) 3.517.939

3.751 3.751 . 3,751 •  24.438
- (308) (308) . (308) (1.410)

(1.063.170) (308) -.(1.063.478) 495.792 (567,686) 3,540.967

22.097.454 -. $ 2.015.189 $ 24.112.643 $

(667.686)

26.907.121

.25,339.436 8

3.540.967

22766J54

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial staternents.

-  -5- ■
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FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses

Year Ended December 31, 2021

Program Activities

Housing Thrift Store Fundraisino

Salaries and benefits
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Payroll taxes

Total salaries and
benefits

Other expenses
Advertising
Bad debts

Bank charges
Condominium association fees
Consultants

COVID expenses
Depreciation
Events

Food
General insurance

Interest expense

Management fees
Meals and entertainment
Membership dues
Office supplies
Operational expenses - other
Participant expenses
Postage
Printing
Professional fees

Rental subsidies'

Repairs and maintenance
Staff development
Taxes

Technology support .
Telephone
Travel

Utilities

VISTA program
Workers' compensation

Total expenses

$ 4,428,713
498,412
343.091

5,270.216

3,998
25,698
12,545

14,575
78,629
22,161

1,221,584
29,137

238,472

168,528
164,597
(1.604)
4,317
9,270

112,840
362,333
93,431
6,880
16,302

175,249
265,605
662,589
26,318

332,887
162,210
104,863
•28,865.
568,936

93.090

283,233
21,465
23.293

327,991

18,416
187

183

117

1,535
84

17,631

442,872
49,841
34.309

527.022

Management
and General

664,307
74,761
51.464

49,263
2,622

15,968
10,189

2,871
38,909

790,532

13.668 350 525

8,246 . 1,207 ~  1,811

3,988 7,842 11,763

2,216 3,324

3,404 , 93,661 140,492

2,318 11,537 17,306
17,786 26,679

432 648

873 1,309

9,451 10,553 15,829

17 688 1,033

818 1,442 2,164

4,000 14,010 21,014

•

3,933

23,953
15,284
4,306
58,363

12.695

S10.274.521 S 412.054 £ 809.441 $ 1.226.858

120)

2021 2020

Total Total

; 5,819,125 $ 6.156,201

544,479 650,333

4S2.1S7 433.083

6,915,761 7,239,617

18,541 36,363

25,698 63,594

23,809 22,092

14,575 15,515
102,222 144,209

27,701 428,144

1,459,141 1,382,232
29,137 74,371

238,472 156.813

199,689 180,501

209,062 238,399

(1,604) -

5,397 2,278

11,452 13,671

148,673 90,214

362,333 156.304

93,431 72,037

8,618 9.491

20,726 26,715

214,273 183,043

265,605 301,110

804,163 528:545

33,060 31,816

333,070 340,333

202,248 191,943

131,871 148,667

36,126 28,318

683,839 617,912
. 79,431

105.785 149.976

£12.722.874 S12.953.654

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
■  -6- ■
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FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31, 2021
(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended Decenfiber-31, 2020)

Cash flows from operating activities ^
. Change in net asse^ ,
Adjustrhents to reconcile change in net assets to net cash provided by

operating activities, ■ ' '
Depreciation and amortization v
Forgiveness.of debt ̂  '
Unrealized gain on investments
Loss on disposal of property and equipment
Decrease (increase) in:

Accounts receivable .

Grants and contributions receivable

Prepaid expenses
-  ; Other current assets

(Decrease) increase.in:
Accounts payable ; ' ■
Accrued expenses
Other.current liabilities

- Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of inyestrnents
Investment in development in process
Acquisition of propei^ and ̂ uipment ■ ,

Net cash'u'sed by investing activities'

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds frorh long-term debt
Payments ori lohg-temi debt ' ,

Net cash used by financing activities

Net (decrease) increase in cash and restricted cash

Cash and restricted cash, beginning of year

Cash and restricted cash, end of year

Composition of cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, end of year:
Cash and cash equivalents-
Replacement reserves
Reserve cash designated for properties

Supplemental disclosures:
Acquisition of property and equipment and development in process through

..accounts'payable

Acquisition of property and equipment through lpng-term borrowings from seller
Property and equipment transferred from development in process
Interest paid

2021 2020

;  (567,686) $ 3,540,967

1,472,485 1,395,576
(131,267) (131,267)
(234,310) (103,827)
267,413 1,362

13,484 (445)
912,027 (1,102,280)
(60,552) (22,241)
39,530 (1,579)

80,826 (46,887)
16,563 (107,455)

(54.1671 75.022

1.754.346 ■  3.496.946

(1.235,259) (7,767)
(450,004) •  (63,149)

(1.045.458) (2.227.481)

(2.730.721) 11  (2.298'397)

■ 265,091 •2,452
(320.045) (268.663)

(54.954) (266.211)

(1,031,329) 932,338

4.895.779 3.963.441

;  3.864.450 •$ 4.895.779

i  2,533;606 $ 3,536,208
543,800 512,271
787.044 847.300

;  3.864.450 ■$ 4.895.779

I  98.500 $ 768.564

$ 25.412
;  350.380 $ ^  . • 1

;  209.062 . $„ 238.399

The accompanying notes are ah Integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

-7-
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FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consplldated Financial Statements

December 31, 2021

(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2020)

Organization

Families in Transition, Inc. (FIT), an incorporated New Hampshire nonprofit,"!provides hunger relief,
emergency shelter, safe affordable housing and support services to individuals and families who are
homeless or in need in the State of New Hampshire. The programs and services offered provide
positive outcomes through the Incorporation of evidence based models and practices to meet Identified
needs and goals of those they serve and provide an integrated system of care to prevent
hbmelessness when possible and rapidly rehouse those who become homeless, including both the
chronically homeless and families with children.

FIT directly, owns'and operates housing programs in facilities located on Amherst Street, Spruce
Street, Lake Avenue and Douglas Street in Manchester, New Hampshire. Additional housing facilities
are owned and operated by two limited partnerships of which FIT, or one of its subsidiaries, is the sole
general partner. These limited partnerships include Family Bridge Limited Partnership (Family Bridge),
located on Second Street in Manchester, New Hampshire; and Family Willows 1_imited Partnership
(Family Willows), located on South Beech Street In Manchester, New Hampshire (collectively referred
to as the Limited Partnerships).

. During 2021, Family Bridge reached the reached the end of its initial 15-year low-income housing tax
credit compliance period. As a result, effective August 31, 2021, BCCC, Inc. and Boston Financial
Corporate Tax Credit Fund XXII, withdrew from the Partnership and transferred their ownership interest
to Housing Benefits, Inc. (Housing Benefits), a non-profit Community Development Housing
Organization, located in Manchester, New Hampshire/In January 2022, Second Street Family Mill,
Inc., the general partner, transferred its ownership interest in the Partnership to Housing Benefits. As a
result, all assets and liabilities of the Partnership will have been assumed by Housing Benefits,
dissolving.Family Bridge as a limited partnership.

FIT also owns and operates emergency shelters for homeless individuals in facilities located on
Manchester Street and Lake Ave In Manchester, New Hampshire. In 2020, FIT purchased an additional
property on Lake Ave in Manchester, New Hampshire where it will operate its food pantry formerly
located at the Manchester Street, Manchester, New Hampshire facility.

Housing Benefits,, a Community Development Housing Organization was created to identify and
develop new housing units and refurbish existing, units to meet the persistent need of combating
homelessness. Completed housing units are located on Concord Street, School & Third Street, Lowell
Street, Belmont Street, Market Street, Spruce Street and Hayward Street, in Manchester, New
Hampshire as well as additional housing facilities located on Central Avenue in Dover, New Hampshire
(Dover), and at Bicentennial Square in Concord, New Hampshire and an emergency shelter location in
Wolfeboro, New Hampshire.

HB-AH, LLC (HB-AH) vyas legally formed as a limited liability company organized under the laws of the
State of New Harhpshire, which is treated as a disregarded entity for federal income tax purposes. HB-
AH's purpose is to acquire, own, rent, operate and manage 23 residential apartments located in
Manchester, New Hampshire; HB-AH Is to operate exclusively to further the charitable purpose of
Housing Benefits, HB-AH's sole member.

-8-
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FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2021
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2020)

FIT was,the sole member of Manchester Emergency Housing, Inc. (MEH),,a New Hampshire nonprofit
corporatibri providing immediate shelter to homeless families in the Manchester, New Hampshire area.
During 2021, MEH legally dissolved and the prograrri was absorbed by FIT's operations. "

FIT also owns, 100% of Family Outfitters, LLC (Outfitters), a limited liability corporation.-Outfitters
operates an Independent thrift store in Manchester, New Hampshire with the sole purpose of
generating an alternate funding stream for FIT.' .

FIT is the sole member of The New Hampshire Coalition to End Homelessness (NHCEH), a statewide
entity, whose mission is to "eliminate the causes for homelessness through research, education and,
advocacy." - , * .

vyilsofi Street Condominium Association (the Association) was established for the purpose of
maintaihihg arid preserving ' a -five unit property located on Wilson Street in Manchester, New
Hampshire. FIT Is the majority owner of the Association. . . "' ^

FIT has several wholly-owned corporations which include Second Street Family Mill, Inc.^ (Family Mill),
and Big Shady Tree, Inc. (Big Shady Tree) (collectively referred to as the General Partriers), all of.
Which'',are":Nevi/ Hampshire corporations;'-T corporations represent the-.01% sole
general partners in the'Limited Partnerships,'wtlereby Family Mill is a general partner of Family Bridge
and Big Shady Tree is a general partner of Family VVillovys. .v ■

, j • . - • ' ,

FIT has begun the redevelopment of Its property located 'on 434 Union-Street in Manchester, New
Hampshire. The project" will create 11 units of permanent, supportive housing for those experiencing
homelessness. ' •

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

Since the General Partners have control of the Limited Partnerships, in accordance with Financial
■Abcounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 810-20-25.

-  Consolidation, the financial statemerits of the Limited Partnerships are required to be consolidated
.with these consolidated financial statements. The limited partners' ownership interest is reported in '
the consolidated statement of financial position as'noncontrolling interest.

the corisolidated financial statements include the net assets of FIT, the Limited Partnerships,
Housing Benefits, H^AH, Outfitters; NHCEH, the Association, and .the GeneraL Partners
(collectively referred to as the Organization). All significant inter-entity balances and transactions
are elirninated in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

-9-



DocuSign Envelope ID; DAE2B5CC-C467-4BDE-8F48-3B3593D03F8C

FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2021

(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2020)

I

Comparative Information

The consolidated financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative
Information in total, but not by net asset classifications. Such information does not include
sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles (U.S. GAAP). Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the
Organization's December 31, 2020 consolidated financial statements, from which the summarized
information was derived.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires'management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements.
Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in accordance with
U.S. GAAP, which require the Organization to report information regarding to their consolidated
financial position and activities according to the following net asset classifications:

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the
Organization. These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Organization's
management and the Board of Directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors and
grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by
actions of the Organization or by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in
nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity. Donor
restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions. When a
restriction expires, net assets are reclassified from net assets with donor restrictions to net
assets without donor restrictions in the consolidated statement of activities.

All contributions are considered to be available for general use unless specifically restricted by the
donor. Amounts received that are designated for future periods or restricted by the donor for
specific purposes are reported as support with donor restrictions that increases net.assets with
donor restrictions. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends
or purpose restriction is accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net
assets without donor restrictions and reported In the consolidated statement of activities as net
assets released from restrictions. The Organization records donor-restricted contributions whose
restrictions are met in the same reporting period as support without donor restrictions in the year of
the gift.

-10-
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FAMIUESIn TF^NSltlON, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
<  • . .

Notes to ConsolidatedTlnaricial Statements
•  I

1  . December 31,2021

(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2020)

The prgahiz'ation reports contributions of property or equipment as support without donor
restrictions, unless a donor places explicit restriction on its use. Contributions of cash or other

■ assets'.that .must be. used to acquire long-lived ' assets - are reported as support with dorior
restrictions and rdclassified to net assets without donor restrictions when the assets are acquired
and pfaced jn service.' , • •

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Organization considers ali highly liquid investments with an initial maturity'of three months or
less to be cash equivalents. The Organization maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts which, ,
ati,tirnes,^may'ex^^ federally jnsured- iirnits. Management reglila'rly monitors the financial
instit'utjons; tog&^^ atterhpts to-rriaintain the potential
fisk^S a mininiUm.^ The Organizatidn has-'hot experienced any losses iri-^'siich' accounts'and
managemerit believes it is not exposed to'ahy sighlficaht'risk-'on these accounts. ■

. Reserves are those depos/ts pf cash and cash equivalents not generally available for operating
costs, but restricted to particular uses including operating and replacement reserves for, rental
properties as well as certairi^other social services and programs..

f'W. Is' ''' V . ' .

. Property and Equipment v.', ^ ' ■

Property'and equipment are'recorded "at'cost or; if donated, at'estimated fair "market value at the
date of donation, less accurnulated depreciation!" The Organization's capitalization policy requires
the capitalization of capital expenditures greater than $1,000, while ordinary maintenance and
repairs are charged to eixpense. Depreciation is provided using the straight-line, method over the
estimated useful lives of the related assets. Assets not in service are hot depreciated. Fpllpwing is
a surhmai^W estimated useful lives by asset category: ■

Land improvements - 20 years ' ̂  j .
Buildings and improvements . , 3-40 years
Furniture and fixtures 3-10 years
Equipment 3-10 years

'Vehicles,; . 5 years

Rental Incorhe , . s ^

Rental revenue is recqgnized pro rata over each tenant's period of occupancy. A contract is
entered into'with a tenant and covers a period of twelve months. All rents are collected at the
beginning of each month and are nonrefundable. A tenant has an option to cancel a lease at any
time with a rriinirnum of 30 days' notice," at which time the Organization will prorate the final rent'
payment through a tenant's expected move-out date. '
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December 31, 2021

(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2020)

When a contract is entered into with a tenant, the Organization collects a security, deposit The
security deposits are maintained in separate cash accounts and a corresponding liability is
recognized. Upon termination of a tenant's contract, the Organization assesses the condition of
the unit being vacated. If it is determined a unit is vacated in a condition equivalent to when the
tenant occupied the unit. the security deposit is refunded to the tenant. If a unit is determined to be
vacated in a condition less than equivalent to when the tenant occupied the unit, the security
deposit is retained and recognized as revenue.

Volunteer Services

A number of voluriteers have donated their time to the Organization's various programs and
administrative services. The value of these services has not been included in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements since the volunteers' time does not meet criteria for recognition.
The estimated value of donated time for the years ended Decernber 31, 2021 and 2020 was
approximately $M0,000 and $410,000, respectively.

Functional Expense Allocation

The consolidated financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributable to
more than one program or supporting function. Therefore, these expenses require allocation on a
reasonable basis that is consistently applied. The expenses allocated include salaries and
benefits, depreciation and amortization, office and other expenses, which are allocated based on
direct payroll hours by functional cost centers.

. Change in Net Assets from Operations

The consolidated statements of activities include a measure of change in net assets from
operations. Changes in net assets which are excluded from,change in net assets from operations,
include capital contributions and partner distributions which are considered non-operating.

income Taxes

The Organization is a tax-exempt Section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi) public charity as described in Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (the Code) and is exempt from federal income taxes on
related income pursuant to Section 501(a) of the Code. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes
has been reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

The standards for accounting for uncertainty in income taxes require the Organization to report
any uncertain tax positions and to adjust its -consolidated financial statements for the impact
thereof As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Organization determined that it had no tax
positions that did not meefthe more-likely-than-not threshold of being sustained by the applicable
tax authority. The Organization files an informational return in the United States. This return is
generally subject to examination by the federal government for up to three years.
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,

■ No prpvisioh for taxes on Income Is made in the Limited Partnerships' financial statements since,
as partnerships, alLtaxable 'income and losses are allocated to the partners for Inclusion in their
respective tax returns.'■

" the Assoclatidh is-hot exempt from income,taxes; however, the Code categorizes any profits
,realized by the Association from its . memb'er activities as reductions of members' contributions
towards the>operation of the condominium property and not as taxable income of the Association
or.its members: Accordingly, no provision for income taxes has been made in these consolidated
financial statements.

' Subsequent Events

For purposes of the preparation of these consolidated, financial statements in conformity with U.S.
■. G;^R, tfje-Organization has considered transactions or events occurring through March 23, 2022,

Which ,was,'the date_ the' .cojisplidated financial statements were available, to'be .issued.
Management has not .evaluated' subsequent events^ after that date for inclusion in the consolidated

,  financial staternents. . ' . ' ' ' ' .

2. Availabllitv and LlauldiW of Financial Assets

■  As of D'ecember 31, 2021, the Organization :lias wofking .capital, excluding currenV assets'with
donor restrictions, ..of $.1,402,203 :and. average days (based on .normal expenditures) cash and .
cash equivalents .on hand of 43: ' , -v .

•Financial assets and liquidity resources available within one year for general expenditure, such as
operating expenses, scheduled principal payments on long-term debt, and capital acquisitions not
funded through replacement reserves or financed with debt, were as follows: '

2021 2020

" Financial assets: .
Cash ahd cash equivalents ■ , $ 2,533,606 $ 3,536;208
Acbqunts receivable ' 54,462 67,946
Grahts'and contributions receivable 779,471 1.69li498

'  Investments; . 2.704.576 l!235!o07 .
Total financial assets - 6,072,115 6,530,659

Donor-lmpOsed restrictions:
Restricted-funds f1.226.7921 f731.00Q1

Financial assets available at year end for
current use - $ 4.845.323 $ 5.799.659

The Organizatioh 'aiso has a line of credit available to meet shbrt-term'needs, as described in Note
6.
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The Organization has replacement reserves and cash reserves designated for properties as part
of its debt financing with New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority (NHHFA) which are only
available when approved by NHHFA. As a result, these replacement reserves and cash reserves
designated for properties are not considered available for general expenditure within the next year
and are not reflected in the amount above. The goal for the Organization is to maintain a balanced
budget while meeting the requirements of the various financing authorities.

3. Investments and Fair Value Measurement

The Organization reports investments in the consolidated statement of financial position at fair
value with any realized or unrealized gains and losses reported in the consolidated statement of
activities. Investments are exposed to various risks, including interest rate, market volatility and
credit risks. I ■ ,

U.S. GAAP establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the Inputs to valuation techniques
used, to measure fair value. Fair value is defined as the exchange price that would be received for
an asset or pai^ to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market
for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement
date. Fair value hierarchy requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and
minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. The three levels of inputs
used to measure fair value are;

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that
the entity has the ability to access as of the measurement date.

Level 2: Significant other observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices
for similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices In markets that are not active, and
other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data.

I

Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs that reflect an entity's own assumptions about the
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability.

Investments measured at fair value on a recurring basis are summarized below:

Level 1

2021 2020

Cash and cash equivalents $ 24,481 $
Equity mutual funds 123,584 776,600
Equity securities 1,791,812 53,820
Fixed income mutual funds 764.699 404.587 ,

$ 2.704.576 $ 1.235.007

The Organization had no assets measured using Level 2 or Level 3 inputs at December 31, 2021
and 2020.

-14-



DocuiSign Envelope ID: DAE205CC-C467-4BDE.8F48-3B3593DO3F8C "

F^ILIES IN TRANSITION. INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to'Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2021
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2020)

4. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following:

Land,

Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Furniture and fixtures .

.'Equipment
•'Vehicles

Less: accumulated depreciation

Property and equiprheht. net
' r" ■■ • ' ■' •

2021 2020

;  3,764,378 $  ■ 3,764,378
812,301 666,247

41,388,854' 41,923,542'
1,187,879 ✓

•'1;057,806
691,474 639,373
307.197 386.565

48,152,083 48,437,911
14.825.448 14.011.995

33.326:685 r $ 34:425.916

At December'31, 2p2l';-;;ahd ;202a\'the"'br -and;;$37,334,275,
.  respectively; • of • Jand, lahdj-imptoyeme^^^ "buildings , arid improvements' -for '-jijiepurpose -'of

■  .leasing to , individuals.. Accumulated depreciation on, the land ̂ improvements."^buildings and
lmproverhents„at December 31, 2021 and 2020 was $11,094,410 and $10,319,415, respectively.

•• • ■ J." '/■:i,

5. Development In Process

At December .31, 2021 and 2020, development in process consisted of various projects in process,
related to ali of the properties owned by the drgariization. ' ' '

6. Line of Credit

,  The. Organization has an unsecured line of credit agreement;' renewed annually, with-a financial
.  Institution in'the ampunt of $550,000. During the term of the agreement, the interest fate on any
outstanding principal balance shall be equal to the base rate, as defined by the financial institution,,
with a floor of 4%. There was no outstanding balance as of December 31, 2021 and 2020.
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7. . Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt consisted of the following:
2021 2020

A mortgage loan payable to NHHFA In monthly payments of $680.
Including interest at 1% and an escrow of $289. The loan is
collateralized by real estate located on Amherst Street,
Manchester, New Hampshire. The loan is due and payable in
full in January 2033. $ 42,847 $ 46,492

A note payable to NHHFA. The note is noninterest bearing and is
collateralized by real estate located on Amherst Street,
Manchester, New Hampshire. The note is due and payable
upon sale or refinancing of the property or in June 2042. 163,283 ■, 163,283 ,

A mortgage loan payable to St. Mary's Bank in monthly payments
of $883, including interest at 5% for five years. After five years,
the interest rate adjusts to match the then current Federal
Home Loan Bank of Boston 5-year, 20-year amortizing rate
plus 2.50%. The loan is collateralized by real estate on Spruce
Street, Manchester, New Hampshire and is due and payable In
full in May 20:k. ^ 97,682 103,048

A mortgage loan payable to TO Bank, N.A. in monthly payments of
$1,123, including Interest at 4.1%. The loan Is collateralized by
real estate at Beech Street, Manchester, New Hampshire. The
loan Is due and payable in full in November 2023. 23,994 36,401

A mojtgage loan payable to RBS Citizens Bank In monthly
payments of $2,126, Including Interest at 7.18%. The Ipan Is
collateralized by real estate on Douglas Street, Manchester,
New Hampshire. The loan Is due and payable In full In April
2024. 189,792 196.746

A mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
collateralized by Bicentennial property. Monthly payments of
$1,095 Include'Interest at 4.75% per annum until the principal
and Interest are fully paid with the final Iristallment due and
payable on May 1,2034. 120,869 128,086
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A noninterest bearing note payable by Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
collateralized by Bicentennial property and various financing
instruments. Annual payments of 60% of surplus cash are due.
The note is due and payable on May 28, 2034. This note is
nonrecourse. 84,456 84,456

A noninterest bearing note payable by Housing Benefits to NHHFA.
■  collateralized by Bicentennial property and. various financing

instruments. Annual payments'of 25®/o of surplus cash are due.
The note is due and ̂ payable on May 28, 2033. This note is
nonrecourse and is subordinate to the $84,456 note payable. 33j6,674 336,674

A noninterest bearing note payable by Housing Benefits to
Merrimack County, collaterOIized by Bicentennial property and
various, financing instruments. The note is due and payable in
full in Max 2033. . ^ 280,000. 260,000

A noninterest bearing note payable by Housing Benefits to. NHHFA,
collateralized by MiHyard II property and-various-financing :
instruments'. Annual payments of 26%:6f-surplus cash are due.

■ The note is'due and'-payable upOri sale or-re'finahcing of the • ' "
.^property or in May 2031.This note is hon'recourse.' • ' j '• 436,958 '445,068

A mortgage note payable- by Housing Benefits to NHHFA,-
collateralized by MiHyard II property. Monthly payments of
$1,729 include principal and interest at 3!5% per annum. The
final installment is due and payable on Septerriber l)"2032. . , 178,960 193,172

A note payable by Housing Benefits to the City Of Manchester, New
. Hampshire, collateralized by MiHyard II property and various
financing, instruments. A: payment .of Interest shall be rhade

•  annually no later than August 1 each year "based on 42:5% of
the net cash flow,' as defined. In any year where the Debt
Coverage - Ratio, as defined, exceeds 1.15 to 1, principal
payments shall be made no later than August 1 in an amount
that wiil result in a I.ISJo 1 Debt Coverage Ratio. All unpaid

'  amou.hts are due and payable in full on August 1, 2031. This
note Is nonrecourse. 212,938 ' 226,725

A noninterest bearing note, payable by Housing Benefits to the New •
Hampshire .Community Loan-Fund, Inc. (NHCLF), collateralized • /
by MiHyard l| property. Payment of principal is due and payable
.on December 31, 2031. This note is nonrecourse. 250,000 250,000
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A mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to the City of
Manchester Community Improvement Program, collateralized
by Mlllyard Families I real estate. The note is noninterest
bearing and Is due and payable in January 2027. 230,000 230,000

A second' mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to
Community Development Finance Authority (CDFA),
collateralized by Millyard Families I real estate. Monthly
payments of $1,121 include principal and interest at 2% per
annum. The final installment is due and payable on-June 15,
2022. 6,686 19,860

A mortgage note payable by Family Bridge to NHHFA,
collateralized by real estate and personal property. The note
bears no interest and is to be repaid from 50% of available
surplus cash annually with all remaining principal due on
August 30,2034. 850,000 850,000

A promissory note payable by Family Bridge to TO Bank, N.A.,
collateralized by real estate. Monthly payments of $3,019
include principal and interest at 4.33%. The note is payable in
full in November 27, 2023 and is guaranteed by FIT and Family
Mill. 375,832 396,436

A promissory note payable-by Family Bridge to the City of
Manchester, New Hampshire. The note is noninterest bearing
with annual payments of 50% of net cash flow payable by
October.1. The outstanding principal is due by October 1, 2034.
The note is collateralized by real estate and is nonrecourse. 600,000 600,000

A mortgage note payable by Family Willows to NHHFA,
collateralized by real estate and personal property. The note
bears no interest and Is to be repaid from 50% of available
surplus cash annually with all remaining principal due on July 9,
2037. 493,132 505,816

A note payable by Family Willows to the City of Manchester, New
Hampshire. The note is noninterest bearing and has an annual
payment of $9,091 payable on October! All outstanding
principal is due by October 2029. The note is collateralized by
real estate and is nonrecourse.- 63,635 72,726
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A note payable by Family Willows to RBS Citizens Bank,
collateralized by real, estate. Monthly payments of $1,922
Include principal and interest at 3.25%, based on the prime rate
capped at 6%. The note is payable in full on June 27, 2033 and
is guaranteed by FIT and Big Shady Tree. 221,623 235,835

A mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
collateralized by School & Third Street real estate and personal
property. Monthly payments of $2,683 include principal and
interest at 8% per annum. The note was paid off in 2021. ■ 9,544

A second mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to NHCLF,
collateralized by School & Third Street real estate and personal
property. The note bears no interest and monthly payments of
$2,775 will commence on April 15, 2021 and continue until
maturity in October 2039. 592,650 617,613

A mortgage ,note payable by Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
collateralized by Belmont Street real estate and personal
property. The noninterest bearing note requires annual
payments in amounts equal to 50% of surplus cash. The note is
payable in full by December 2040. 395,940 413,575

A mortgage note payable from Housing' Benefits to NHHFA,
collateralized by Lowell Street real estate and personal
property. The noninterest . bearing note requires annual
payments in amounts equal to 50% of surplus cash. The note is
payable in full in August 2040. 34,628 34,628

A second, noninterest bearing, mortgage note payable from
Housing Benefits to the City of Manchester, New Hampshire,
collateralized by Lowell Street real estate. Annual payments
equal to the greater of 25% of net cash flow, as defined, or
$4,000 commenced in October 2012 and continue until the
maturity date in June 2041. 152,121 156,022

A noninterest bearing promissory note payable from Housing
Benefits to NHHFA collateralized by a mortgage and security
agreement on Lowell Street real estate. The note is to be
forgiven 1/15th annually over the low-income housing tax credit
compliance period which ends in 2026, subject to compliance
with certain requirements. During 2021 and 2020,. $131,267
was, recognized as revenue and support in the consolidated
statement of activities. 590,696 721,963
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A mortgage note payable from Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
collateralized by Dover real estate and personal property. The
noninterest bearing note requires annual payments in amounts
equal to 50% of surplus cash. The note is payable in full by
June 2028. 216,148 -216,148

A noninterest bearing mortgage note payable to the City of
Manchester Community Improvement Program: collateralized
by real estate located at 393-395 Spruce Street. Annual
payments of the greater of 25% of net cash flow, as defined, or
$5,000 are due annually by October 1. The note is due in full by
October 1,2045. 562,808 567,808

A mortgage note payable to TD Bank, N.A., collateralized by real
estate located at 167 Lake Avenue and personal property
located at 161 South Beech Street, Unit 2. Monthly payments
of $2,137 include principal and interest at 4.35%. The note is
due in full by April 2024. 363,729 372,849

A vehicle loan payable in monthly payments of $472, including
Interest at 4.25%. The loan is due in March 2025 and is
collateralized by the related vehicle. 18,569 20,560

A vehicle loan payable in monthly payments of $308, including
interest at 4.75%. The loan Is due in October 2023 and is
collateralized by the related vehicle. 6,507. 9,791

A mortgage note payable to NHHFA, collateralized by the real
estate at Lake Avenue, Manchester, New Hampshire. The
noninterest bearing note requires annual payments in amounts
equal to 50% of surplus cash. The note is payable in full by
June 2045. 750,000 750,000

A mortgage note payable to TD Bank, N.A., collateralized by real
estate located at 641 Hayward Street, Manchester, New
Hampshire. Monthly payments of $991 include principal and
interest at 3.015%. The note is due in full by October 2025. 167,585 174,276

A mortgage note payable to Peoples United Bank, collateralized by
Hope House. Monthly payments of $2,283 include principal and
interest at 4.94%. The note is due in full by January 2027. 355,288 364,674
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A construction loan payable to Franklin Savings Bank,
collateralized by real . estate located at 267 Wilson Street,
Manchester, New Hampshire. Housing Benefits has the ability
to draw up to $825,000 on the promissory note. Monthly
payments including principal, interest and escrow of $6,854 are
due over a 30 year period starting September 2018 at 4.90%
interest. 687,042 707,538

A noninterest bearing construction loan payable to NHHFA,
.collateralized by real estate located at 267 Wilson Street,
Manchester, New Hampshire. The note has a borrowing limit of
$720,000.'Annual payments are due in amounts equal to 25%
of surplus cash. The loan is due in full by November 1, 2047. 711,845 720,000

Three vehicle loans collateralized by an activity bus payable to"
Ford Credit in monthly payments of $392 at 5.9% annual
interest rate. The loans are due and payable in March 2022. 841 15,937

A noninterest bearing mortgage note payable to the City of
Manchester Community Improvement Program, collateralized
by real estate located at 267 Wilson Street, 2nd Floor. The note
has a borrowing limit of $1,655,323. As costs are incurred,
Housing Benefits is to be reimbursed by the City of
Manchester. Annual payments of the greater of 25% of net
cash flow, as defined, or $5,000 are due by October 1
commencing October 1, 2019. The note is due in full by
October 1,2047. 1,448,182 1,453,182

A noninterest bearing mortgage note payable to the City of
Manchester, collateralized by real estate located at 267 Wilson
Street, 3rd Floor. The note is funded by the City of
Manchester's Community Improvement Program and the City
of Manchester's Affordable Housing Trust Funds. The note has
a borrowing limit of $531,252. As costs are incurred. Housing
Benefits is to be reimbursed by the City of Manchester. Annual
payments in the amount of 25% of net cash flow, as defined,
are due by October 1 commencing October 1, 2019. The note
is due in full.by December 1, 2047. 523,097 531,252

A noninterest bearing construction loan payable to NHHFA,
collateralized by real • estate located in Wolfeboro, New
Hampshire. The note has a borrowing limit of $780,000. Annual
payments in amounts equal to 25% of surplus cash. The loan is .
due in full by December 1, 2047. ^ 780,000 780,000
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A mortgage note payable to NHHFA and is collateralized by the
real estate and personal property of HB-AH, LLC on Concord
Street in Manchester, New Hampshire. The mortgage is
insured by the U.S Department of Housing and Urban
Development through the Housing Finance Agency Risk
Sharing Program authorized by Section 542(c) of the Housing
and Community Development Act of 1992. Monthly payments
of $6,745 are due for principal and interest at 4.20%. All
remaining principal is due on May 1. 2059. 1,525,843 1,542,342

A technical assistance note payable to NHHFA to provide support
. to the Organization for renovations at the Union Street Shelter
in Manchester,. New Hampshire. If the renovation project is
approved, NHHFA is expected to be the lead lender on
renovations. If the renovation project is not approved NHHFA
will forgive the borrowings. The noninterest bearing note
payable is due at the time of closing on the construction loan. 45,000 44,079

A note payable to CDFA, collateralized by real estate located at
199 Manchester Street, Manchester, New Hampshire. Principal
only payments are due for the first 18 months, at which time
monthly payments include principal and interest at 2% will be
required until December 2021. 69 9,268

A noninterest bearing construction loan payable to NHHFA,
collateralized by real estate located in Manchester, New

- Hampshire. The note has a borrowing limit of $1,134,188. The
"  loan is due in full 40 years from the closing date. 157,854

A noninterest bearing construction loan payable to City of
Manchester, New' Hampshire, collateralized by real estate
located in Manchester, New Hampshire.. The note has a
borrowing limit of $275,000. 106,284 :

15,432,087 15,613,873

Less current portion 300,631 345,909
Less unamortized deferred costs - 85.278 94|186

$ 15.046.178 $15.173.778

Surplus cash for the purposes of these disclosures is as defined in the respective loan
agreements.
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Principal maturities of long-term debt over the next five years and thereafter are as follows:

2022 ■$ 300,631
2023 551,965
2024 661,132
2025 305,829
2026 ' 161,341
Thereafter 13.451.189

$15.432.087

Interest expenise charged to operations, including amortization of deferred costs of $13,344, was
$209,062 and $238,399 in 2021 and 2020, "respectively.

8. Net Assets

At December 31, 2021 and 2020, net assets without donor restrictions are fully available to support
operations.of the Organization.

Net assets with donor restrictions were as follows:

2021 2020

Investments to be maintained in perpetuity, income is
to support general operations $ 25.000 $ 25.000

Funds maintained with donor restrictions temporary in
nature;

The Family Place 53,258 134,190
Scholarships 26,664 19,264
Housing programs- 164,098 35,000
Direct care for clients 407,049 147,904
Hope House 550.723 369.642

Total funds maintained with donor restrictions
temporary in nature 1.201.792 706.000

Total net assets with donor restrictions $1.226.792 S 731.000
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Net assets released from net assets with donor restrictions were as follows;

2021 2020

Satisfaction of purpose restrictions:
Operating releases

The Family Place $ 80,932 $ 9,280
Housing programs 35,000 55,000
Direct care for clients 132,225 103,321
Hope House 338,199. 21,566
New Horizons for New Hampshire merger - 76,944
Substance use disorder services : 97.717

$  586.356 $ 363.828

9. Commitments

Under the terms of the Limited Partnerships' Regulatory Agreements with NHHFA, each Limited
Partnership is required to make deposits to various escrow accounts to fund expected future costs.

Each Limited Partnership has entered into a Land Use Restriction Agreement with NHHFA, as a
condition of the allocation of low-income housing tax credits by NHHFA. Pursuant to the covenant,
the Limited Partnerships are required to remain in compliance with Code Section 42 . for the
compliance period and an extended use period, unless terminated sooner.

10. Retirement Plan

The Organization has a tax deferred retirement plan which is available to all employees working
greater than 25 hours a week. All enTployees are eligible to participate and are fully vested with the
first contribution. The Organization matches contributions at 100% up to 3% of compensation. The
Organization contributed $107,457 and $99,580 during the years ended December 31, 2021 and
2020, respectively.

11. Noncontrolling Interest

Noncontrolling interest, as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position, represents
investments by limited partners in the Limited Partnerships as follows:

Limited Partner Property 2021 2020

BGCC, Inc. Family Bridge $ - $ 10
Boston Financial Corporate Family Bridge ■ 607,520
Housing Benefits, Inc. Family Bridge 377,898
BCCC, Inc. Family Willows 10 10
Boston Financial Midway Family Willows 1.637.281 1.737.255

$  2.015.189 £ 2.344.795
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FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NoteS'to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2021

(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2020)

12. Uncertainty

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the coronavirus disease (COVID-19),
,  a global pandemic. Local, U.S., and world governments encouraged self-isolation to curtail the
spread of the global pandemic, C0\/ID-19, by mandating the temporary shut-down of business in
many sectors and imposing limitations on .travel and the size and duration of group meetings.
Many sectors. are experiencing disruption to business operations. There is unprecedented
uncertainty surrounding the duration of the pandemic, its potential economic ramifications, and the
scale of government actions to mitigate them. To date, the U.S. government has passed
legislation which allows for increased funding to states to assist in paying for costs associated with
COVID-19. Therefore, while management expects this matter to impact operating results, the
related financial impact and duration cannot be reasonably estimated.

During 2020, the Organization received $1,188,400 under the CARES Act Paycheck Protection
.  Program (PPP). The PPP funding has specific criteria for eligibility and provides for forgiveness of

the funds under the program if the Organization meets certain requirements. Any portion of the
funds that are not forgiven were to be repaid within 5 years at 1%. In' November 2020, the
Organization received notification of full forgiveness and was included in CARES Act grants In the
consolidated statement of activities for the year ended December 31, 2020.

During 2021 and 2020, the Organization, was awarded $347,447 and $2,832,815, respectively,
from the State of New Hampshire's Governor's Office for Emergency Relief and Recovery
(GOFERR). The GOFERR grants are pass-through grants provided to the State of New
Hampshire through the CARES Act. The GOFERR grants are to be used by the Organization to
cover eligible costs outlined in the grant agreements. At December 31, 2021 and 2020,'the
Organization satisfied the terms and conditions of the grant agreements and recognized the
revenue which is included in CARES Act grants in the consolidated statement activities for the
years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020. - -

During 2021 and 2020, the Organization was awarded $1,322,840 and $162,437, respectively,
under the McKinney Emergency Shelter Grant Program. The funds were provided to decompress
the shelters as a result of the COVID-19. The grant was paid on a reimbursement basis as
qualifying expenses were incurred. At December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Organization satisfied the
terms and conditions of the awards and recognized the revenue which is included In CARES Act
grants in the consolidated statement activities for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 20i20.
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FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidating Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2021

ASSETS

Families In

Transition - Limited

Oneratino Partnershios

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents S 722,833 S 45,847

Accounts receivable 84,544 •10,636

Grants and contributions receivable 779,471 -

Prepaid expenses 97,886 15,177

Due from related parties 1,970,270 1,814

Other current assets 3.445 15.931

Total current assets 3.658.449 89.405

Replacement reserves 90,178 125.386

Reserve cash designated for properties > 88,427 260.024

Related party notes receivable 1.725,799 •

Accrued interest receivable on related party
notes 1,344,742 -

Investments 2,679,576 -

Investment in related entities 1.247,739 -

Property and equipment, net 7,420,192 7.114.322

Development in process 416.959
-

Total assets ^^,,,18^62^

Current liabilities

Current portion of long-term debt s 101,515 s 67,852

Accounts payable 211,220 69,383

Accrued expenses 207,768 837.425

Due to related parties 125.946 217,812

Other current liabilities 6.442 27.506

Total current liabilities 652,891 1,239,978

Long-term debt, net of current portion and
unamortized deferred costs 1.860.532 3 573.193

Total liabilities 2.513.423 4.813.171

Net assets

Net assets v^out donor restrictions •

controlling interest 16.158,638 760,777

Net assets without donor restrictions •

noncontrolling interest -
2015.189

Total net assets without donor

restricUon

Net assets with donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabiltties end net assets

16,158,638

16.158.638

2.775.966 .

2,775,966

Housing

Benefits

Fa'm#y
Outfitters

The New

Hampshire
Coalition to End

Homelessness

217.763
24,300

33,690
26,632.
32,678

110,410

879

86.403

335,063 197,692

294,821
438.593

25,051

18,755,158 18,467

^16JM

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

$131,264 $

52,479

569.216

1,724,031
46.578

1.352

11.479

2.523,568

11,338,252-

13,861.820

5,986,866

5,986,866

5.986,866

12,831

12.831

203,328

203,328

203.328

228,822 $

228J22

27.868

27,868

200,954

Wilson Street

Condominium

Association

6,139

1,552

7,691

33.415

228,822 $

27,320

548

200,954

200.954

18,496

921

921

58.681

58,681

58,681

With Donor

Restrictions

1.201.792

1,201,792

Eliminations

$  - $
(65,897)

(2,085,119)

25,000

59.602 S

921

1,226,792

1.226,792

(2,151,016)

(1,725,799)

(1,344,742)

(1,271,790)

$  • $
(82,679)

(1,344,742)
(2.068,337)

(3,495,758)

(1,725,799)

(5,221,557)

(1.271,790)

(1,271,790)

(1.271.790)

.$^^8j672j^ $^J9j8^J^ $^_^^^16J59 $^^^^^28j8« $^^_^J9j602 • $^^Jj226j;92

Total '

2,533,606

54,462
779.471

148,305

52.054

3,567,898

543.800

787,044

2,704,576
1,000

33,326,635
416.959

$^^6,493,^ $^^1J47|^

300,631

299,996
281.146

80.526

962.299

15,046,178

16,008,477

22,097,454

2.015.189

24,112,643

1.226,792

25.339.435

41,347,912
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FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidating Statement of Activities

Year Ended December 31, 2021

Families In

Transition -

QperatinQ

Revenue and support

Limited ' Housing Family
Partnerships Benefits Outfrtters

592,005

65

Federal, state and otiier grant support $ 2.824,911 $ -  S 463,909

CARES Act grants 1,670,287 - -

Rental Income, net of vacancies '  289,331 687,127 1,456,682

Thrift store sales - -
-

Public support 2,462,321 -

200,135

Special events 342,619 - -

Property management fees 1,144.686 - '

Unrealized gain on investments . 234,310 - -

Loss on disposal of property and
equipment (260,590) ' (2,045) (3,463)

Interest income 96,244 286 1,965

Itvkirtd donations 42,933 - -

Forgiveness of debt -

131,267

Medicald reimbursements 415,708 -

Other Income 151,398 41,048 ■  119,788

Net assets released from restrictions 586.356 - -

Total revenue and support 10.000.514 726416 2.370.283

Expenses

Program activities
Fundralsing
Management arid general

Total expenses

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
and support over expenses

CafHtal contributions
Member distributions

Partnership distributions
Equity transferred resulting from dissolution

Change In net assets

8,425.812
588,381

893.140

9,907,333

93,181

5,468J 59

1.055.747

1,055,747

(329.331)

(3,084)

2,697,457
221,060

333.718

3.252J35

(881,952)

(18.257)

6,191

598,261

New Horizons . Manchester

for New Emergency
Hampshire Housing

The New

Hampshire
Coalition to WIson StreeJ

End Condominium

Homelessness Association

496,854

496,854

101,407

$^,561^ $^332j^ $_^900j209) S^JOI^

(5.639.571)

$^5,639j57^

171,412

171,412

80,134

(1.315)

600

79,419

54,626

54,626

24,793

98,190

29

98,219

100,813

100.813

(2,594)

3,751

Without

. Donor

Restrictions With OorKX

Eliminations Total Restrictions Total

i  (414,678) $ 2,874,142 $  1,082,148 S 3,956,290
. 1,670,287 - 1,670,287

(147,961) 2,383.369 - 2,383.369
- 592.005 • 592,005

(242,367) 2,500,288 • 2,500,288
. 342,619 - 342,619

(1,144,686) - - -

-• 234,310
-

234,310

. (267,413) . (267,413)

(96,190) .2,334 -
2,334

- 42,933 - 42,933
. 131.267 - 131,267
. 415,708 - 415,708

(171,277) 147,748 - 147,748
. 586.356 (586.356) •

(2 217.159) 11.655.953 495.792 12.151.745

(2,144.734) 10,686,575 . 10,686,575
. 809,441 . - 809,441
_ 1 226858 . 1.226.858

(2.144.734) 12.722.874
. 12.722.874

(72.425) (1,066,921) 495,792 (571,129)

_ 3,751 . 3,751

18,257 - . -

2,776 (308) -
(308)

-
-

-
-

24j793 S^J51^392) $^1^063^^ $^^95^792 $^567^686)
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FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidating Statement of Activities

Year Ended December 31, 2021

Program Acttvities

The New

Hampshire
Famiies In Coalition to Wilson Street Program Management

Transition - l.imited Housing Family . End Condominium Activities and

Ot>eratino Partnershios Benefits Outfitters Homelessness Association Total Fundraisino General Eliminations Total

Salaries ar)d bertefits

Salaries and wages $ 3.849.367 S $  579,346 $ 283.233 S $ S 4.711,946 S  442.872 $  664.307 S  - $ 5,819,125

Employee bertefts 405.748 .  - 92,664 21,465 - - 519,877 49.841 74.761 - 644,479

Payroll taxes

Total salaries and benefrts

304.824 . 38.267 23.293 .
- 366.384 34.309 51.464 - 452.157

4,559,939 - 710.277 327,991 - -

5,598,207 527,022 790,532
-

6.915,761

Advertising 3,498 . _ 13,668 500 - 17.666 350 525 - 18.541

Bad debts 7.740 . 17.958 - • - 25.698 - - - 25.698

Bank charges 11.661 404 415 8,246 60 5 20.791 1,207 1,811
-

23.809

Condominium association fees - . 73.104 - - - 73.104 -
- (58,529) 14,575

Consultants 72.570 - 5.850 3.988 209 . 82.617. 7.842 11.763 - 102,222

COVID expenses 22.161 -
- - - . - 22.161 2.216 3.324 - 27,701

Depredation 321.890 280,321 614,718 3.404 170 4,485 1.224.988 93.661 140.492 - 1,459,141

Events 16,295 . 6,250 - 6.592 - 29,137 -
- - 29,137

Food 196,374 - 42,098 . - • 238,472 - - - 238,472

General insurance 44,994 38,016 70,379 •  2,318 742 14.397 170,846 11.537 17.306 - " 199,689

Interest expense 32,606 82,927 145,254 - . - 260,787 17.786 26,679 (96.190) 209,062

Management fees 90,948 243,505' 727.203 - 34,420 25.973 1,122,049 - - (1.123.653) (1.604)

Meals and entertainment 3,921 . 396 . -
- 4.317 432 648 - 5.397

Membership dues 8,730 . . - 540 - 9.270 873 1,309
-

11.452

Office supplies 82.547 3.671 22.983 9.451 3.569 70 122.291 10,553 15,829 - 148.673

Operational expenses • other 362.333 - - - - -
362.333

- • -
362.333

Participant expenses 79.545 2.271 6,615 - 5.000 -
93.431

-
- -

93,431

Postage 6.770 - 110 17 -
- 6,897 688 1.033 -

8,618

Printing 14.350 . 72 818 1.880 - 17.120 1.442 2.164
-

20,726

Professional fees 90,368 31,952 49,729 4,000 - 3.200 179,249 14.010 21.014 - 214,273

Related entity expenses 1,328.050 (100) (611,020) 60,000 - - 776,930 - •
(776.930)

-

Rent 64,632 - . 24,800 -
- 89.432 - - (89.432)

-

Rental subsidies 265,605 - . . - . 265.605 - - - 265,605

Repairs and maintenance 223,916 133,698 268.711 18,416 - 36.264 681.005 49,263 73,895 - 804.163

Staff development 22.598 3.620 187 100 - 26.505 2,622 3,933 - 33.060

Taxes 52.991 70.848 209.048 183 -
- 333.070 - - • 333.070

Technology support 157.444 1.837 2.243 117 686 - 162.327 15,968 23,953 - 202.248

Telephone 77.568 719 24.324 1.535 - 2,252 106.398 10,189 15,284 - 131.871

Travel 23.078 - 5.629 84 158 . 28.949 2.871 4,306 - 36.126

Utilities 103.195 165.678 285,896 17.631 . 14.167 586.567 38.909 58,363 - 683.839

77.495 _ 15.595 . . . 93.090 • 12.695 - 105.785

Total expenses S 8,425812 S  1.055.747 $ 2.697.457 $ 496,854 S  54.626 S  100813 S 12.831.309 $  809.441 S  1.226.858 $ (2.144.7341 S 12.722.874
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Families
in Transition

Board of Directors

Roy Tllsley, Chair

Bernstein Shur, Shareholder
Board member since :2bl8

Heather Whitfield, Vice Chair

People's United Barik, Sr. Vice President
Board member since 2018

Frank Saglio, Treasurer

Kdrr & Boucher, PLLC

Board member.since,2018

Kristi.Scarpone, Secretary

FIRST, Director of Corpdrate'Relations & Field Developrhent Strategy
Board member.since 2018

Djck Ar)agnost,At Large

Anagnost Companies, President
Board member since 2018

Scott W. Ellison, Esquire Prior Chair

COOK, LITTLE, ROSENBLATT & MANSON, PLLC, Partner
Board member since 2018

Robert Bartley

Bartley Financial Advisors, President, CPA, CFP
Board member since 2018

Colleen Cone,

Comcast, Vice President, Human Resources

Board member since.2018

Alison Hutcheson

Merchants Fleet, Associate Directori Ltgal
.Board member since ,2018

AnnMarie French

Nhi Fiscal Policy lnstitute, Executive Director
Board member since 20l8

Rev. 1/1/2022 RS
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t

in Transition

Brian Hansen

Worker Bee Fund, Founder

Board member since 2018

Brian Mike!

Spectrum Marketing, Co-Owner
Board member since 2018

Kitten Steams

Realtor, Coldwell Banker Residential Brokerage

Board member since 2018

Mary Ann Aldrlch

Dartrriauth Hitchcock, Sr: Advispr.Community & Relations, External Affairs
Board member since 20,18

Roy Ballehtine

Bqlleniine Partners, LLC, Executive Chairman,
Board.member since 2019

Sarah Jacobs

AmeriCorps/Portfolio Manager
Board member since 2018

Sean Leighton

City of Manchester Police'Department, Captain
Board member since 2019

Rev. Gayle Murphy
Minister At Large-Uriited Church of Christ

Board member since 2020

Michael McCofmick

'Business Development Executive, Capgemini Financial Services
B.bard member since 2020

Michael SImoneau

Members Firist Credit Union, SVP, Community Outreach Officer

Board member since 2021

ChadCampbell

Silverfech, Inc., Vice President of Soles
Board member since 202i

Rev.l/1/2022 RS
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Families
in Transition

Danielle Pllska

FIRST, Vice President, Finance

Board member since 2021

Robert Bphflglip

Rise Private Wealth Management, Co-Founder
Board member since 2021

Melissa Szymanowski

Coca-Cola, Beverages Northeast, Human Resources Director
Board member since 2021

Stephen Notion

Solution Health, Chief Strategy Officer

Board member:since 2021

Susan Harrington

Brewster Academy, Chief Financial Officer

Board member,since 2022
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Contractor Name

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary Amount Paid from this
Contract

Stacey Beeley Recovery Housing Operations Manager $15,000

Emily Carrara Certified Recovery Support Worker $13,200
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i

PROFILE

I am a natural born leader, full of

passion and charisma. With a natural
confidence that begets Influence. I take
a great deal of pride and Joy in guiding
others to work together to Improve
themselves and their community.

EDUCATIONAL

TRAINING

University of Rhode Island
Bachelor's of Science In Business

Administration/Management

September 2014-May 2018

SKILLS

• strong Leadership

• Critical Thinking

• Full Microsoft Suite .

• Clear Communicator

• Collaborative

• Self-Motivated

• Team Development
• Creative

« Organized

• Charismatic

CERTIFICATIONS

CPR/FirstA|d

April 2021'Apri! 2023

SBC Initial Training

2021

CHARACTER REFERENCES

Jocelyn Rogers

Recruiter, Previous Supervisor

Cell: 978.962.7794

Email: Jocelynlrogers@gmail.com

Donna Gamache-Griffiths

Professor, College of Business

University of Rhode Island

Cell: 401.874.4366

Email: donnagg@url.edu

HOW TO REACH ME

CAREER summary-

family ENGAGEMENT COORDINATOR

Waypoint NH [ Jan 2021 to Present

• Keeps families engaged, motivated, and inspired throughout their
journey including helping to track accomplishment of milestones and
celebrating successes.

• Able to communicate effectively with all parties In-person, over the
phone, and electronically.

• Point person in a seamless referral process between a referent and
Waypoint to quickly engage,families in a case management process.

ASSISTANT STORE MANAGER

Salon Centric | Nov 2019 to Dec 2020
• Develop business driving tactics to meet sales goals.
• Control and manage Inventory through cycle counts and audit

management

• Interact and meet the needs of 40-70 customers a day. delivering

superb customer service dally.
•  Involved with training and onboarding new associates.

I

PRINT AND MARKETING SUPERVISOR

Staples I Jul2018toNov20lS
• Managed and fulfilled a $8,C00-$10.000 weekly budget
• Extensive experience with SalesForce CRM software.
• Addressed customer and associate needs and concerns via phone, email

and In person.

• Adhered to company policies with weekly check-Ins to corporate.
• Supervised all associate training and onboarding within the department

VOLUNTEER EXPERIENCE:

CASANH

Court Appointed Special Advocate/Guardian Ad Litem | Ongoing
• CASAs gather Information from Court documents, social workers' files,

and educational, medical, and therapy records. They also speak with the
child, family members, school officials, health care providers, and other
professionals Involved in the child's life.

• CASAs use this Information, as well as firsthand observations, to advocate

for the child in Court and school, and In other aspects of their lives.

FAMIQES IN TRANSITION

FIT I Ongoing
• WILLOWS: Welcome Ambassador, weekly shifts.

• HQ: Administrative work

THE GRANITE STATE UNITED WAY

Nashua Branchl Ongo/ng

• COMMITTEES: Marketing, Events/Fundralsing, Social Media, Google
Adwords

• FOOD ASSISTANCE: Pantry Maintenance, Monthly Food Drives

BIG BROTHERS BIG SISTERS

Manchester Branch] Ongoing

» COMPLETED TRAINING, WAITING FOR MATCH
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Stacey Beeley
Manchester, NH

Authorized to work In the US for any employer

Work Experience

Clinical Team Lead

Careglver Homes - Lawrence, MA
February 2019 to Present

• Provide coaching and support to Care Teams to mai^age risk related to population, track and respond
to changes and identify the need for active at-iisk case management ^
• Provide oversight to Care Teams ̂  ensure compliance with documentation standards required through
NCQA and Mass Health guidelines and regulations
• Manage and track program admissions/discharges, quality Improvement Initiatives and KPI metrics
• Facilitated statewide workgroups designed to Improve Consumer and Careglver experiences, Internal

and external reportlrig guidelines and ensure branch efficiencies
• Led Internal branch trainings on documentation, navigating technological challenges, developing goafs/
care plans ! . .
• Continue to manage Care Manager activities listed below

Care Manger
Careglver Homes - Lavvrence, MA

2015 to Present

• Assess Individuals to ascertain Consumer health status and suitability for Mass Health Adult Foster
Care program,

•.Facilitate Consumer .and .Careglver .engagernent with appropriate community resources to a.ddress
Identified problems or. Issues . . .
• Assist Consumer and Careglyers In identifying needs and developing person-centered plans of care
• Conduct regular home visits to monitor the health and well-being of Consumers and Careglvers
• Providing education, support and coaching to both family and non-family Careglvers
• Communicates with all team members and outside service providers to ensure coordination of care
• Facilitated complex case management to culturally diverse population
• Offered support and guidance to new team members as a Preceptor

Parent Educator Home Visitor
Waypoint NH - Nashua, NH

2010 to 2015

• Provide early. Intensive and comprehensive child development, case management, Infant/parent
relationship and family support through In-home services for Medlcald-eliglble pregnant women and their
Infants to enhance physical, social, emotional, and Intellectuai development

»Deliver health, educational, nutritional, and child growth and development Information to parents while
facilitating positive Interactions via weekly home visits
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Education

Bachelor of Arts In Social Work
University of New Hampshire Durham • Durham, NH
2004

Skills

• Crisis intervention

• Case Management

• NCQA Standards •

• Behavioral Health ' j
• Leadership j
• Organizational skills |
• Quality audits . ' '
• Microsoft Excei ;

Assessments

Vei1>al communfcatlon — Expert
June 2019

Speaking cleariy, correctiy, and concisely
Full results: Expert

/

Electronic health records; Best practices — Highly Proficient
March 2021

Knowledge of EHR data, associated privacy regulations, and best practices for EHR use
Full results: Highly Proficient

Attention to detail — Highly Proficient
March 2021

Identifying differences In materials, folloyving Instructions, and detecting details among distracting
Information

Case management ,& social woric — Highly Proficient
March 2021

Prioritizing case tasks, gathering Information, and providing services v/ithout Judgment

Supervisory skills: Motivating £c assessing employees — Expert
March 2021

Motivating others to achieve objectives and Identifying Improvements or corrective actions
Full results: Expert
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STATE OF P«:W HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DI VISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASAffT STREET, CONCORD, NH WJOl
603-271.9544 1-800-8520345 Cxi 9544

F»x: 603-271-4332 TDDAcm#: 1-800-735-2964 www.dblu.nb.gov

September 8. 2021

His Excellency, Govemor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to amend existing contracts with the vendors listed below in bold for Recovery Housing services
and supports to individuals writh Opioid and/or Stimulant Use Disorder by exercising contract
renewal options by increasing the total price limitation by $350,000 from $908,045 to $1,258,(M5
and extendirig the cohipletion dates from September 29, 2021 to September 29, 2022 effective
upon Govemor and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The individual contracts were approved by Govemor and Council as specified in the table
below.

Vendor Name Vendor

Code

Area Served Current

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised
Amount

G&C .
Approval

FIT/NHNH,
Inc.

Manchester,

NH

#16773

>8001
Manchester 1381,967 $168,162 $530,119

0: 6/19/19

#29B

A1: 1/22/21

#20

Hope on
Haven Hill.

Inc.

Rochester,
NH

#275119-

B001
Rochester

\

$200,300 $65,604 $266,904

0:6/19/19

#298

A1: 1/22/21

#20

Homestead
Inn 1765, LLC

Boscawen,

NH

#312235-

B001
Boscawon $245,768 $116,234 $362,022

0:10/23/19

#18

A1:1/22/21

#20

Dismas Home
of New

Hampshire

Manchester.

NH

#290061-

8001
Manchester $100,000 $0 $100,000

0: B/19/19

#298

Total: $908,045 $350,000 $1,258,045

T/i« Dtparlmtnl of Heollh ond Humon Stroicts' Mitsicn i$ to /Otn eommuntUet and families
in providing opportuniliet for eilistnt to aehitiM health ond independence.



His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorat)le Council

Pd9e2of2

Funds are available tn the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023, with
the authority to adjust budget line Items within the price limitation and encumbrances between
state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request Is to continue to provide Recovery Housing services and
supports to Individuals with Opiold and/or Stimulant Use Disorder who need housing In a safe
environment.. New Hampshire is supporting the development of Recovery Hou8ir>g, but still has
minimal capacity to serve individuals in need of recovery housing options and even fewer options
for specialty populations who have complex needs and/or gender-specific housing. This request
will allow the contractors to continue providing recove^ housing sen/ices, statewide, to serve
specific populations with Opiold and/or Stimulant Use Disorder, which Include;

•  A Recovery Residence for females only;

•  A Recovery Residence for Individuals who have complex criminal backgrounds that limit
access to other housing options; and

•  Recovery Residences to serve the general population.

The Contractors provided services to 50 individuals from January 1, 2021 through June
30, 2021. the Department anticipates the Contractors will provide services to approximately 100
Individuals from September 30, 2021 to September 29, 2022.

The Contractors will continue to provide recovery housing and services to Individuals so
that they may te housed In a safe environment, which gives them a more stable foundation on
which to pursue recovery..

The Department will continue to monltor.servlces through ad hoc data reports, periodic
surveys, and other data as requested by the Department. The Department will work with
community partners and other state agencies to collect data regarding positioning Individuals for
longer-term recovery, employment, and housing stability.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1. Revisions to General Provisions, Section 3 of the original
contracts, the parties have the option to extend the agreements for up to two (2) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and
Governor and Council approval. The Department Is exercising its option to renew services for one
(1) year of the one (1) available year remaining.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request. Recovery Housing
services and supports may not be available for some Individuals with Opiold and/or Stimulant Use
Disorders. This could Impede their recovery joumey, increase the potential for future substance
misuse, and add to the burden on the health care system.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: Assistance Listing Number #93.788, FAIN #H79TI083326

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Shibinette v
Commissioner



DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

05-92-92.920510-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT. HHS:
BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SERVICES, SOR GRANT
100% Fedoral Fund#, _% Gonerai Fund#,.% Other Fund# (Name of Source)

(Vendor Name FIT/NHNH. inc. Vendor# 157730

State Fiscal
Class / Account Class TlUe Job Number Current Amount

Inaease

rOeaease)
Revised Amount

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proflram Services 92057040 $2,970.00 $0.00 $2,970.00

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057040 $127,555.00 $0.00 $127,555.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057040 $32,633.00 $0.00 $32,633.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057046 $36,799.00 $0.00 $36,799.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057048 $108,000.00 $0.00 $108,000.00

2022 102-500731 Contracts lor Program Services 92057048 $54,000.00 $0.00 $54,000.00

2022 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Rei 92057046 $0.00 $126,121.00 $126,121.00

2023 074-500585 . Grants for Pub Asst and Rcl 92057048 $0.00 $42,041.00 $42,041.00

Sub Total $361,957.00 $168,162.00 $530,119.00

Vendor# 275199(Vendor Name Ho)e on Haven hiii, inc.
I

Slate Fiscal Class/AccounL Class Title Job Number Current Amount ncrease

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Program Servlcw 92057040 535.332.00 $0.00 S35.332.00

$60,442.00
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Serviced 92057040 $60.442.00 $0.00

$26,970.00

$14,356.00
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057040 $26.970.00 $0.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services
Contracts for Program Services

92057046 $14.356.00 $0.00
$42,133.00
irmm2021 102-500731 92057048 $42.133.00 sm.

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Servie^ 92057048 $21.067.00 $0.00
S49,203.M
Si6.40i.002022

2023

074-500585

074-500585

Grants tor Pub Asst arxl Rel

Grants for Pub Asst artd Ret

92057048 $0.00 $49.203.00

92057048 $0.00 $16.401.00

Sub Total S200.300.00 t65.604.00 $265,904.00

(Vendor Name .  Homestead Inn 1765 LLC Vendor #312235

State Fiscal
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Inaease

(Deaease)
Revised Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057040 $85,500.00 $0.00 $85,500.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057040 $22,878.00 $0.00 $22,878.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057046 $25,411.00 $0.00 $25,411.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts (or Program Services 92057048 $74,666.00 $0.00 $74,668.00

•  2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057048 $37,333.00 $0.00 $37,333.00

2022 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Rcl 92057048 $0.00 $87,176.00 $87,176.00

2023 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Rel 92057048 $0.00 $29,058.00 $29,058.00

Sub Total $245,788.00 $116,234.00 $362,022.00

(Vendor Name Oismas Home of New Hampshire Vendor # 290061

State Fiscal
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Inaease

fOeaease)
Revised Amount

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057040 , $38,567.00 $0.00 $38,567.00

2020 102-500731 Contracts (or Program Services 92057040 $49,146.00 $0.00 $49,146.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057040 $12,287.00 $0.00 $12,287.00

. Sub Total $100,000.00 $0.00 $100,000.00

Overall Total $906,045.00 $350,000.00 $1,258,045.00

Governor and Council Letter Attachment

Financial Detail

Page 1 of 1



DocuSlgn Envelope 10: 55429CDF-6AC1-4FFE-86F2^10BO56D2933

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2

This Amendment to the Recovery Housing for Individuals with ODD contract is by and between the State
of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and FIT/NHNH,
Inc. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 19. 2019 (Item # 29B), as amended on January 22. 2021 (Item #20), the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and
in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions, Paragraph 18. and Exhibit C-1. Revisions to
General Provisions, Section 3, Renewal, the Contract may, be amended upon written agreement of the
parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

VyHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services: and

NOW Therefore, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
In the Coritract and set forth herein, the'parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

■  1. Form P-37 General Provisions. Block 1.7. Completion Date, to read:

September 29, 2022.

2. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$530,119.

3. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 6, State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards.
Subsection 6.2., to read:

6.2. Reserved.

4. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services. Section 6. State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards.
Subsection 6.11., to read:

6.11. The Contractor shall ensure that SOR grant funds are not used to purchase, prescribe, or
provide marijuana for treatment using marijuana.. The Contractor shall ensure:

6.11.1. Treatment in this context includes the treatment of opioid use disorder (OUD).

6.11.2. Grant funds are not provided to any individual who, or organization that, provides
or permits marijuana use for the purposes of treating substance use or mental
disorders.

6.11.3. This marijuana restriction applies to all subcontracts and memoranda of
understanding (MOU) that receive SOR funding.

5. Modify Exhibit A. Scope of Services. Section 6. State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards,
Subsection 6,12., to.read: • , .

6.12. The Contractor shall provide a Fentanyl lest strip utilization plan to the Department for
approval prior to Implementation..The Contractor shall ensure the utilization plan
includes:

6.12.1. I nternal policies for the distribution of Fentanyl strips;

6.12.2. Distribution methods and frequency; and

6.12.3.0ther key data as requested by the Department.

6. Modify Exhibit A. Scope of Services, Section 6. State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant St^^s by
adding Subsection 6.13., to read: [ •^(/

RFA-2019-BDAS-02-RECOV-02-A02 FIT/NHNH. Inc. - Conlraclor Initials

A-S-1.0 Pago 1 of 5 Oate_



DocuSlgn Envelope ID: 55429CDF-8AC1-4FFE-88F2-610BD56D2933

6.13. The Contractor shall refer to Exhibit B for grant terms and conditions including, but not limited
to:

6.13.1. Invoicing;

6.13.2. Funding restrictions; and

6.13.3. Billing.

7. Modify Exhibit B. Amendment #1. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1. to
read:

1. This Agreement is funded by 100% Federal funds from the State Opioid Response Grant, as
awarded on 09/30/2018, by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services. Substance
Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration. CFDA #93.788, FAIN H79TI081685. and
as awarded on 09/30/2020. by the U.S. Department of.Health and Human Services. Substance
Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration. CFDA #93.788. FAIN H79TI083326, and
as awarded on 08/09/2021, by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services. Substance
Abuse and Mental Health Sen/ices Administration. CFDA #93.788, FAIN H79TI083326.

8. Modify Exhibit B. Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 2. to
read:

2. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as
specified in Exhibit 8-1 SOR II Budget through Exhibit B-7 Amendment #2 SOR II Budget.

9. Modify Exhibit B. Amendment #1. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 4. to
read:

4. The Contractor shall submit an invoice and supporting backup documentation in a form
satisfactory to the State by the fifteenth (15th) working day of the following month, which
identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month.
The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed, dated and returned to the Department in
order to initiate payment. Invoices shall be net any other revenue received towards,the
services billed in fulfillment of this agreement. The Contractor shall ensure:

4.1. Backup documentation includes, but is not limited to:

4.1.1. General Ledger showing revenue and expenses for the contract.

4.1.2. Timesheets and/or time cards that support the hours employees worked for wages
reported under this contract,

4.1.2.1. Per 45 CFR Part 75.430(i)(1) Charges to Federal awards for salaries
and wages must be based on records that accurately reflect the work
performed.

4.1.2.2. Attestation and time tracking templates, which are available to the
Department upon request.

4.1.3. Invoices supporting expenses reported.

4.1.3.1. Unallowable expenses include, but are not limited to:

4.1.3.1.1. Amounts belonging to other programs. •

4.1.3.1.2. Amounts prior to effective date of contract.

•4.1.3.1.3,. Construction or renovation expenses.

4.1.3.1.4. Food or water for employees.

RFA-2019-BDAS-02-RECOV-02-A02 FIT/NHNH, Inc. Contractor Initials

A-S-i.O Page 2 of 5 Date



OoeuSIgn Envelope ID; 55429CDF^C1-4FFE-88F2-610BD56D2933

4.1.3.1.5. Directly or indirectly, to purchase, prescribe, or-provide
marijuana or treatment using marijuana.

4.1.3.1.6. Fines, fees, or penalties.

4.1.3.1.7. Per SAMSHA requirements, meals are generally unallowable
unless they are an integral part of a conference grant or
specifically stated as an allowable expense in the FOA. Grant
funds may be used for light snacks, not to exceed three
dollars ($3.00) per person for clients.

4.1.3.1.8. Cell phones and cell phone minutes for clients.

4.1.4. Receipts for expenses within the applicable state fiscal year.

4.1.5. Cost center reports.

4.1.6. Profit and loss report.

4.1.7. Remittance Advices from the insurances billed. Remittance Advices do not need
to be supplied with the invoice, but should be retained to be available upon
request.

4.1.8. Information requested by the Department verifying allocation or offset based on
third party revenue received.

4.1.9. Summaries of patient services revenue and operating revenue and other
financial information as requested by the Department.

10. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, by adding
Section 14 to read;

14. For the purposes of this Agreement:

14.1. The Department has identified the Contractor as a Subreciplent, in accordance with 2
.  CFR §200.330.

14.2. The Department has identified this Contract as NON-R&D, In accordance with 2 CFR
§200.87.

14.3 The de minjmls Indirect Cost Rate of 10% applies in accordance with 2 CFR §200.414.

11. Add Exhibit 8-7 Amendment. #2, S'OR II Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

12..Add Exhibit B-8 Amendment #2, SOR II Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

/

kJ)
RFA-2019-BDAS-02-RECOV-02-A02 FIT/NHNH. Inc. Conlractor Initials .

8/31/2021
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DocuSlgn Envelope ID: 55429CDF^ACMFFE-86F2-610BD58D2933

All ternis and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

9/1/2021

Date

&
OocoSigntd by:

Namei'^atja fox

Title: Director

8/31/2021

Date

FIT/NHNH Inc.

OocuSlsn*^ by:

^^AM3W;B74E140C...

Name: oeviln
Title: president & CEO

RFA-2019-BPAS.02-RECOV-02-AC2

A-S-1.0

FIT/NHNH. Inc.

Page 4 of 5



DocuSign Envelope ID; 5&429CDF-6AC1-4FFE-86F2^108D56D2933

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

•DocvtlgrMil By:

9/3/2021 J, (JkyiidfLw
owonic»oO'«<>:!r , __

Qate ^ Name; 3. Chnstopher Marshall
Assistant Attorney General

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

RFA-2019-BDAS-02-RECOV-02-A02 FIT/NHNH. Inc.

A-S-1.0 Page 5 of 5
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.STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENTOFHEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

FOR BEHA yiORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASAfO STREET. CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-9S44 |.800-852-334SE.fL9544

Fax: 603-271-4332 TOO Acccij: 1-800-735-2964 n-v»-vf.dhh».rjh.i»ov

December 11, 2020

9^^

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

' Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division for Behavioral Health,
to Retroactively amend existing contracts with the vendors listed in bold betow for Recovery
Housir>g services and supports to individuals with Opioid tJse Disorder-(CUD), by exercising
renewal options by increasing the total price limitation by $294,950 from $613,095 to $908,045
and by extending the completion dates from September 29, 2020 to September 29,2021 effective
retroactive to September 29. 2020 upon Govemor and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contracts were approved by Governor and Council as indicated in the table
below.

Vendor Name Vendor

Code

Area Served Current

Arriount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

G&C

Approval

FIT/NHNH, Inc
#15773

0-8001
Manchester $195,795 $166,162 $361,957

0:6/19/19

#298

Hope on
Haven Hill

#27511

9-B0O1
Rochester $200,300 $0 $200,300

0: 6/19/19

#298

Homestead

Inn 1765, LLC

#31223

5-8001
Boscawen $117,000 $128,788 $245,788

O: 10/23/19

#18

Dismas Home

of New

Hampshire

#29006

1-8001
Manchester $100,000 $0 $100,000

0: 6/19/19

#29B

'  Total: $613,095 $294,950 $908,045

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2021, and are
anticipated to be available In State Fiscal Year 2022, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budgel. with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

Fiscal Detail Attached

Tht Otporlmenl of Hta\lh and Human Scruictt'Miulon it tojoin communiliet and fomiliet
in providing opfiortiiniliti for ciluent looehieue heallh and independence.



His Exctiter>cy. Governor Ciifistopher T. Sununu
end the Honorable Coundl

Pago 2 of 3

EXPLANATION

This request Is Retroactive because the Department could not have a lapse In services
for Individuals with a substance use disorder. Additionally, there was a delay by the Substance
Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA) in approving New Hampshire's
requests for continued State Opiold Response Grant funding, which resulted in the efforts to add
the state appropriations being delayed.

• The purpose of this request is to continue providing Recovery Housing services and
supports to individuals with Opioid Use Disorder who need housing in safe-environment. New
Hampshire has minimal capacity to serve Individuals in need of recovery housing options. There
ere few options for specialty populations who have complex needs and/or gender-specific
housing. Services provided through the contracts reduce the number of individuals who seek
other types of senrices Including hospital emergency rooms. This request will allow the contractors
to continue providing recovery housing services, statewide, to service specific populations with
ppioid Use Disorder, that include:

A Recovery Residence for females only;

A Recovery Residence for individuals who have complex criminal backgrounds that limit
access to other publicly funded housing options; and

Recovery Residences to serve the general population who are in need of housing in a
supported and, safe, recovery environment.

Approximately 150 individuals will be served from September 30,2020 to September 29,2021.

The Contraclo'fs have increased capacity to provide respite beds for Individuals In crisis
situations. The individuals served benefit from having access to respite beds that enable them to
be housed in a safe environment which gives them a more stable foundation on which to pursue
treatment and recovery.

The Department will continue to monitor services through monthly reporting of de-
identified aggregate data including;

•  Number and demographics of clients served.

•  Average time in shelter.

•  Discharge reason and where the clients were discharged.

•  Staffing changes.

•  Reason for admissiori denials.

•  Time between requests for shelter and admission.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1, Revisions to General Provisions, Section 3 of the,original
contracts, the parties have the option to extend the agreements for up to two (2) years, contingent
upon satisfactory delivery of seivices, available furxJirig, agreement of the parties and Governor
and 'Council approval. The Department is exercising its option to renew services one (1) of the
two (2) years available.



His Excellency, Governcx Christopher T. Sunumj
end the Honorable Coundl

Poge 3 of 3

Should (he Govemof and Executive Council not authorize this request, Recovery Housing
services and supports for.individuals with Opioid Use Disorder who need housing in a supported,
safe recovery housing environment may not be available, v/hich could impede individuals'
recovery processes.

Area served; Statewide.

Source of Funds: CFDA #93.788. FAIN #H79TI081685 and H79TI083326

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Weaver

Deputy Director



05-95-92-920510-7040 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUf«AN SVCS DEFT OF
HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH OIV OF BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SERVICES. STATE OPIOID

RESPONSE GRANT

100% Federal Funds CFDA #93.766 FAIN H7gTI0B1685 and H79TI083326

FIT/NHNH, Inc (#157730-BQ01)

State

Fiscal

Year Class Title

Class

Account

Activity
Code

Current

Budget

Increase.
(Decrease)
Budget

fi^odified

Budget

2019

Contracts for

Proq Svs 102-500731 92057040 32.632.50 (29.662) 2,970.50

2020

Contracts for

Proq Svs 102-500731 92057040 ' 130.530 (2.975) 127,555

2021

Contracts for •

Proq Svs 102-500731 92057040 32,632.50 -0- 32.632.50

2021

Contracts for

Proq Svs 102-500731 92057046 -0- 36,799 36.799

■  2021

Contracts for

Proq Svs 102-500731 92057048 -0- 108.000- 108.000

,2022

Contracts for

Prog Svs 102-500731 92057048 -0- 54,000 54.000

Subtotdl 195,795 166,162 361,957

Homestead Inn 1765. LLC (#312235—8001}

State

Fiscal

Year Class Title

Class

Account

Activity
Code

Current

Budget

Increase

(Decrease)
Budget

Modified

Budget

2020

Contracts for
Proq Svs 102-500731 92057040 . 94.122 (8,622) 85.500

2021

. Contracts for
Prog Svs 102-500731 . 92057040. 22.878 -0- 22,878

2021

Contracts for

Proq Svs 102-500731 92057046 -0- 25,411 25.411

2021

Contracts for

Proq Svs 102-500731 92057048 -0-" 74.666 74,666

2022

Contracts for

Proq Svs 102-500731 92057048 -0- 37,333 37,333

Subtotal 117,000 128J8S 245.788

Recovery Housing Services and Supports
Page 1 of 2



Hope on Haven Hill (#275119-6001)

State

Fiscal

Year Class Title

Class

Account

Activity
Code

Current

Budget

Increase

(Decrease)
Budget

Modlfred

Budget

/2019

Contracts for

Proq Svs 102-500731 92057040 73.330 (37,998) 35,332

2020

Contracts for'

ProQ Svs 102-500731 92057040 100.000 (39.558) 60.442

2021 .

Contracts for.

ProQ Svs 102-500731 ■ 92057040 ^  26.970 -0- 26.970

2021

Contracts for
ProQ Svs 102-500731 92057046 -0- ,  14.356 'l4;356

2021

Cor>tracts for

Proq Svs 102-500731 92057040 -0- 42.133 42.133

2022

Contracts for

ProQ Svs 102-500731 92057048 . -0- 21.067 .  21.067

Subtotal - 200,300 -0- 200,300

Dismas Home of New Hampshire (#290C61'B001) ,

State

Fiscal

Year Class Title

Class

Account

■ Activity
Code

Current

Budget

Increase

(Decrease)
Budget

Modified

Budget

2019

Contracts for

Proq Svs 102-500731 92057040

/

38.567 -0- 38,567

2020

Contracts for

Proq Svs 102-500731 92057040 ■ 49.146 -0- 49,146

2021

■ Contracts for

Proq Svs 102-500731 92057040 12.287 -0- 12,207

Subtotal 100,000 -0- 100,000

Total 613,095 294,950 908.0451

Recovery Housing Services and Supports
Page 2 of 2
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Recovery Housing for Individuals with ODD

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1 to the Recovery Housing for Individuals with QUO Contract

This 1" Amendment to the Recovery. Housing for Individuals with' ODD contract (hereinafter referred to as
"Amendment #1") Is by and between' the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human
Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and FIT/NHNH, Inc. (hereinafter referred
to as "the Contractor"), a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation with a place of business at.122 Market St.
Manchester, NH 03101.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 19, 2019, (Item 298), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37 General Provisions, Paragraph 18 Amendment; and Exhibit C-1
Revisions to General Provisions, Section 3 Renewal, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to rnodrfy the scope of services, increase funding and extend the term of
theagreeme.nt to support continued delivery of these services; and,

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties'^hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

September 29, 2021.

2. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.8; Price Limitation, to read:

$361,957.

3. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services Section 2. Subsection 2.7, by adding Paragraph 2.7.19., to
read:

2.7.19. The Contractor shall ensure patients seeking services receive a Doorway referral for
.  substance use and ongoing care coordination if the individual:

2.7.19.1 Enters care directly through the Contractor; and .

2.7.19.2 Consents to information sharing with the Doorway(s).

4. ■ Modify.Exhibit A. Scope of Services, Section 4, to read:

4. Reporting Requirements

.  4.1 The Contractor shall prepare and submit ad hoc data reports, respond to periodic
surveys, and other data collection requests as deemed necessary by the Department
and/or SAMHSA.

5. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, by adding Section 5, Performancie Measures; to read;

5. Performance Measures

5.1 The Contractor shall collaborate with the. Department to enhance contract
management; improve results and adjust program delivery and policy based on
successful outcomes.

6. Modify Exhibit A Scope of Services, by adding Section 6, State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant
Standards, to read:

6. State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standard

FIT/NKNH..Inc > Amendment iVt - Conlreclor Initials

RFA-2019-BDAS-02-RECOV-P2-A01 Page lot5 Date

fkU

2020
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Recovery Housing for Individuals with OUD

6.1. In order to receive payments for services provided through SQR grant funded
initiatives, (he Contractor shall ensure each Site;

6.1.1. Establishes formal Information sharing-and referral agreements with all
Doorways for substance use services that comply with all applicable
confidentiality laws, including 42 CFR Part 2.

6.1.2. Completes client referrals to applicable Doorways for substance use
services svithln two (2) business days of. a client's admission to the
program.

6.2. The Contractor shall provide the Oepanment with a budget narrative within thirty (30)
days of the contract effective date.

6.3. The Contractor shall meet with the Department within sixty (60) days of the contract
effective date to review contract Implementation.

6.4. The Contractor shall provide the Department with timelines and implementation plans
associated with SOR funded activities to ensure services are in place within thirty (30)
days of the contract effective date.

6.5. The Contractor and/or referred providers shall ensure that all uses of flexible needs

funds and respite shelter funds are in compliance with the Department and SAMHSA
requirements.

-  6.6. The Contractor and/or referred providers shall assist clients with enrolling in public or.

private health insurance, if (he client is determined eligible for such coverage and will
have staff trained In Presumptive Eligibility for Medicald.

6.7. The Contractor and/or referred providers shall accept clients on M^icaid Assisted
Treatment (MAT) and facilitate access to MAT on-site or through referral for all clients'
supported with SOR grant funds, as clinically appropriate.

6.8. The Contractor and/or referred providers shall coordinate with the NH Ryan White
HIV/AIDs program for clients identified as at risk of or with HIV/AIO.S.

6.9. The Contractor and/or referred providers shall ensure that all clients are regularty
screened for tobacco use. treatment needs and referral to the QuitLlne as part of
treatment planning.-

6.10. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Departrrienl to understand and comply with
all appropriate Department. State of NH, Substance Abuse and Mental Health

Services Administration (SAMHSA), and other Federal terms, conditions, and
• requirement.

6.11. the Contractor shall attest the understanding that SOR grant funds may not be used,
directly or indirectly, to purchase, prescribe, or provide.marijuana or treatment using
marijuana. The Contractor agrees that:

6.11.1. Treatment in this context Includes the treatment of opioid use disorder
(OUD).

6.11.2. Grant funds also cannot be provided to any individual who or organization
that provides or permits marijuana use for the purposes of Jjeating
substance use or menial disorders. f/t f)

FIT/NHNH. Inc. Amendmenl #1 ConUaclOf Initials I
RFA-2Ol9-0DAS^2-ReCOV-O2-AOt Page 2 ol 5
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Recovery Housing for Individuals with OUD .

6.11.3. This marijuana restriction applies to all subcontracts and memorandums of

understanding (MOU) that receive SOR funding.

.6.11.4. Attestations will be provided to the Contractor by the Department.

6.11.6. The Contractor shall complete and submit all attestations to the
Department within thirty (30) days of contract approval.

6.12. The Contractor shall refer to Exhibit B for grant terms and conditions including, but

not limited to: '

6.12.1. Invoicing;

6.12.2. Funding restrictions; and

6.12.3. Billing.

7. Modify Exhibit 8. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment by replacing in its entirety with
Exhibit 8 Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, which is attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

8. Modify Exhibit 6-1 by reducing the total budget amount by $29,662, which is identified as unspent
funding that is being carried forward to fund the activities in this Agreement for SPY 21 as specified,
in part, in Exhibit 8-4 Amendment #1 NCE Budget.

9.. Modify Exhibit B-2 by reducing the total budget amount by $2,975, which is identlHed as unspent
funding that is being carried forward to fund the activities in this Agreement for SPY 21 as specified,
in part, in Exhibit 8-4 Amendment #1 NCE 8udget.

10. Add Exhibit 8-4 Amendment #1, NCE Budget, which is attached he'reto and incorporated by
reference hereini. - , ,

11. Add Exhibit 8-5 Amendment #1, SOR II Budget, vrhich is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

12. Add Exhibit 6-6 Amendment #1, SOR II Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

FIT/NHNH, Inc Amendment 01 Contractor Initials

RPA-20ig-BDAS-02-RECOV-02-A01 • Page S Of 5 Date

Alp
1277172020
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
.  Recovery Housing for Individuals with OUD '

All terms and condilions of the Contract not inconsistent with this Amendment #1 remain in full force and
effect. This amendment shall be retroactively effective to September 29, 2020 upon the date of Governor
and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the dale written below.
V  , * . *

State of New Hampshire
Oepartment of Health and Human Services

12/21/2020

Date

•  hrf.

Title. Director

12/21/2020.

Date

FIT/NHNH, Inc

gprtMa^DcvMn

Title: President & CEO

FIT/NHNH. Inc

RFA-2019-BDAS-02-RECOV02.A01

ArhendmentCl

Page 4 of 5
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Recovery Housing for Individuals with QUO

The preceding Amendment, having beer^ reviewed by this office, is approved as to form; substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

OeevUg^ey.

12/22/2020 I

Dale Pinds
Title; Attorney

I hereby cenify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: • (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date. Name: "
Title:

FIT/NHNH. Inc . Amendmeni«l

RFA-2019-BOAS-O2-RECOV^2-A01 Page 5 ol 5
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Recovery Housing for Individuals with ODD

EXHIBIT B Amendment #1

Methods arid Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. This Agreement is funded by 100% Federal funds from the State Opioid Response Grant, as
awarded on 09/30/2018, by the U.S; Department of Health and Human Services. Substance

Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration. CFDA #93.788, FAIN H79TI081685, and

as awarded on 09/30/2020, by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services,

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, CFDA /^93.786, FAIN

H79TI0B332S.

.2. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfiirment of this Agreement, and shall be In accordance with the approved line item, as
specified in Exhibit B-1 Budget through Exhibit B-6 Amendment #1 Budget.

3. The Contractor shall seek payment for services, as follows;

3.1. First, the Contractor shall charge the client's private insurance or other payor sources.

.  3.2. Second, the Contractor shall charge Medicare.

3.3. Third, the Contractor shall charge Medicaid enrolled individuals, as follows:

3.3.1. Medicaid Care Management: If enrolled with a Managed Care Organization

(MCQ), the Contractor shall be paid in accordance with its contract .with the

,  MCO.

3.3.2. Medicaid Fee for Service: The Contractor shall bill Medicaid for services on the
/ Fee for Service (FFS) schedule.

3.4. Foudh. the Contractor shall charge the client in accordance with the Sliding Fee Scale

Program..

3.5. Lastly, if any portion of the amount specified in the Sliding Fee Scale remains unpaid,
charge the Department for the unpaid balance.

4. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the fifteenth (15th)
working day of the following month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for
authorized expenses incurred in the prior month. The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is
completed, dated and returned to the Department in order to Initiate payment. -Invoices shall

be net any other revenue received towards the services billed In fulfillmen.t.of this agreement.
The Contractor shail ensure:

4.1. Backup documentation includes, but is not limited to: ■

4.1.1. General Ledger showing revenue and expenses for the contract.

4.1.2. Timesheels and/or time cards that support the hours employ^§, worked for
wages reported under this contract. [ ̂

Pif/NHNH.tnc Exhibit BAmendmeni tl Conlrtctor Iniiiats I
1777177020

RFA-2Ol9-0OAS-O2-ReCOV<2-AOi Pegotof^ Date

Rev.Ol/08/iS '



DocuSiQn Envelope 10: 205lF7fi»4CA»420S-A07C-62EAeceB2680

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Recovery Housing for Individuals with OUD

EXHIBIT B Amendment #1

4.1.2.1. Per 45 CFR Part 75.430(i)(l) Charges to Federal awards for salaries
and wages must be based on records that accurately reflect the work
performed.

I

4.1.2.2. Attestation and time tracking templates, which are available to the
Department upon request. j

4.1.3. Invoices supporting expenses reported.

4.1.3.1. Unallowable expenses include, but are not limited to:

4.1.3.1.1. Amounts belonging to other programs.

4.1.3.1.2. Amounts prior to effective date of contract.

4.1.3.1.3. Construction or renovation expenses.

4.1.3.1.4. Food or water for employees.

4.1.3.1.5.' Directly or Indirectly, to purchase, prescribe or-provide
marijuana or treatment using marijuana. - i

4.1.3.1.6. Fines, fees, or penalties. '

'  4.1.3.1.7. Per SAMSHA requirements, meals are generally

unallowable unless they are an integral part of a conference
'  grant or specifically stated as an allowable expense in the

FOA. Grant funds may be used for light snacks, not to
exceed three dollars ($3.00) per person for clients.

4.1.3.1.8. Cell phones arid cell phone minutes for clients.

4.1.4. Receipts for expenses within the applicable state fiscal year. !

4.1.5. Cost center reports. ■ 1 .

4.1;6. Profit and loss report. ]
4.1.7. Remittance Advices from the insurances billed. Remittance Advices do not

'  need to be supplied with the invoice, but should be retained to be available upon

request.

. 4.1.8. Information requested by the Department verifying allocation or offset based on
third party revenue received.

4.1.9., Summaries of patient services reveriue and operating revenue and other
financial information as requested by the Department. . !

•

5. The Contractor is responsible for reviewing, understanding, and complyip§-i*vith further

PIT/NHNH, Inc Etfilbil 8 Amendment t1 Contrsclor Inilieb

1777172020
RFA-20l»-eOAS-O2.RECOV<t2.A01 . ^ I P#flo2of4 Date I

Rev, 01/08/19
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Recovery Housing for Individuals with ODD

EXHIBIT B Amendment #1

6.

restrictions included in the Funding Opportunity Announcement (FDA).

In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature^and emailed to
melissa.girard@dhhs.nh.gov, or invoices may be mailed to;

SOR Financial Manager

Department of Health and Human Services
105 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

7.

8.

9.

The Contractor agrees that billing submitted for review after twenty (20) business days of the
last day of the billing month may be subject to non-payment. |

'  ' ' !
The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each

invoice, subsequent to approvai of the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds are available.

The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the contract
completion date specified in Form P-37. General Provisions Block 1.7 Completion Date."

10. The Contractor rhust provide the services in Exhibit A. Scope of Sen/ices, in compliance with
funding requirements.

11. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld. In whole or In part
in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions of Exhibit A, Scope

including failure to'submit required monthly and/or quartery reports. '

of Services.

12. Notwithstanding Paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited

amounts within .the price limitation and adjusting encumbrances betweeri State
to adjusting

Hscal Years

and budget class lines through the Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both
parties, without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified.

13. Audits

13.1. The Contractor is required to submit an annual audit to the Department if any of the
following conditions exist: : .

13.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750..000 or more in federal funds

received as a subrecipienl pursuant to 2 CFR Part 200. during the most recently

completed fiscal year.

13.'T2. Condition 8 - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the requirements of
NH RSA 7:28, lll-b. pertaining to charitable organizations receiving support of
$1,000,000 or more.

FIT/NHNH, Inc

ftFA-20l8-8DAS-02-RECOV^2-A01

Rev. 01/08/19

E)d>[bit 8 Amendmenl 01

Pegs 3 0' *

Corrector Iniiiais
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Recovery Housing for Individuals with QUO

EXHIBIT B Amendment #1

13.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required by Security and
Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to submit an annual financial audit.

13.2. If Condition A existS; the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit perforrned by
an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the Department witriin 120 days
after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year^ conducted in accordance with the
requirements pf 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative
Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

13.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual financial

audit performed by an independent CPA within 120 days after, the close of the
Contractor's fiscal year. j

13.4. Any Contractor that receives an amount equal to or greater than $250,000 from the
Department during a single fiscal year, regardless of the funding souijce, may be
required, at a minirrium, • to submit annual financial audits performed by an
independent CPA if the Department's risk assessment determination indicates the
Contractor is high-risk'. j
In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is13.5.

understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for
any state or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department all payments
made under the Contract to which exception has-been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.

FJT/NHNH. Inc

fiPA-20l&-BDAS-02-RECOV-O2-A0l

Rev.01/0S/19

Exhibll B Am«Admem

P09«4 or 4

Conlractor InllUls

Oslo
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AIVD HUMAN SERVICES

DimtON FOR BEHAVORIAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET; CONCORD. NH 03J0I
,  603-271.9544 i-«>(V4S2-334S EiL 9544

Fii: 603-271-4332 TOO Acceu: 1-600-735-2964 irww.dt)hi.nh.cov

May 16. 2019

His Excellency, Govemcr Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House
Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division For Behavoriat Health, to enter
into agreements with the vendors listed below, in an amount not to exceed $496,096, to provide Recovery
Housing services and supports to individuals with Opioid Use Disorder (CUD) effective upon Governor
and Councii approvai. through September 29. 2020. 100% Federai Funds. .

Vendor Name Vendor Number Location Contract

Amount

Oismas Home of New-

Hampshire
0290061-8001 102 Fourth Street Manchester,

NH 03102
$100,001

Families In Transition 015773O-BOO1 122 Market Street

Manchester. NH 03101
$195,795

Hope on Haven Hill #275119-Bp0l 326 Rochester Hiil Road

Rochester. NH 03867 .
$200,300

Total: $496,096.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2019. and are anticipated to t>e
available in State Fiscal Year 2020 and 2021 upon the availabiiiiy and continued appropriation of funds
In the future operating budgets, with authority to adjusr amounts within the price limitatiori and adjust
encumbrances between Stale Fiscal Years through Ihe Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-92-920510-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DlV. BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SERVICES. STATE
OPIOID RESPONSE GRANT.

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Ctass Title Job Number . Total

Amount

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057040 $144,529

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057040 $279,678

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 920,57040. $71,889

Total: $496,096



OocuS^n Envelop* It); 20St P7Q»4CAM20$^7C-«3EASC&B2666

His ExccDency. Governor Christo^ef T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Pafle2of3

EXPLANATION

The ̂ rpose of this request is to provide Recovery Housing services and supports to individuats
with Opioid Use Disorder who need housing in a sup^rted and safe recovery housing environment. New
Hampshire has minimal capacity to serve individuals in need of recovery housing. There are few options
for specialty populations who have complex needs and/or gender*speciric housing. This request will fund
recovery housing statewide to service specific populations with Opioid Use Disorder that includes

, • A Recovery Residence for females only;

•  A Recovery Residence for individuals who have complex criminal backgrounds

that limit access to other publicly funded housing options; and

•  Recovery Residences to serve the general population who are In need of housing
in a supported, safe, recovery environment.

The State of New Hampshire' received funding through the Substance Abuse and Mental Health
Services Administration State Opioid Response grant opportunity. This grant is being used to make

. critical investments In the Substance Use Disorder system In order to reduce unmet treatment needs,
reduce opioid overdose fatalities and increase access to Medication Assisted Treatment over the next
two (2) years. The State is implementing evidence*based methods to expand treatment, recovery ar>d
prevention, services-to individuals with Opioid Use Disorder. These funds will strengthen established
programs that have had a positive impact on the opioid crisis as well as expand the capacity for programs
to assist individuals struggling with ari Opioid Use Disorder.

The Department is contracting for these services for the first time. The Contractors-are expected
to serve a maximum of eighty-four (84) individuals on any given day. The Department will be closely
monitoring the numbers actually seived as well as the lengths of stay and the coordination of care for.
other health and social services.

>

The Ooorv/ays are.responsible for providing comprehensive-assessments at several time
Inten/ais. specifically at intake, three (3) months, six (6) months, and upon discharge; spedftcally data on
client-related outcomes including.-^t not limited to recovery status, criminal justice involvement,
employment, and housing needs at the time intervals listed at>ove. This data will enable the Department

.  . to measure short and long-term outcomes associated with State Opioid Response-funded initiatives and
to determine which programs are generating the best results for the clients served.

The three (3) vendors included in this requested action were selected for this project through a
competitive bid process. This request represents three (3) of the,selected four (4) vendors. The
Department anticipates awarding one (1) additional contract that will be submitted to Governor and
Executive Council for approval for the next scheduled meeting. A Request for Applications was posted
on the Department of Health and Human Sehrices' websile from October 22. 2018 through November
t3. 2018. In addition, on October 23. 2018 an email of notification of the RFA was distributed to
stakeholders throughout the State. The Department received six (6) applications. The applications were
reviewed and scored by a team of individuals vrith program-specinc knowledge. The review included a
thorough discussion of the strengths and weaknesses of the applications. The Score Summary Is
attached.

As referenced in the Request for Applications and in Exhibit C-1 of this contract, this Agreerrient
has the option to extend for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Council.
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His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and (he Honorable Ccuno)
Page 3 of 3

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, Recovery Housing
services and supports to individuals with Opioid Use Disorder who need housing in a supported, safe
recovery housing environment may not be avaiiabte, which could result in individuals backsliding during
their road to recovery, which would intensify the Opioid Crisis and lead to an increase in overdose deaths
in NH.

Area served; Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from ihe Substance Abuse and Mental HeattK Services
Adrninistration, State Opioid Response Grant, (CFDA #93.788, FAIN TI08t685)

\
In the event that the Federal (or Other) Funds become no longer available. General Funds vrili not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

|ey A. Meyers
imissioner

Th4 Depo'lmtnt d ond Huttton Scrviat' hiiuion it tojoin conmunUia ond fnmUia
in fXCvidinsopportunUia fordtisem (o orh'XiV ond indtpfndtntM.
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/
f OiW NUNl BEA P47 ;(Terilb& ̂ S)

RfA»;

Noii^.- 'iiili eafeetnent.andill bf.itf »UMHmcftU;rttil"ki»>Ty;pu>lio
..EicwOveC^wlfikip^ A/iyiArOTinirttt)haibpriviic,
•'.be dcaHyi^raJtMlo egcru^^-fttr^.lo'in.wri^^^ tigungtbe ̂ flUui.

.ACREOilEKT .. .
'^The'SUle orNew HafflpshUe ihe'Cotunclbr hereby muiuaDy ij;rtt,pS;follo>v^

GENERAL PROyiSlONS

'I. rosprnFicATiur*.

1. l_. S.uue >^eney;'hbme. _
b^uinrni bad Hu^'

1,4' Sute Agency
1-^ Pleastnl Sired
Cwidinii.HHOjjOIOtj?'

\'ii Gociiractor Ntate

FiT/NHNH.
1.4 ■ Oonlractor Address

Mirkd Sims;
Titanchut9*.' NH.OJ 101

] J Oimridof Ptwjc '
Hvanber

1.6: Accoum Number.

6S:^^ib92j9205,l0^7()4O-.
woo.iowoo'ni

I.7'-C6fflpletion Ddc'

StpiunbiJ y,'2^o'^g.^\''
1.8 Prk.e.Umltdi.on-

1183.793

1.9 C^rwtiflsPfrioo.ror.Sute^i^X

Glcm;ipf.QorLt^M tM.Pr^rui^'

I.IO Stme AgencyTd^horu:Number
•M3-27l.Si63r "

4  . *

l.'ll CoM^orSignatory 1.1'2' Name .and Title,or Crwi^t'or Sifai.oty

'Maureen Beeuregard,. Pr^Jdent

1.13 Adknowtedgem^: Sttle or New HampthlrQ County or KUbborough.

^  '< beforeihcuod^fin^ pe/imally^ppevM.ibep^ injblo^ 1 J3.9>;uiiirK^^^
proyen'tobc ihc person,u^ose namii'ti Oand-ockoowi^gcd Uiarit/he cmcU^ ihisdoeumnil ib'ifae.cepa'city .
indioicdinblocV 1.12.-'
1:1 J.I Signiuire orNol^;Pub![e Of.JustiM o.rihe Pace ^ RUm;A.-Syri^ .Itotoy h«te-

t  l

1.13.2' NinKftndTiilc.orNoi^tv.'Juipice.oriSe Pe'we-

RulS^^yreh. Adn^

1.14 S.We;A6wV Siputufc ■• 1.15 .''N^cnd Title'of Slil'd i^gcnc'y Sigwory

1.16 Appreval'by'the' NlH: DeparUbent or AdrmAjflrUlon, Division or PenorioH^/V'9PP^^nib/(^ '

By: • pir^'lOT, On:'

|;IT Apprbval'byite'Anon^Ga^(Fom};Subfiahce.erd.Execuiion)(^o/);7^M^^

l.U, APRTOvirbr.OM^O^mor pnd Execiuiye Covocil .(i/eppUeahl^
By P^:

Fagc I or4
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•FORM NUMBER P-37.ifvfft»OB ̂ 15)

:Sobj«j:- Rw--*--76r9:bDXs:n7-p^r^v:rfiAcc»w^'Hn\..i"«^
Notict:- This:DfirremcnlDnd«aioriu;.a»«hmCT.i;sihnIl-^omep\)b ic.^p6^

EXccumT.fcouncil for approyal'- Any O' propnoa^ rouJi
be cl«ariy;ideniitiedJo..U)e'agC!i?cy Of^ .'ag!^ W in>Tilln&jpnor.i;o;ji^ini comrtci.

ACKKEMJuNT

ty State oYNcwHAm Gomnicior hefcby muiualjy a^jree as rpUows:
CENEKAI. PROVISIONS

■I. identtfication. . ^
1: r Sikie'Ai^y fianie'
N^H l^,ahmcrit:6Tnc?^ -

IJ Slate. Agency Address;
l'29.Pl'ea.'<«n>'Si'reet

•.Gqncordl-KH 63301.J.SJ?

iContrMtofN^-
Flt/lifF^ Iw;

1:4 ^Cpntrocipf Address.
122 Martcel $tfefi

'K<ajiqh^.er,;N.H.03ipt

•1.5 '.C^ti^pr Phpnc
'N,umbcr

1.6 ^'Account Number,.. ) • ■. • . •• •*•

•05-095.J|»2^93'65 lO-7Wb-
0006^102.500731

I.-7. Compldibn Dale

Sirpicmbcr .30, •3020

1:9 PnM'UrhitiUiua

•iGp'itmfting On"iCCT fb'r.Sttl

.BuiW"u;pf iCpnVfiiaS ^ Procure

•Agcndy

mcnt

1.. 10.'Siwc, Agency Tcl.cp.l;wn'cJ4,umbtf
663..2'7l.963.i'- ' ' ^

.V.ll .Contr^cir Sjgnntui^ 1.12 NimcAnd-Tiilc'.ofGoW.rtc.t0.r.SigTuiofy

Maureert. Beaure^ard. President

1.1-3 /AckiJ§,wlcaKC,m<iu:--SfQtcbfNoy'Han}P«>ii'oCouniyor Ktobo^
•Gin- Merct>.15.'26l'9 be'forc-ihe:undersign^ officer, pcrrtnally.dpjKqr^d.ihe iiei^ ia.cniiiicd.in bl^V

i&V tfe ^ f J1-; rmd-actrioWlcdscd Lhrn^sAtc «cculcd th.sdocumem in ihc-capaciiy-,
;i.l3,;r Siij^turt;ofN^6l.^..PvH'5®^^ .RlriT4'A.'eVRD<,NotB7yfAito

mjitMy ^ ^

1:"14- SwjcAgC^Signilare. l.l-S ■ 'Name and Tjtlc.bCSlnlcAgcncy.Slgnaiftry

1.16 AppmvaJ.by'ihe-NiH. DcpanmcritorAdininisrattbn; Dtn.<»ctof-Persof<ntF'^7/o;p////cAft/c;
Ujr-

1  17 Appro\'al-hy ibpAnomey;Gener«I (Fonn,-,Sub)tryKc qrKl.li.ye^iipW^
By:

I.IJ" •Appro\il^yihcA;o>^onSorcfid Executive.,CpuiKil {\fofipUcni^c}
Br-

Tajjc 1 of-^
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r- EMPL^VAlENTpFCOSTI^G^
BEPp^^ORNlEp. fhi;.^iVofN5W^Ha^ip.:^^^

ihc^cncynd,CTiifici,"''''bl^ijJ.lj(''Sjfl ').cngfl5e5;
ioniecw^ idcritinjaiin-block;.! 3 ̂Coltiti*cl(>f'')>.perrofTn-;
<an'd Ok Cdnl'fifciprskb'll
,bo'ih,-ridCTTirra^ inihcujuchcd
:E)p^lBi;r Auihic^^ hcTtin byrtPerencc-

.3. =E/t:KCTWE DATF/GOMPJlETlpN.p^^
J.I Notvkiihjnndtng afty-provillon.oriKis.Afirecni^ to-lhc

-.^niTBry; subjcct.toiK«'appn5yul-oYtlic.r»qm^^
Fjtccuirve'.^tKil.ofihc'Siote.drN iT_ ̂

Iwfcunder, sball^bccdfee crrccUy'e.pn;!hc;.d'j^^^^^ »Ke'(^;yer^
and E*«cuOye'CbuncilJp(W\x;-iW ihdicbi^ In
blodt-! :l'i.}uni^..!«,'«ych:aiipip^ i5 resuin^..m' wKicb ciso
l)K A8FKV?!.Sb^ .t!|Cc'6'%.e|rcciiNt'M

Is jngncd by I»k Siic-A^wcy^^^ sh^^ block-

3:2.1f ̂ ii^jiUTodof cdnim'}^^^ ftfior-ioihc.
by ihc'.OjntTwipr prior

ip ihi £it«ijVpUo^^ fbl» of ihe
Cohtr^pri ajnd.iii thccv.ent.itor.!l)is?Aj^cmcni-doc^
■fe6n\c;ciT«irivc;.lhiSiai havc'nb Habiliiy lO Ok
•.Qoninitbf,;iftc!iKjih8wiihb«J'limitt«ion,;afly,obH^ii ip.'pay
Ok' CiontraaorTor.any coas incuned or Savic«;p«forni'cd.
:CwifBaar.roufl.compl.«ic-Bll S^ico by.ihe Cdmpldlon f3alc
rs^jrKd-in.bicick V.7.;' ■

*4. .CPT!rarnONAl^r<ATUREpf.ACREF.ArcM'..
•f^W'Wih^ortdihg any'p'rowsioti pf ihj.^ AgrccmcnJ to the-'
■c6'nlr*r)7nil;dWi^ioi}S:6flhc:;Staicii^^
wlilicibi-limiididft,-^ ofipyn^w
cMiingchi ypon.iKc p\fmlabili,^''a^ c'omin'ueb i^prppriftiion
':oT'fu^ onO:io\:tt;>cv^^ Vhij' ihfcS't^c bcMiabloYorany.
fgndi • ifl;Uc.KrVdj;a.rcd»^^^

•Vppf^niied fund S'alc ihali have Ok nfihi io .wiOihcId
^'ymchi'Vmil Wch'furids'-b^ bW .'^11
luve'^righi.ib lWs'"Agitemcni;im^ dpon

..giving ih^Cbhiri^oriKircc^ •
• iHfll I 'W'r^«i r^: io'traiwricV;^^^^
' to tKc'Accbuni idchiificd In block 1-.6 In ihc-.c\"CT,i'funds in ihiu-
Xccounrore reduced or-una^iilablc.-
•  ' "i

. S.-CON^CT PRIC^WCE
'•PAVTS'lEfST.-
f 5.1 'TTicijonrt^i-.pnce.-iw of:pi:^en«,
•pai^coi oreidmiiriaj. and 'nwit: p^iculariy de>cnb<d ih
■•wi rrntv ri '.-..kl.L kVroin k>i.mfVri>nrr

e.ip^^v'pf;whaicvcrWi^ ih«Coi>t«.iOf:Io the
^o"rm.incc' K^Y, Wd'shdll bc.i,he'only-:and ihb Qomplcic
cjjmpcn^iipn lO'ihc.Gpniiikctbr-fdMhjk §^ic«.''r^ Siaie
iipil haw'*^ ilabili|y-io the Cpniractor-bi^f l^n'thc coniraci
pncc- I,

Page 2 of 4.-

5v3.The Stiic fam;« th'c oghi toVoff^" from Sn'>\on»daflis
OtlicTwjse-pajjiblcjd the' G.oniTi'^pr.yndct this Ajrccmcoi
th«e.}iquidaiedjbmbunu rcqulf^ or pcrifhiiK^^^ N.H. RSA
i^b:ViKrqi^K.fi^A-86:?;^^^^^^ provisipnlof-law.
:5.4!^9!.wiifi'jiinding ony provisibri iri.lKis Ag^mcnt to 0»e
cbflifiuy,.tui4.notwiihsBtfidingunw()CCi.ed circutiitonces, in
'no event shall it^ipiai cf-nli pay^u autbpriied. or wually
m3bc'btreuod'cir'rd.xcccb'.i^ UmltanoniKct forth in block

. .. ... - . .- - .

V. CPJIPIJANCE BY COiVrRAGTOKiVVrrB LAWS
-A^'D RECULAtlONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMEKT
ott'ortunitSt. ^ ,
''fi.'.rih'c'onncctibft' with the p^ormancc of ihc S_trvi'c"5i.-.thc
.Cqnintctor nhal[.'comply tfviOi.eJI.jaaloiei, tav>?.-regulaiiohs,
^.aridofdmoffcdcnul,;$iaJerC.otm^ pf fmmicipal ouih^ii^
which imposCiany.pbiigaiion ,or-du^ lippn^ihe Con^dor,.
including, but not' limiietj to. cisij ngKljS and c'quai;0^p<j^^
tow*.-- 'fhis m.ay'include ahco^ujremCTtjoijt^
oids'ltod scr>Hcq;s lo-ervtu'rc llttt peraot^ .with .comrnuni^ion
disabijiiics.-iiKludin'g-Visi.bn;'!^^
commulsitaic'wriib, t^civc rnfornttti'ph.f^ cdntxy
ihfprination I'o-thc'&hiiW
il^il.fprnplyW'lth^'alliapp^^^^^ . .
6:2 raring;il^.i<TTn dftWs /^ri^en'Ctlvc Gonirtictor.Khall
nioi.diajiminiic'igiiinintn^l^^'.or'bp^^^^^
cmplbyn^t of rode, coiw. Wijion, creed, age; «.Vv
h^rijicnp u'a)'nnerit'ation. or nailon^'origin ond tthll.t^e
afTirrndlrve ocliun ip,pro.vcnt>u;chdLKrimiriatlon"
;6:3*irihis Aijf^mqnt U/fundcd in any pan b'y mooies-ofthe
Unite^d S.t'««,.'^e''G^ ^1'.'®®?!!.!).'^
"prqwiioris of iiceculivc-.^deVNo.-.l l.246;('!EjqtiBl
'Empto)mie'ht.'0'pi»rt.uriit\'"),-qs,supplcmcKtrf by'ihe
r^Vatiphfonhc Unitcd;S,tb;ifcV-^
'd:lYR::-.Piirt-S6i:-and wnihahy rul^,rtgutolibQi.w^^
as thcl^iBic-'ofN.mv Hninpshirepr thy U.ni W Swcs isw'c to
irnpicmeni thcsc''rcgulotipn's.-TiK'Gontwio^^^^^
•pfefittt thd Siiuc'dr-Uhiitid 'Sjaics'-nccc^' to any-of.Utc'
'^ntmctbf'sitw^ Scj^hts-.fo'niK-puf^se of
.tttcenaiArng-cJmp.llW.e regulaiipiiSahd briJcrs;.
pnd ihj:.covcflaHts,--lcrins/ao'd cf^uioiis..of thi.vAigreciiKnL

•7..l.'TiK'e,6htriKiqr-<fia^ at ii.s oWn Mpenxcprovidt all
-'pcr»'rincj.h<tw.ao'io;pcrfofTn^^ The Con'tractof.
•v^ar^ts that'iU,pcTsdnhcl tmgBgod in the ScrS-iccssh'idl be
.quiJificd I'o perform tHe'S.ervicw,;; ond shall bc-propcriy
iiccnscd ood.otherwise oulhdri.zcil.io.do w>-tu»d;er all a'ppIlcBWc
lovkjs: , . ^ . .

•7.-2 Unless oihcrwisc tuilKorizcd.in.twiihg,.during thc. tcnn'';of
"this Agrc^ehV.-and.'fdr p/t^eric^.of.flx^f^ mbritM^^ the
rCumplciioApate ii(.bi<Kk
janti.ilrtll npt'p^iijflhy-sui^^^ firip'dr-
cdnSjwifon wiih 'w^^ it is engag^ in o-'combioed effort lb'
pcrfbrm.liic S'cnnccs. to hirc;-dny'person'wbais'-a Stale

.employeeor.dlTicto.l, whd.i.sVmitcTially inyplv^ lo the
prOcurem'cni, Bduiinirfrotjoh.or perfqrmfiitce of iHw

'Gobiriiclorlriitials



booiSion EnveiOp« (0: 205IF79»4CA9^20.S^07C42EA8CBB2680

.Agiwiwni-

■fJ f»* Ciflinicms-pmcfr'sp^^ ®'"
•bcf" juccowV. tKVSiAtiW
;drVny;jji?^Ve«6)wnunig:tlw
•ih^^ConlrMtin^jp^^ foMhcSutc.

}

B •,EVENT OF DEFAULT^KME6ui.l . .. „ ...
;4:\ ;Any:o'h6or-mor'c dhhejWloxk^nfi ftcy o;..p.fT!/C,onl^6r.«^!.Uoos^Klle.on•c\xn^,o^.defM.I^>.e^
.{"EyeniofDcfaul't?):-
B.lCii'failurc to p«rfdmi.iht.:S<iVj.c9(ia.ti.tfaciorily <«'
'Kh^ulc;-

dflhis-^frcm^i.
8'.2 .Oppn
may like'any dr^'drwott

gitx-thi 'Cdnlwl^ odlice^jwiryids-if*-tv-titt
orDcfcuVtoni''^
'.t nr-limp- thirfv HOi

"h^'iimcIy.rcffirfiVd,;teWniiio'^

Vti.2 tl^GbnCTMtof a''wriucn.notic€:^.ifrtng ihcEwht

•whicb" during'.ihe ̂
.^nod TppWlhd^ai6;of'&^
'aci.CTiTiiit^,'ih^ihc-eoncn^^^^
'* i'i i '*U <!! ll' • A a L • MI Ar*.

;B.wfd'df C^Vaulv: ...
JSiid ir«W';A^«>ntnt,iis^^ and.pursuc.anyiof its;

pATA/AC<its<veoNFi;iiEi^>iuTV/.-
•pRiSEkVATlbN: . .. ... s -
•9'.'i'/!U'usi^Tn tUist.Agrwma.ni; ihc wofd ^d^.u*; slibll mean all.,

i'^ ro-^iw odd iKi ri'i^^cvc.fc^^^
•'^'ffomincd'or priiijiult^^^■■ A'grt^fncnt.-lcKjiu&ing.-btJt'oot.I'intlicd'IOi bJi.sturiic^T.cpohi,
.fii;cs;/o'nnul^:isuf>^ys.'

-  rdcofdifliv p.i.c\uriBirtp'fpdii.cilon4-.^\'n96i^
.graphic nrprejCTi3|io.fV^.c"om'^CT'p»;96ra^^

^i/ifUTdata
thctsl.itc;or'pdit'l>^,^^
.tin^ihif^irwmcnC^^^^ Staid.<ond

■ idiaU-lx fcl^cd loVhc; S.loi.€;upon dcmttnd;Of upon,
lirrniifiirton of th«'^ttttvc.itl^for^dpy. .
9'.0'<^nfidCTti\aliiy.pri^^^^ ^^iribc-fipy/niW by.^^.H. USA

fcpuirto'prtof .Wniicn-.tldpf?^'"®^ ihe-Sioic.

lO;'fEWsiif<ATyQ??-''(n
ihls'AgfeoritcnVfpf'ony ^&n.oihir(han'.Oj.C'Wi^^
Scov.e^-1 he .'ednfrici Of I'd y
Officer,.iwiOitijriWnTi'ftccn^
(imiirioiion'Ja'.ref^ ftepdrt*;;) dett'nbihg.in
jdcliit flJ,l"S<i^"'cc.r|;KrfOT^
.'d^-iiKluding-.iKe'!^^^^^ thcTom, pibjca-!f^uer,^nitfll.;i^ numfe;bf.'co^ics oftte
R'^k'iiidfhcVdcnti^^ Report
dAcfibcd'in thC'itttachc'd EJbllBl I' Ar

.11. CONT.foVCT.OR-S r'ei>t\qn;tp:,t»^;'^ inthe p^prntancc^df this •A'grceroent'thc'^p.tr^or.i^ in^lj _
• resp^U'6n-«ndq)endeni.cdnifaetof;-,andTs neiibc'r acvp^ent nor
.(mempidy«:dfihe Sitie^iWeiaiw.ihpieomrB^df ftor.'My.ofiu;.
• ■ofn^cas.:cmplpyeci. agcnl-s.of" mefntofMM ha^^wi^nly ip •
•bind iKeiStatcor receVvR;.Bny jjenpfiUi
•.or olhcr.ecnolumcnis pr6y»'dcd;.by.tKc Stale }6jita:cmployte.j..

■12. A'^'lCN>am/pEl-E!e.AT^
TTw :••

H n j n .t'W S. A i^V w ̂
cp.n^i;bf Ihc.Swe. Hdte,pf ihiScnnfe'-shal.l be •.
^tfcdnl'rKt^ .i?y .ii'S ̂ pnu;^ipVwi.i)w,ut-thc.pnor. urluen

.  ribiice ^.VoAwl of ine'S.iaic^.

Si8ic;:lls;dfficcrt:«nd.c^lpy.M^^ O" ciain«;
.lT^iim«';pr^nalVi^di;«ntJ>'K^I.^ •
Md brnpio'yccs-.by 6r-ob';'beHilljofXoy peiw of,*
b6s^ df-rcivilunf froniroHjing put-o.f (6r .which ntoy be
cleim.ed tO'dn!^.bufyl)"i^.actS'o^^^^Con*"rtor;N,dik?i^]wdi.'ng:'hc^^^
c.driw5^'5.i]^(l ^idwmwl.to.c.oium
jiavyr^jgn ihimunriy pf lie

Survive ihficmiqatl^.df^^^^

idpbtiin arid.mamlajn.in^ l.hc folldwing-
fiiisilfancc; ••■•• ..
r^XUpXpirKcnsivergericrBrii
claims of bodily l.nJuo^■ldc«/.b .or pipjKrty^donwg^^^^^^
id'f notlcw'thodS 1 ;6wiQ<ip^,.0!txu
laggregdie-i^and-
I'd! 1.2;speciai.'cfii^,pf jp\t.rtge"fpnp ^yefiftG'"d1.l
propjwty.witijeci ip\eu,bpVh8rapK;9..-2 bewin^^ in pjii^'nii^uni not
l^sihanflC^X'f'thX^^^^ sQlut'dflhc-propc'Jy.-"

'lV.-2'jite wiid.icsijd^H.btd
:bc onp^ilicy fdrrnj ondiCTddAirwi^pprpv^
'Ruic;dfHcw'Homps.fii"«^^^^ -
iiiwumn.c^ 6^ issd<^'by'fit$j
.•.■H^psfiirc.

■3 0T4 • hh a?
feoriirdcior-Initlols Itfnr

batcW^EX
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I4;3 TTk Wfioi&VorshtotfunU^'-ibJhyCdniraiiii^O^^
IdCTlifid In Wi^jl Kis;oiW
ofiSurihcc for|iali:'inis^

'shall; also fumi jlTioihVtontrtai^ ,
mVlocfe V hcr:»cccxS^^

r^rMttf for'^i'^ rcquirdlundcnhis.
. A^'riSni'nb iagf ihu Uufty j30):aays,prior jo the «plrolign
dete'^f ach.^f »ns« ;T^,«rtincaie(s) of

'li^iir^'ofijah^ rcJK»'®l$.thc»cof-^l bc:®U8ch^_ajid>ix
-Iccotpo.fttrf h^n byrefCTence/^h of
iiwiinuice ̂ 'il conuih'BxjauScrcquirioa ihc-.ins^^^ to
pfOsHdc ihe.&ntTBdmg.6lTlc^.id«nlir!Cjd!iD^bJw^ his
of to Successofi-rw,!*^ than chi^JiOJ dw.ph^ ̂ -nnin
.noilce:cfaincellatioo.or modificVuVhof

ls/wdHKERS''0MPE^^^^^
I'S.'I •By,sigain8:lhjs-.^tt'c"tticnv the ̂ onliwipr.o'Bn^,
CCfiifid Olid WfTO.Lsjto ihe CohirtCtof ix-ln.cor^litincc with'
orexcfi^ lhe|rc^i.rein<|ri(i'of chi^icf 281 *A
("ty^itrs' Ci>inpen!'ai(ih'J.
ry2yoii\c:ata\\. i6« Cpnmi.^of Isfubjefti to-ihc
i^uiftfnCTUjof -A. Gonifuctof shall
mainiiul^'Qhd'r^'ulfcfMy^^ assignee to,secufC'
an'd.mainloifiypa^^^ iGompeftsaiionun ,
cpflnjc^on'.wiivactiviiieS.wM ihe persoh proposes to
■im^naVc'pursuanMoiHlvAgrcenKnLvC^
■fwmith.ihediiTtnicilngdfficef.ld blo^ l.^.or his
or to juccessdr, proof of Wooers' Cdntpe.ftsation.ih ihe
man'nCTdMCflijela m Nll/JWA^^^
:dpp/ic^lc frte"wal(*]) iBcfcdf/whichw!ipll^bc:hiiachrtJ'M arc
iiSc.ofpQrili^.to^.by'rc'f^ |"hc:Stoic'shall not be.
•rrtpoitfibic ibr poymfni ofany-.WoiiicfS' ^omj^nintion
•prwiumVpr/.fof-aKy.other cWimo^
.iay'wbconTCVipr.pf^cni pfGonlrocior, •^\'hich might
^njisc .under cpbll^bJf ® f WoiiVs ,
^.(^'nipensidoniows ifi twncciion'wih ihcperfofmaiKcor the-
(SeKiccs uhder-ihis;!A^^
• Id.'WAIV^OFBkKA'Cn. No foiiure-by Ihe,.State to
■^fi^eDhyVfy*islo'"tsht^ ahy.fivicnt'.orr^ritull.shoU
1^' a'xvaiwf'of:lis'nfihi.S'uniK rcgiwd.to ihal tivenl of

..b^fauYi/or pfiy^sUbs^to Evctti of Default.^ No express ■■

..fdiiijre ib'CTlWcC;ari);.E^^ b^dcttned ®'
'ttirvcr.orihcirlghj'of ihcSuBc lo'enforcc cac.hiun.d.ol.l .br.thc.
provlsidiv towf.'opo"'®"y''^"'^herpr,otto of Default
'on ihe pa.ft of the Contractor;-

I tjs'pxVcE. .Any riptK^^^ h^V.l9 i^r parly
^li'^decmed, 10 to'\*c-bcai (July deli%Tf^ .(5r[eivcniat lihe
iimc brmailirt^by:ccyO,fied''TO^ in nlJhiicdSiat^Pola^Gfrfc^tSdre id'iKc.'p^)«-i(.i the addresses
^v^n1,n blcKi^J,'i>afld
18.,"Ah.t ENUM Efirr. This Ajrccmcnl-moy am.md«d;

dij«h?ji^cd.:on]y.by an'initruincnV m;,\\Tillfig signed
by'the'parties he'r'cto and only aficr bppfpyn! of such
ajtoidmenii iviiver ot.di'sctoge.by ihc;6d'\'fem^^
ipjtceuiivc^iourtci of New i Ituiip'shire unless r>o

.sucKappipviiJ is'r'cquiftd under ibe.cifc'uotflances pursuant to.
Suieiiaw. rule pr'poticy.

Jp. CON^RUCllpN OK agreement ;SNp TERMS.
Tbi^, AgrcOT^fii, shall bdcpasirtcdjin-accortJnr^ writh-.lhc
.-'lavi;? of.ihe^S^e'of Ncw Humpshirdi^ Is.blndinftuponaod
inuf6 tb.ihc.bencfii or.ihc'paft ihclrrespccti've
'siiCjCcisw wording used 'in ihis'AgftciTKm
'i.s'ti>c u-oramgVho5cn by ,lbe'parti«;iO .express,their mutual
• iiiierh, a^'i^.'nilc of coo^ruciloo Wu bc appiied.o|aln«.oT
Infas-br'ofany

'20. THIRD PA'liTliiS. Thc paniea-.Kcrrto.do not.ihl«nd-ib'
;b^nt-any third partia and ihU.Agreieme.ht .^^.ll.nw. be
cdnsihicd io confer any. such bcncTif.

21. UEADINCSi 'Thcheatjings^ih^'gl^ ihc.AgTrc'nwira.
ore for rereretwe purposes pnly/^d.ihe «t>t^:cbniain^
.therein shali-.ih'np.w'By ^'.beid t.Kj^p|a1^^rnoaif)': orniilifyjor;
aid in.the ltsierprdatiOn;-.cbn.bKiciifi.rt
provisions, bi" ihis.ApCC'rne'fiiL

ii.-SPEClAU PRO.Vl'SIO.NS^ Addhibnal pmvijuotis set.
'fprth.iii'ihc'a'|iiK,h'^ .ipcMn^ O^^iKQiport^^^ l)ertin by
rcfc'rctice;

IS. SEVERABILITV. Inihccvemnnyor'ihepro.ylooiuof
ihix-Agfttmcnl urcheid byia cpon'of cpmpclCTi jun.^ciien to
be c'pniniry tp;a'ny.flute or federal, law. the remainirig •pipvi5ipftv.oTlhis';Afi'ricmc'W unlrrcrpaii.t'n full force and
efTecf..

,F.NTIREACREEiSlEffr..OLhii Agreement ^urhi^.moy
b'c.cxcc'uiM'in.'a riumbcr'pf.'cbunierp^.x,eitichpf.whichshall
bc.deemed in original, cj^.iitut.CTVheeoUfc and
un(laSlflnding.toWeen .itt 'p^i«^,^d wpcf^e^iall pfiof
Agrcerhcni.s.'adjJ uiMcf^and.ifigx rdtfinj'^retp.'

Page 4 of'4
..Conlroclo'r Ihitialii'.lmj

Dare^W
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Now rtomp«hlro Doftfirtmont;©! McaUh^
Rbco'vory Hbuslno-fof-iiwJHiiiduala^^ OpIoW Uw pls.pfdfif

EjihlbUA.

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services
i;i;. The'Gchti^Ctor shalliSubmU-a detailed description of, the l^hgM-ag'^ e^istari^.

•^ewces Ibei'wlllp'fp.vid^ to persons with limit^ English proriaenpyto/en.sy.re.
meariin^f accessrio their prlograrns aridifpr-Services \^,thlti" tpn (10) days oi
•th'e'.co!nlra'pt:"^ecti d^t©'.

1-2; The Cbnlracior ag'rees th2it,,Ho'the.:e^ent future J.eglsJ action by ihe .New.
Hampshire General Co.uit-.br federal :pr state ̂ urt prders.may h.ave an, lm^.«
drt the. Seivices descpt^ herein, ihe;:State Agericy has the right td rnooify
SePrice.p.npntieV:^^^^^ pj^eO^l'lyre. rdpuiremenls under this.Agreement so as to
a,chieye:OompliancetlherewiiH..

13 Notwithstanding any other, provision of the tJbrifract lb 'the ,do.r>trary, nO.
sbNi«s-shail cpritnbe dftbr June 30,.2019,-sndMh.e Department shall not .l^e;
liable for any. payrheln'ts for sSryio^ provld.^ after J^in^ 30, 2019; unless and
untii an bpbfpprialiqn'for these service's :ha.sVb^^^^
ieglslatg'rMrid ̂ hd.s^'.encurhbered for th.e.S'f^'2020-2021 bienfila.

A The'tiontractof ̂ all prb^de one(1) Recpyei^ ReSidence Wtserve females on^.
,wtih\bpioid;tJse.-.D:i8^^^ who' are."in ne;ed;:6f housing Iri.-a supported,
safe, recbyery housing .enyironment in compliance with the approRfiate
hiaiibrial Afliance'fdr Recovery

2. :Scope of Sen/ldes
'2.1. .The Conlra"cl'ohshall provide.a-physical recpyery'hpusing faci.li^.to lricludB, bul

'Is ho.l limited to:

;'2:i.1.' ACSi5^.h.cj^tp1ndiyid.uals.tolransiU^ "ving;
•2^1.2. Safe,.^s"iab1eand »ber.;ehVlro'nfhent;,

;-2-.-1.3. h/leejing:S.tale-and/or!bc8l-ocpupancy'requ^
i2"-2- The 'SdriVractor shall meet ̂ the nee'dS of' ,8Rp.li,canls/residenls .reguinng

■■ ■' ^^mpncans .with- bisabililles- Act (AoA) aCwrhMc^atid.ns. .Addltjpnallx. :the
I'GbritractpriSh&ir:
2';2^1 ■RfbyiBe 'docOme'riiaiioh.arrd rnaintain tha.prppeily is In compl.i.ance

vflth iocai he.aUh arid safety codes.

■  ;Ensurelheiresidenc0 meets.all Life'arid Safety cbde§;as.requiced.
2;,2'3-. Erisufe thSt-all hous.fe rnaoagers andyor^staff are iralried todeliver

iNaioxoheln the ca's^ ^

2:?:4. ■Kfleet aii infdrmatiori security and priy^cy ri^ulremefits as.set.by ihe-
•bep;aftmen.t.

FfT/NHNH

RFA.2di9rebASid2(Rec6y-62

ld>'Exhi^l A -.CbnO'ootbr InilUils
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Now HampshlWbopartinbhVpf Human SbivteW;
R^verv.Houslngforfndlvidualvwrtt^^

Exhibit A

2.3. the ̂ nlradbr .s'liair ensure Nalqxprie is..aya!ratjle'an^ accessible- in the
residghce.;

2A. brQahizatl6rialfAamlhistratlve:Stand'ards
v:2;4-.;i\: theCVniriacforshall,be^a.legal busines.sientiiy,^
.2.4.2.. "T'he:^b9ntfactor-shall have a wriiten misslQn-'a visiqn statement:
• 2;4.3; T.tijerCpTilrb'dpr!!^^ ha.y®^?. code.pf'ebilcs.for'.iBe Reosvery

Residence.

■2;4,4.' Tbe:.C^nlfac\pr shall carry.general liabilityjn'surarice;
■2.'4;5. TRe-.Gpnlr'aijior.-^ail pomply with- slate-and f^eral requlrerhehts..' Ifrequiri^;;.bbpumerit'sVsuch8S liceh"s.es':'B occupancy

must'be.'.visibie^
■S;4:6.: The ^ntraclor-sha!! Icleariyjdepti^-thp responsible perso'njsy

.respo'ndiBietdf'the^Recpv^^^ Besidfence.tp all residents;
■2;4.7> the epntraCtorishairprovide.a rnlnlmum quali|icatipns.;dyti^^^^^

res^'dSibljiybs/fo'rtjieres^^^
InfbrTne'tiPh-rhusi.be.presenlin'ajpbdesCTp^^^^^
Thp Goptractpr shall ensu(e:lhftjvlnge"ns4,rpr)me l.s'freb.from dmgS

•and'alcohol.-

,:2.'4.'9. The Con.lractpr shai);.establigh procedurpijfor cohti'nup.us'quality-i^nprpveiTiehl;tb'lndyde/bbt-is-hpt lim
2:4.'^J ■'CPIje;cl;;;pyaluate.'and Report accurate"process.'
2i4v9.2-; Cblllct,■ evaluate andjep^^

r2v4.l0. The Contractor shall .provide proof^bfWnttehpa^
"" " Re(x;ve^;R^Sidence;on'^e'property.from the-land'^ if

applicable.

•2.5. Fiscal Management Standards
•  tHeXpntraclpr-shbll k^iiac^ratp.rpc^r^^^ must have-the-abHity

to.provide rpsidenis'Wihistalementiuiabri r^uest.; Th"e:Tecprds"
:arid/p/;sl3t'emenis shali'include, bui'sre not limited io;- .
2,5.t;1.,. Gpmplpte retards'of char

P.ayfhphii
>i.'5.1..3V deposTts-

I. .-2.6; Oberatloh Standard's . ^
■'2;6^1. the ConVact'or'shall ensure .ern'efg'ericy prc^^ures alphp With staff.nUmbers.areippsted In a conspicuous-IocaUb^

Fft/NHNH ;CbriV^6r.tnlUalsi!ft[^_
'  oatfl 3--'l5i20'19

BF.Ai201S:BbASp2meGOV-02 R3Bo 2 of6 r-
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Nfiw Hampshlro Ocpartmbrrt of Hbittti>nd Humon.Scfvlcofl
Recovery Hbailrig for 'ndlvldua!#-^^ Um Oleordor

■  ' . ExMbtt-A

.2.7. Redovorv Suob'ort Standards

:2!7:^. Th.e Go.ntractor ̂ all maintaih a' slafnng.pjan.
■  :2-.7.-.2-. The ppn^ctbf'shall en^re an applicanl^creeriing proc^s.m .

m2ilnlai'ni^sjafe:an .suppbrtive enwpnment-for-spacific groups of
Individuais in recovery..

;;2-;7.-3. T^e^6pritrafclb^.shall eiis.ure Qorifidenliaiity laws afe.adK'e.r.^ tp;
.■2.7'.4.' The Gortt^acHorsh'airKej&p re ''ecords secure from-

unauihpfized access;

2:7.5: Thp,.^ntra«or:sha!l estebIish and.adrniriister a grievance, policy and ,
proce'dur.e./ . ^

27";6: fh.e/Gonvartor'Shall provide'-.a. safp^strudurpd ar^d _'suppbr5y6'envlrbnnr\ent'lhrough established and.writteh\r^s,idents _
"rights, anB regulrafpan^.-.

2..7-.7\' The 6ontradtor'shal!-establish"'6ri:!rilak'^asse^^ for'
''acc^iing hevycllenls-.

■274 the'CoritracVor.shaUestablishan^^ process ■that will ensureall .fees and-charges/residerits incur ar^ to applicants prior
•'•to residericy/iidntract,or .shall ensure ppli.cl.es are.pre^hted.to
potential' applicants iri.'wrillrig .a.rid are vdrta'aliy ■expla.iried in a simple

'  'andiessy nTisnfisr conducive toHheHndividuai'suhderstandihg.
-  'The'-.^^nlfactpr shall,prpNld.eia muluaily's'uppb.rtive ancl.recovery-

■ orient^ rjla.ijonships between residents .and/or staff' through:
2.7 Pear^asefd irilera.ctions;'.-
2.7.9.2. House meetings;

2!7:9';3. -pprnmunity' gatherings';-
•■^.7i9.'4.', Recreational events;'arid/or
5.7:9:.5; :quie"f social activUi.es:

f.l'-Ah. The.^ohtr8ctdi: sHalt.8doplreb6ye^-suppprtiye', alcop^gn^pnrn"e'nlS:.through writteri'dnd"'enfofceld.pQiicids and Ri-ob^ufes _
ihal'address Iheloll.owing:
■■2.7..1G'..1 : ':.Re;si.dents thai .return to.al.cp.hpl and/br drug use;
■Z;7.id:2V;Hazardous Item search.e.s;:

2.7:1 Cf:3iTDnj9-screenirigsahd or toxicology prptpcdis; and
•.■2'.7:1'0."4! Prescript]on and non-pr.e.scnp.tipn medicat|6"n usa'ge;-and.
■2.7.-16.'5. Pre.scripUon and nbnTpreseriptiorii'.sfbrage.

a6_F <^lbli A Conlrodcy'lrilUaU.rr/NHN'rt

RFA-ZOig^BDAS^ZrRECd"?^'- Po9"o 5 bl 6-. Dal«5i!52^
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New HnmpsKlro bopar^wVpl Hqatthohd Human SofvlMS
Recovofy-Houilhg (brl^mdivWuals with Opiold Irtc. piaorder

••• .EjihlbltA

2:7;i t. The"C>ritJ:a.Gtbr sh work with'residents to develop anb ̂rtldp.ate: In
an Individuafiked recoWiVplan-

2.7:12. Th'ejCphtrartpr shall inform residents oh.t^e wide renge.pf lQca^^■frMtmeni'and recovery ■suppprt-seT^ces-available-to thern.

.2;7..13. The Contractor shall provide hbhclihical. reopvery,suppprt and related
.  ■ 'sdoli.W-

2'.7.'i4: "Ihe'^iibntfactdr'.^an entburagereSldenls;.^^ supi»rti^'e,^setf^hclp.gro.upS'.arid/br outdcle professional SeVvlces:-
2.7.-15,: The Gpnii^ctor.shall provide acjcess to schedul^.arid strufctured

SMbhas d^

2.7:1&: The Contactor ^all provide third party cJlnlcal,.seryi;c»s.
2.7.17. The ConV'actor shall provide life skills developinenl services.
'2-}7^l8. Th©.tontradpr.BHaITprovidef.sctp's^ s.en/ices.

2.8. Property Standard's:
,2.8,1. The Cpntjfactpr:shajl ensure the: residence meets all life., safety,.health

artdbuijd.irig.cod.es. ■ .

2,.8.2'. tfie ContrectPr shall provide residents .wth slofageTor food and
personal Items.

!2i8:3. ■ The Coril(^.clor sh'ail prpvide'fully-functloriihg .fif.e-.extirigUtsKers In plain'^ighi.a'od/oXcjeady mark^^
■•2i8.4.- The'Contraclor-^.aji Install operational smokeidetectorS:
-2-:b.5. The'bontractor shall Insta.ll op.eralioinal car^n mphoxide detectors if'gas appiiaricesarep'reserit.
■:2:8'.6.. The.Cpntraptor ^allensurea.smoke/lobac^-.free.iriterTial iiNn'ng,

en^'tbhmeril.
■ 2-.8:7. Th:f .Contractor shall provide a large corrimuriity rppm thaf wi.H

.atcbSmbdate' h'pu^'meetirig's:
v2:8.§. The/ebnlractor'^'allprdyide sleeping quarl'efslhat adhpreto localand slalesquare footage require'rhenis.
2.8:9'. ■Th0..eorilraGlor';shallprpyldelava!Qi:yfadljbes;iLhatadHe'SiateTG.qmreibents'if appHcaW h'th'ere.are no requirements, .

■  ̂ Contractor ^aj) prowde Pne ('T)*sink;:6;ne (■1.) tp'llet.ahd.;pne (1) shower
•per Eix(6) residents.

2-.'0"".TO. ■TKe;Contfactdr:ishall providapn-siite laundry-services.-
2.8.'11. The.'Coiitradqrishall rnaihtain the iriteripf and ekterior-'of the residerice'■|ri.a-^ncti6na,!'. iMfB^.and clean ma.nner..

PiAihii A !Coni«clOf lnW8,l8
FIT/NHNM

n*in 3-1&:2019RFA-20liBD'Asb^REGpV-d2. . P080.'4.:olf ° '
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Now-rtampfiliiro Dcportm^nt^of HctU.th.eri^J Hym>n Wrylccs •
kocovcfv Housing forlndlvldoals Opiold Um Disorder:

"  ;E«hl,b(tA

'!2.8.i2-. The Conlrac.ipri^all pnoyide-spacBS^P hold rrieeiings accfessible to all
residents. v

:2 .8;.i 3,. The Cpritracipr^aii provide appliances in a and woriting
condition:'

2.'8.1'4. The'^nUactpr shall provide'fumilure In gwd.cphdilipn.
.2i6..^5. The'^,riiraptp> sha!l provide routineLand.eme^sncy rppairs.lo. all

aspectsiof 'ih.e;resid,eh;ce.;.
'2.9. Good Nelgfibor Standards

■2-"9;i. The ed'htractpr shall prdvide t|)e residence's responsible parses.
inforrhalion t6.,neighb"6^ upon r^uesL The-^n^ctor shall ensure
■theresp'onsibleparty responds tdaeighbor,.^ toniplaJnlS;.

2:9"2.. the 'Qpntra'ctbrjshal! establish and enforce rulesT^arding ihe
•following:-:
'2:9.2;i,. Noise; •
*  .

.■2'9,2;2-. Smoking;
.'2'f9.2;3'. L6ii€fing;"ahd

r

.  .2;9.2;4' Parking.

■2..g;3. ■ fhe Qpntractor shalifestabllsh and ehfprr^.parklng rules when,
•vyarraril^d:

■3i CompietiB Criminal
■  3,1. ■ffie-'ebnifaetorSh-air.-p'TO^^^^^ ihefDepartm.enl tJpcumentel^^^^^ ensures

'■ " .'each'.^nlradorempldyee. Who may haye dir^Vbohtatt.vvith dienl^uribP^^^agrMtfiehi; has^unc!e%nS: a erimlnp) Ba.ckground Cheek.which d.empn-s.trales
no. cofivrctibh'sTohtheTolIow^ (^rries;-
'3-1 V- Afel6nyof"anyind"ividuarornegl.ect/SfX)usalabusei..anycdm'e.

a^yinst^chiidrenl.chlW pbmpgrap,h'y. .fabP homtcide,
but'not indud'ihg oiheV physical or battery;-

■3'4.2. A vi6leht-.or'S,e)!uaily-reialed crime againsl a.chiid or ah ad.ult which
"shdwilhaV-thWie^^^^ be reaspiiabiy expected to pose a threat
ib.any Individual;'

■ 3:.:1.3. A.felony for-physical assault, balt'ery.or abrugn-elaled offeh-^.j^nd
ilh'at'felb'nycpnvicU^^ was comrnirted y/ithin the past five (5) years in
■'adcbrb'ance.'vsnlh" .pS.C 67'V(a)(20j(A]f(ii.)'.

^3-2 The-ebntracior-shall provide the-required xJo'cgrh^ntAlip.n tp<the pepa^enl
pnbi' to any ':SMCh' 'Contraclor -.emplbyde, .commencing Work, subject to
D.fepartm erit .approval.

FIT/NHNH EiiWbltA Cohtrictw Ifiltio.ii•naio':3^'"l^20ie
RfA-20l'£^ASb2-REe6ViCr2. Pogo.SolS.
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Mow'Honipshlro'bopartmortt.^ Mwjtth'and Hum'dn Servlcrt-
Rocovcry Houeing fbrlndKHduotowl* Qplpld-U^

EitHlblt'A

State QpipVd.Re Grant Startdards
4.^. The Cbntractof ^al! p^ovide^ the pepartmenl wth timelines 'Snd

■implementetion plans-bssoblated-wilh'.SOR fyhdeb .a.Qti.vlljes.lo ensure servlcas
.arej'ih wiihln thir^ (30). days of me .contract effective date.,

ifihe ;cbntract0,r is Unable to Offer servipes within the repuired
Itmefr'amei thelGbntraCtorlshajj sufamH-.a^ Implemenlatlpn
0lan:t6.thbp.epa.rtrrie.nl for.appbval taoutllpe .anticipated' deryt.ce'^tart
dales.

4.1.2. "Pie Deparlnient.reserves the nght .tplerhiinate the conUacl and■lldukfate.=.unspenl funds H seivicbs are hol.in plaj»;vsn
'daysV6f:!the-'cdn'tra.rt;0ff

4 2. The 'GqntrBCtor.shall.ensure thet dients receiving ■financial aid ;^or recovery
hqVisin'g .uUliang SOR funds, shall only be In a recoy'ei^.hbM^mQ.teP^^^
aligrted'wim Alliance -fqr.Reco.yery. Residence^ slan'darts and.
registered of'New RampS.hV^ Alcohol
Seb(iws.ih"accprdanc^ current NH Admiriislraiive Ruje.s.

4';3:. ThevGontract.br shall .assist dients with ^nrdlli.rig 1n ipubllc or ipnvate.'health
Ihsurence'. if the dieril i'bdetefTn'lned eligible for'such"coverage.

4:4.. The.GohtfadoriShair'acicepl plierils'fpr MAT..an"d-.faci.litfl.te;acce^"-t6 MAT ori-
■site-ror lhraugh refbrral fof .all' di'ehis.^supported'Wim SOR-Grant fund's, as

inl.caHyepprdpnate;
4.5. The,!G0h^6ctoh>hall .cobrdlnate with the NH .Ryan .White tH.I.V/AlDs prOgram for

ldjen|bidehitfiea'.bs^^^^^^ Hiy/AlDS.
4.6". The-'Pontrador shall, ensure;,Ih'at all die(its;efe f^ulariy .peen^ for tobacoo

.y'se.-tr.ealiment needs.ehd refenal tothe'QuijLine a's.part dftfeatrneni-.planning.

-Cbntnido'r InlUbliFfT/NrtNH 'EihWlA

RFA:20lWDAS-0"2.REe6y-i)2, ' Paoq,6ol'.6! '
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National Assdclatioh.of Pfecdvery Residepw^^^^
Member Standards.

i; Of^anltadonaWAdmlnistifBirv^^^ Level'l :  LOVoITI: Lpvplilll' 'Uyc.'.*y

•1.1. Recovcfy Resfldcnces^arejegarboslhess enUb^
"■ .^enoedby.buslness.llcensiMqrr^hw^

documents;.

•Strongly^
RccorriVn'e^

Strongly
Recornmend

X %

1.2. Recoveiy Beside^os H^isiaf^nenrni^ldp
statemflni;-

X X' - X X.

■1.3.. RodovieiV.R.op'deftceshave'o written code.of.eiKlci; x. ■X. ,x

i.4.. Recovi^ Rpslder^'s prppe^ o#fn^op&i\(>n carry
'giwerai iiaWity;'"?

Strongly
Recommend.

Stfprigly
Rowrnmehd

;X X

I'.S.iRdMvery Rft^encMbprnf^^ state and.federal
.  r^ulram^b.

H ^cflulf^.-dt^ments'sudi es.lica.nsesand ccruncates
|dKoccuparicy;0ro vfeibie-fof' pubttciviow;

■  .X' ' - ■ X. ■X, X

■f.t' R(icoySfy Re5ldencw;{deady=Wentjfy;die.responsible.
" iper^ri{sVin-;^afge=6V.iheRe^ ell
•rts^ents; ' ' , !

■* X x X

1.7;'R.e«>^^.Besldence8:^eari.y, stole,
IgOalin^'tlbnsi dijll.6s.
'j^^ton'sJblepefsc^sj in.B "iwltteri )d^^

-  ••obrit;^- • •
n/o hjia X x

• i.6;Radoyeiy Rwidences'pro.vide:druQ a"^. alcohol. froO'
•'envlronmenlS;

X X .X X

1.9. Recovery Residences wll^cl-wd.re^^.'d)^
. pfoccss;and'Ooicome>date fd»;;cohlriuou5;quartiy
'•'Impfovdmenl;

Sirpnoiy
, Recdrrirri;e.hd

•Strongly.
'• Reconimertd X •k-

l.iO..R^^'ry.'Resldcncos:hay^>yntten perm!.ssijw from the
■ ovmer of fecoWld ppeVale.dRecbvaTy.Reslde'r^^
Ihcif property;

.

X X X.

• X'. . ■• •• ■ ;•
■2!(nsc^rMari8gomenlS.tandards •■LTpjroM ".Uovpl li ■,L«yel III .Le.yp!iy/

2':1: Recovery Re'sidehoes-npialnialn.an eccounllng s.yslom
Ihei.'fully documents.all ;re.s'idpnl finendal-ifansecllp^^
Such as.fees. payments and de^slfs;.

.X X X" X

•3j Operati6n.'Stdndar.ds. lioyel it- Lovolll 'LovdU'ir Lovel'W

•3;i. ReWvery-Reild'enccs-posI emergency p.rpceditfpjei^
.Vti'H;p>tpne number Iri'cbnspl.cuouis locations;'

rJe X !<■

■3:Z Rdcbyejry:Rdsyence.lpb?l.emeroor»cy.riu^
*  ■" !proi6dbl^8:.0rtd e.viKijailoH iiiaps;'

-X-. tX, (Va n/a

•jVA^aptGMBbi^^ ■ EiNtill At
Pspo'o.c^e

.Contrector
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Natlbn^ Assbciatioh of Recovfei7 R;esldence:s
Member Standards

■^^■.Re.cjoyery'^SMp^ ■ ■ ''WoVl
•<: 9 :

t'ayei H Levbl III ',1:4^®' 'M

••4.V RecpvtryRe'sidencesmalnto^ )f-Appl^'6'te 'l( Ap'pticab^e • X
«.

■  -X"

RocoWiV ResJcli8r>c«i,usVahapj3'r«
thi'rKeips m'tihialn p ^(e ahd;sypj>o/Vy.e.

ol ReVMns in reoove^
X X X K

•yi;i.Recbvefy ■x' ■ X X x

4:4.,Recovofyfi6sideftces;koe"pf!^en
occcssltmlled smn.jonlj^-

X X •X. X
t

• 4.5. Recovery'ResWeniMS '"e'grievefKb.t^icy;ahdproc^ure.l.dr'rC^Bnis;;
rX. X ix' X

4;6: Recovery ReSclcrw8.creale;.a;M^^^^■ftcb'^fy sUp'^rtjYOcnylfo"nmenV.l^^
enforqijd

.  -X. ■x iX; X

'4 7.'Recovery Residences Iwye an oHentfltjon'-RroceM'^lhal
cte.arty'Wi'^y?i'bai«8 reaidenls; ligHU'efnd requirements•pfiorto them'sijiftii^ enyagr^^'m.enis:;^
•bemogmpKic''flnd(Bmef^erK:y;wnfec1lnfc^
pfOvides;r»eyi/paenls with '^ri^fnstAicDpw op
'erner^icyl^.^'dOjes end'6tiff:c6nl^,informaljofi:

'-•X' X X X

4;'0. Recovery Residences foatdi' myluaily feup'po■reco'very^rienied.reiolioinshipS'belwe'en-resldents-end/or
'sisiffWbOgh ^>-basod Inte'raciibns.Squso meetings.
•cdmrnohitygaKWng^^^^ evcnls. -and/or. other
'sbderactMtiMi

•X X. X

•4:9. Rccdvery Rofiidcnces^fosler rocovery-soppqrtiv^. ,
■  'alcohol arid,drvg'Tfree environment wrinen'ehd

•fenfo^d ^'idfs;.ai^d;p<qc^ureS^ residents
who' tb.'o'i6ohi)'l'an'^or drog use; he'iardoys:Item -
.:'^afcKi?;i^9-^.e'n1rj9 and-6rj6)d«ii^y.pfptocols: .
and ^scdptldh Bnd 'non'iKescriptlon rnWtcaiibns u.sage

: end stora'g'q:-.

k X X X

•  (,4.i6.-Recovcry' Resider^s e.ncourage e^li rpsWef>t lb
doyelbp.and ps^lpa^^ Uiel.r.pwn ^rsonatlzed'
f^veiVpi'en':

,x X X :'X

,4.-1 i. ■Rdddvev'Resldencc.siin^'rBn9e;.dTld!Wl!deatmefil''8n^
b^atladte'toihem'VW'utf^
supitofiyrdups/fpwver'cbrnmurvjy/cemefe^^^^
mthisdie's. rwyery^fowsed leisure acli'Aiies and
recovery e.dv^cy pppb^hiUes]

x X X

I  1
s.

■X

fVA-2tjlO-BDAS-d2^COV ExNWI A;1
Oi
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National Association of Recovery Residences
Meniber Standards

Rflc6Vo*ry,Sup'p6ri;Stand^ te.YplJ uovern Ldydl.iV'"

4':li-Fiiecovofy.;R]»aeH^;pr^d^
(uppoH i]elat'eid':Seri^6'

X . X X X,

..4,73/R"ecov«fy Resl<J«.nci;s/ef^ resid^nts'-U).^^^^
muiualJy^supipoi^;Mll'^rt6lpii3TOup^^
profeis^naj ien^cps;'

X X X 'x*

.4/l>/Rec6w»y Rtfijden^fpro^
stni/ct'umd ̂ er-iasW ecniicoslji^'a^dartic
^'ftsfenialipns;

.'rife <n/a X x

•4.15. RocbvB.ry.Re^OcSVpro^o 0 P?'^^
clinJcbl in'»^d8i:ice'lp'.?tote;laW^

.rVa .tVa X X

4.l0..ReWv«ry Resid^ices.^iffer life ̂ T)S;d^lpp^M rVa n/o ■x X-

4;V7>fl^^lry.Rc^i^n&Vpffer"(yinJM^
8CC'ofdanM;tp S&le^ls^.:

rVa n/o n/a x

S.vRropof^, Stfln^ards,;: (L:e<re<.l 'Levei li. 1  tlevel lit' IjdNfdiiy.i

51 Reco^'ryResWaricesiablde byian Ipcal.building-end fi ro X X  ■ X

5'.-2;:Recovj^ Residpf^'s prpMcle'epcj^resldentswllh food
iai^/Wrs^efitcm' Btortige;- ■  -i' •X; -X'. X.

s;!* Redovery Re^dejnw^fy^djfd'nc^ fi re
yftxiingoi^vis ip,plii)h;is,i9hi ai^o; in 'diMriymaiAed
Ippoli^s.r

x= X- . .■X ■X

;"54 "Rto)veivR<filden«5;Heye"fy^^
•' ;biilailed?il"®r«^^"funcdbnihfl.cPfbo.n mpobxide'deipcipf^^^^

X X X ■k

•'5;6. Reopvcfy Rcsidencpp-pro^b^a'non-sm^
ll^ng cn^ronm^U-

X X X :x-

s!e: RecoveiyBes^encpsjIwve; a,c'pminijnlty rbdrn'la^e
•enough toToccdipmoda house meolin^i end sleeping
••cd^.8W|fpd(i'ifi" ioj^JVnd/puieipuarpfobta^o
. ropuifemenls;':

X X X ;X

■•57. Ret■ov■e^y.Resldenc■e^,h■ovp.one.fi!nk^■Urf^ shower

r<^u(re,mfenls:
'X 8 X k

'5.8. R'ocoYcVR!®8'd.®0^s.Hayellpun'dfy's^ lhai are
ecces^blp^t^o'.ell regents; X  - k X ■X

; eiawi.A:!";
P^;5'crfO'.

Cont'iv^iniUeit



OocuSign Envdopa ID: 20Sir79MCAM20^07C-62EASCSB2U0

iNaUonal Assodatioh orRecjovery Residiehces

Membef'Standards

•6! ^Pr6p^rty•SVaj^^lBr^^ Lavei 1^!
' ■■:"<^ ■-

Ueyerir .LevoMli' Lovei IV* '

5.9./Ri^vl^'Rcsjtfe^^^ rtajntairi.iheiifije]^^
qf'Oie prpt^i^Jn'e nisnoftMal
•!i\6bmpaljbi«\^iKlhe^^^

X X  V ■x ■

^5.16. "R^ye'ry Resldc'r\cc;s>a^
ptis^m'g^ate'SlI ■X X ■X X

•5.i Rflsi^_nce8-Ka^;8
w^'tng d^a.f'eV^ fuW^1^^Mfu't'isJn.gobd'c6^ X X- X. 'x

5;i2::R€a>very f^^i^cjp7KM?.«W'^85
(ep^'re ln\e";^clyfashlph; •X ■X' X. X

'• . . .. i» . , .j • •' . ■
.'6: God'd.NelghborSfandard^ . ' '  'Loyel 1 Ldyoi II: Lovpiiii ■ tovDljV:

e.1/Rec6very'ReiWc^M'Rrd;>^neight^;_Wi j
fe$pp^r«jble/^^9'n^«)"5W rrrfdrmalion upon requesl.
fhfi"f9s|»fiilbW'RCfwntii)'
[cdm'ptajnijSii.o^ Is.npl po'islblpto r'e^ye ihe'lssye-

■ X- ■ ■X x X

0.2;;R^c9.very Ro^de'ndds .IjavjvrLjjes fi^a'fdinQ.h^?®.
rismdWng. Idlljefwg-end parWftg'th8ral^.>fespon'iiwto'
neighbdf's'feaidrtable complaint#;

Strongly
Rdc^.rn'Wvd"

Strongly
Recommend X X

.6.3; |!l.ecoyefy.Reildence8 have:and erifo.rce.parklng
rcbCutflsynile.iwhc.ra'Street pafkingls-.scaf'co;' ■X ■?X: X ;X

' RFAl^ZO'lMDA&OltRECOy ■;EKHblIA-.1 'CcMrac(br'lr<(^
Dali)
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N^'HampsHlre bepartment of iH'eatth 8n1d.Hurrian;Sdn/1c^^
Recovo^'-Ho'uslng'fpr.'ihd wlth'.Oplbld Use Olsordb'r

Exhibit B

MetHod and:GdndHi6ns Precedent to PaVment

1). 'Tha SWte 8hpJLpiaY ';t(»''Gpo.tractpf amounJ not to exceed the" F.b'rtn'P,-37, Bip^;; 1.8./Price
' aimiBtion fbri^ (S.f^'ces:p.fp^^ Exhibit A.. Scop6 of Service's.

1 .'Iv = Thte Aprgfemient lis\fyn^iSd' Wth funds fVom the.SutJSience-^.dsg and Menial Heallh 'S.ervicei
fleSponse Grant.'CFOA ft93.,788, EAlN T.I0.8i6.85„

'TKe' Cphtra'i^pYag'rees tb)p/bvlde-thp\8eMces' in Exhibit A.'Scope of SorvTce ihconiplia'nce.
wit^ .fuWi'rS FB)li^''t6^mpeVtW may jeppardlze:the-funded

• Gontraclo^s Vr7eni;aHb^^^^ futureiifiihding,.

2) PaVment fpf'aalg seryices'Shali l)e made m6nthiy:a's follb^:'

iV2.-

2.1. ■ 5ayn^'ni:shaii"be:.onva ;'cosi feirriburseMeht basjs/fpr'e^iiar exp« Jn;.the
fulfilimWdf;lHls Agrtement.'and shall beln 8ccdf.ddnce'wiih the-apprpyed line [(em.

r.' ■' ^ ^
•2.-2.; The ContjBplor wjll submit an Invdice in e formrsatlsfartbry'to the;Srai^^^

Wori^ing.iday d^^^^^^ Identifies randVre.qvesi? Vejnitivir^mgnt:^
ex^nse's .Incufrtfcl in .the prior month. The-lnvolce/musUbe.ppmp.leted, ^ignad,

. ^ium#'to-^iihe!-^^^^ to lriiiiaie,-p8ymeriL The (^p.iracloY^agrees tb.kge^
necQ'rds rpial^Jopispaftmeoi prbgram apd services..

V

'2.3'. The Slate;Bh8il 'maXe.|Mym"ent:t6'::ihe«Cp .within thirty!('30) :day3';pf r:e'cei"pt of;each-
, • .Inwlde'.' su6^0e'ntVt6;epp^^ inyb%.8rid \f:sufficleni furtds are-'ay^

del^llgd 'reco.rdspf thgir-'8^|vltje|.reteted^ programs.
and fibrYiMSr

••<vvr •

•2';4:. Thd'nnal1nj5Plce',shalVbe"d.u8lo the S\^\e no ia\eT:it^nio(X^\^6i:6ays.kfie('\he contrac't Fdrrh'
■P»37. ,BJoc^i.;-7.\^

52'5.; "In llpU.;6f-h|f'cJ cpi)res..;8ll.Ihvpjces'may.te oleclronic sigriature and-e.ma.iled to
"" ' Melis^tfiGif''afd@'dfih'§:'nh.o6v.'Qrihvbl^ lo:-

'MeiiisM-'GiVanj'-.?^?. Finance Ma'hagV . ^vDeparimerit'olHe.alih and IHum'an .Se.hHces
■•'BpAS^vSlate O'pfold.Response. '
■ i'29,PJdSsanl--Slfe^ '
;Cdncof^''NH 033.61

■;2.6 i :Paymerits.'m'ay be-Wllhfield pending'receipt.of required .repdifts dr documerititjpn as'ld.eritifle.d
■  Exhibit B. .

:PaymjeriVs.^may bb:.Wl.(hhe!d pending'receipt, of
•In-Eii^ib.iT'A^^^^ end Injthis Exhi

ijmiteiibrt-. :arid'?o"^,adJO.strng.encumbranc^^ "Te.P/s^ may bo made.'py y.^ttefS'
i^agrepm'gril.jpf bpth'^-ipartips and may be; rhadP' without lol^tainin'g apprpyat of •Ihe. Opve.mpr -.ar^
Exej^'tiye.C.ouridii..' ^

A;Fl'T/NHNH.'lnc.' -E'^'bU iConrt.ao^ Initials"
"  " • • '5-'i5t2019'•^£;2p.{Mp^p"iiRE Pe^'terf! Date^:;—;
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/

NQW'Ham^HIro P^rtmohl 6( Hulth and Human Scrvlqas
■  - ' ExKlbltC

SPFCIAL PRQVIStQNS

ConlrairtOfs ObDgatofts: the Contfador covenants and agroes (hat ellVurKls/ece^ed by;ihp^nlra^
.under..i^'Contradshall"be used only.es payment ioihe-Coniractor fbr sendces.pfpyitodip e.>j8'ble
IftdMduais and. In the fu»ti>efance of the eloresaid covenants; the .Goniroctbr hereby cb^n^.ts and
egreesies.foOows:

'i.. iCompllancb vHtfi Foderal.anb'-^ ll'lhe.jConiractbr Is p^mlned lo
onndi^u.8l$:such-e!)A shb" be mabe" In with awDc6We fede/Bl;arid
:6^le.lbVs^^^^ulft^lbns■^.b^.el>^^^ P9l|cl«.8hd pr^^reS.

:2.-* TIme'andlMarinKb' PetefTri'lhptlo.rif'EllgfbUiiy ddarminatlw^ stiafl be mede'on;f^s.'prdvW.^ by
.tHe.'6eplirtm>nl fpr'.thi^^^^^ made end fenibde at such bmes^es-are'prewbiM by

f3. OotumcntistlbniJn addiliph.lo'.lhe deiennlAatlbn forma required by ^e-pepartmentrthe Contractor
■  'shaU rnainlin a.da'lB file'on each.fecjpicnt.bf icfviceVhcreuhder. vWch'.filasha!) incfode-all

Ihfo^abon'ngcessa'fy to'sopporl ah'ellgibility ijelarmlnatlon.ahd '8ud^.pther Informatjonias Iho _
O^artmenl rpqyesls. The'.eontractor shatl'furnlsh the Department ^th eO fprms and'docume.ntaUon
regaining eJigibliiV-^lorrninab^ (hat the Department may repuasl.orrequlm:

.4. .Folr,rtear1nflo:-;The'.Goniractbr-understands.lh0t;,o)l.dppnc8ritsfbr.serytoshoreun^^^
indfvWuals.deda^W ineiiglble h6ve:8ri^rtQD falrheairtrvg fOQarding ^b||elermloabpn,,^
•Contractor, hereby covc'r^ls' er^ agrees lhat.ell eppllcBnts Idr Ar^ceb sJ^n pgrmitt^ t.o fill cwi
•enpopTrcau^ form erid'tha.real^^^pjicani.or re^pplicani shall be. Informed 61 his/her.rt^t to afolr
'heenhfliheQCordehie''^ Oepartheni regulations.

is.- .Gratultica orKlbkbeclr'ai.The-.Contraclor egreei.lhol it Is a breach p'f;iNs;;Cpnuact;to.p pr
maXip 0;paynricnl, gratul^pr;p.ffer;.of pmp.ioyment on t^half .of pipCo.niraclOf.rbny-Sut^ohira "or-

':iiie'§tatbln^6rderlbinhuence ^ri^.ancaof^o^p'bpfyy.o.tk'deiajl.ad.ln'^
•^Up6l.-1^'Sai.e-m^^ ih)s'Cpntr'8« anda'ny 6ut>^ntmci:6r aub-^reemenl'lfltls
•deiennlned-^arijayTnw^ OT/Offers of employmenl bf.orjy.Wnd were-b'ffered or rocei'i^ by
-en/.bff'^ls, officers.'cfnplbyeesor'l^eriis'of-theContfactor of.Sub-Contrector.

iS: Rbtroactlve;Payments; Notwilhstanrfing anylWhg.io (he contrary conlalhed In.tha.ebntrpc.l pi:: ineny
other documeni,'corilrept priu.nderitandiog. H Is.expressly undorstc^ ai^d'eg^^^ ^.Ihp'pa.rties ^
horoto. tha't.no payments v^ll.be ma^ harourtdor tp.mlmburse.'lhe'GohirM inco/r6d fpr

reny pwpo.se'pf 'IP'^-a^y .seryfces provid.ed to any ihdMdue! p'riprto ihe Efieclive-Dato.ol.^e-CpfitcBC^;ar^'nopaym'6rite'6h6ll bembdeffor oxpchses'lncurTed by. the .Cbhtractbr for any.;Borvf.«s prpyl.ded;
lhedale"6ft;Uh'lch Individueropplics'for services pf;.(excGp.l.ps.6ihc.^8e prpyf.ded byilhe-

■fedfifai regu'labons) prtor toia-deiermlhalibh thai .the Indiv^ual Is -eltglblp'for such ^rvlc.es.
; Condilipn's.pf PurcKeM: NoMtH'^uhding ahythlng to-Vto cpn'tmry cphlalhed

h^in.c^tcinodish^ bd deemed fo'^igaib or reqyrre lhe, Departmehrtb purchaso-sPf^ces
hercuridwpTo m'le.Wi^ relmbursos the-Cqhimc(6rNnpxc6.ss6 the Cpnlrpctorscosls; d.l a rate'
•i^ii&i;e*(^^'8,thp amp.unis repspnabla.and n^essa.ry'tb.'B^^^ of such sendee, or at a- .
■rBiai^l^-'dxcwd by Ihe'Cohtrac'loV.lo meligibte'lhdi'viduals-or other third party,

•• fi£i6ef^-f(y slichVs^ llpt-ahy lifhe-during the icrfn.of-.lhls Contracl or afier receipt ol.lhe Flnal
;EX^Wdilufe'Report hereuhber-. ihe.Oeparimenl.shaH determine ihet the Contractor has.us6d .
:p6^ort't6 h8reuhder;to:relmburse;items.of expense oUier than.such costs, o^ has received payment
■Ifi'exoew pf eych-costfi. or in excess.of-iuch rales cherg^ by iho .Conliaclor to IhejlglWc Indiyldiials-
Vor'i'iher lhirp;p'prty fynders. thp-^ep.artrn.ent mayelec,t-ip:

Renegoiiate^the raies' for paymer>t hereundor. In"v*hlch evenl nevy rates shaU be esietillished;'
D^ocl'ff^' eny fiiiur^ payment toihe Contractor the amounl'of "any pdor relrribursemefitln
excess .oicpsis:; ^

IC -:Sced3) PnMilera . CeWMior Iniaria

7.\.
7.2.

-win#, '
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'Now'Ham|»hiro;6opp Human Services
.  ...

7:3. Deman0.rc;»^jrnent of Iho.excess.paymern by.the:Con!rocior in.whichiovent'faDure to make--
•■^h rcjMjmenj.^ consUlurie.an Evem df.OefayU horounder. Vi/hen-the Codf/bctorls-
..^8fn}jne^;(d;delj9rWl^^^ ihdivtduals for servicei. Iho'iCbnlractdr agjees.lo
:fiwml^.o:the Departm"ent-fw ell fun<Js..paid.bytheDep.artmeni to'the-Contreclo^ifor. services

bepbrtritenl'.lo, be ineligiWe^for such servJcesei
"My timo diiinng.lhe ifteri^ of ̂ etention.of records esttbli^ed.hcr.elh."

rtE^drtd$J.WAl.NTENANG^ pCTENTlON. AUDfT. DIS^CUOSURE;/w■p.^:Q^^Flb■£l}IT^^^^
•e.. lp/tKe/el»9il>ility"(o«rds^.Bpbdfied*atfo.ve', tb'e'iCdntracidr

reMrds d^Hr^'ihe'Cdn^diPeH^

;ir|-Und.contritkiUon$.vlabor time cards.-payrotts, end other-records reque'stedor recjuir.ed by the
l^^paf^enL

0.2'; R6c6f,d,5:;S'ietJ$^al.:enr^^ ettendence.or vtsii fccords-fof each reciplonldf
rec^'dsshanincJude.eli rocords..of 8ppli.6aUonond

•  fprms repWredVb/deiemilne et'jgibXi.iy-f^ c'ecK'such recipient), records. •.  rejjaidii^ the provisionpf-se.'y'^saha aij1nvolces:5ub*mjHed.totfie:Departrh Id'obUilri
. . ; payment,for.sych services.

'b:'3/ ;.fy<edic8! iPtecofdsi-Wh^/epprppriate ond as prescribed, by (he Depajim'Mt regu
iCdntnaclor.'Shdl! rbtainlrn^icai records on each patjeHt/recipl"'ent,df servfces. "

;0. ^'dlt:S.oj)t|8^lpr;d:iaII submIj-e days after-the clbsd'.ol the
reco.rTfmbr»(i^)i^^^ i'he repoft.^be.pieparii^ irf'b^rdarice-Wth.i^^^ of--

-P'^'^^P''^'*^9®'''cnf.6^.^d^.t;Cyrdui8r.A-l33l rAudiiS:Of.Siates- L^rGdVerhrriieni^s.^.nd Nbn
.Prdl«i;Organita'0ons'8f^ the prpvisjons-of Standardslfor Audit ■pf'"G'ovc.rnrheniai Org'aniialloos,-
prog'rornij^v^UjnUes.and FurKtions'-issued by.lhe-iJS'GenerBli^coonting 6ffice.(G)9kOVtandards) as-
'Orty'pertfiiniilofinacicial-compljanw

-Ai^.lf!^;Reylew:-b^^ ten;n.df.lhi'5'Gpnlro.ct'8nd-iihe;penbd:fw.fetentbh;hereunder, the
lOep^rtrnont'lhe.tJnited-Slates Department of Heallh-.arxi Human Services,..an'd 'any of their
^designated representatives shall iWvo ar^ss to ail repbrls and records rhaihtamad pursuant to
,lhe'^n?mcl,fbrpunpo..ses,of.:8udit. examination, excerjjls.and

.Ab.dil Uabiriiie.s^.ln,addition nolln any Way in lirriiLatipn-.of obllgelions pf'the-CibnlrBCl.Oi'ls
••u'ri(J!ors1o.p<j and apre^'bylhe ihe'CpriiraQ'ior^shBll b'e. held libble fdr.any.islke
•.^9X. we/dl payments .made.under the
:6ohlre!.d to'v^l^ ex'ceplibn''h88 be.eni^.en or'vvtii^.haye bbcn disallowed bwau.so pTsu^ an

•texwpOdri. • • • •

the bepaitment-regafdinb.the.bse.'and.disclosurerof such Informailonrdisclosure mav'be made io'

d'r^Uy^cpwwjed w|h-"lha ed^ the p.epartmenrbrtHejGprilractor^.8.respon5lbPiUe5\^.l^
excepion wflttcn consent of ihe re^lpienf, his

pl^rifiey'o.r;guarii.la'n,
Cjchlbll C.- Special Provisions- ' C<v4rDClo> Iz^js

. P»oe.i6t..5 daio'?ll5i^®
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Now HQmpshlrb;Oe|urtiTioht'6f Hoatth'i'nd Human Sorvlcos/
EKhlbli'c.;'

*Notw<ihstaAding'eriylhin9 lo Iho^contrery conidned hefe|n'.the covdrtanis'endcondiUons.^ohta.ir^.d In
the Poregreph-'shai) survi^.thertermln&^on of't^ C^lriaci for any rea»on:Vi^tsbeW'r.

'^i.-Repdite: Fiscsi and Statistical;'the Contrector agrees to submit the followir>g repoHs at'thefolloy^ng .
•tlmeaji'fcguBSteid by .

intdrfm Flnaarv^l'Ropo^'; Wrtilen inletim nnanciBl reports cof^tairtlng a .delaited description of
.  .an'Ms^^^p'nd r^elk^bid dxp^ses inpurred by the'Contractor to the date-.df;the report ervj
jO'ntaif^ng'ftuch 6th'c^'ln\ormat(pn asshaii bojdeemed saUsfoctory by the..^'i:ieirtment to

.  ']us^' i^e mte of. pat^enilhereuh^^^ :|Such Financial Rep;^ shall bO'Submitted.Qn the form
.de'signa\ed by thd^0ep8f^ent;cf deem^ 'latistabtdiy byj.th'e Depdr^dnL, ^

•I V.2. nhal'R'e^rt; "r^'llna.l'rep^-'fihall bje'submittiad wIUilh thirty (30).tieys-.efte> die c'^;df iho.tprm
bf'dili.iCohtracL'Th^ ah^i fn'.pTonn'sj^f8Ctd^..tQ'lhe p.ep«^^ end.'shat}

'ejsurnmery state^ni^'l-crf progr.ess'^towafd goal's .o^cc^sO.tat^;ih .iHe Prppdsol
'ai^'pthtf Informa^hV^ui!^ by Ihe'Oepartrh

-12. Co'mplettph df Sorvlco8';.Drsajldwaj^''br Costs; tjpon^the pumha'sd by the Oepartmeht'df the
rnaxmt^'n^ber'of-.unf^ prot^dfor-ln ihe Cdittract or^ 'upon.'paymehl'of.ti^''price'lirrilb
hereunder; th'e.^nim'ct and all the obllgations of ihe' parties'horeun'der (except ssjCh obliga'tions-b),
by thw-tem).s'af.-lhe-'(^ntmcl-ar8'(o.be-performed'e^r,the'ertd:of-theierm ciftNs Contract, and/or

■survt^,the.telmlbat|onorthe,Conlracl)sKal! terminate, provt'ded-however, that If, upon revtew.dftho
FinarE^endiWo R'eport the Department shall disallow any expanses claimed-by 'ihe-'Cdnlrector.as
.cd'sts^h'ereunder.the Oep.artment-ishBll retain tho:r^hi.;8l lis dlscreVion, to deduct the amount of'such
expehs'es as.e'rd dlMillowed'.or to recover such suns from the Cohtractc^.'

13. Predlta: All doqumenis'. rto^s.-pmss releases; research'repoHs.and othe.r materials prepared
duHngwl^u'tiJng torn the 'perfdfm.ence..or.tho 6ei^cesdf'lhe C,dnlract,"shail Ir^uilc.thcfoUdwtng
statement;
ill. "nwdrepa.ralionpf .th.is'(rcporl. document'elc.)was-fi'nanced under e Conlrecl wi^ the^.lo

qf:NewjH3mp.shi/o. Oep^ Health and.Hurnen.i^rvicesvwtlh funds.provid.ed.ln'paii
by.tha.-Stale^^^ Hamp^.lre ond/dr.sych .oth'sr fyridihg sources as'weraiavatia.bie'or
r^'uir^. 6.g.,'^c.ynil^.S^les OcpBrtmeintOf Health'.erVd Hum.oh'.Sjo.^ces.

14. Prior Approvet'and'CopyT^'g.ht-OwnoraKlp; All malerl8ls'(wTin'en'. video, eiid'O) produced or ■
purcha'&^'.undcr Ih.e.corlWct shdO have pHbrepproya) from OHHSbefore printing,-prcO'uciibn.
distribution or-use. '^o OH^S.wi]! retain copyijghi ownership (or any-and ail odginal. materials
produced,Ihdud^g. but;rtot-llmlt'edto,.broch'ures..resource'directodes. -protocols or.guidelines.
po^ers.'.orirepo^.-.f^'iri^ctbrishell not reproducbeny-materials producod.under Iholcontractvdthoul
prlor wHtlen'epprovol from DHHSt

il-.b'pcrDtl.d.n of Feciiitioe:'Compliance wiih Laws and Regulations:-In iheoperation-of-ahy facilities'
fpr-pfo^ing.serUoas. the ponir^tqf shall, corn ply wlih alj laws: ordersand regulaUons'Of. federal.
.state! cc^ly.an.d mynldpal aulhphbes and wlth:^y d'iracti!p.n'of.any PybGc.Qfficer or officers
pyisuannb.ta^ lfnp>^e-en or^br or.dOty.upon'ihe-^ntractpr Miih respect to tho
b^m.tl^tof'the fe^lity-.or ihe o.f.the services .at such fpclliiy. If ehyg'pvem'm aoial license.'or
perrnll sh^ll .be'regul^ foV'iha'^'f^rad.on of.lHe .sald-facilttyictf the p^prfnenceoAhij.salrfse'i^ .
the vdi.lp'rpc permit, end will.al-.all b'rhes. comply vvj^'.the.terW
to'rSdIiions 6reach-8ui^..ticen.M;or^^ In cohnapti6n''wtih the fdre'golr>g requlrem'entS;'.ihe
Corib.aci'or Weby oo.venahii apd'agrees thai/during theterrn 6f IhtsCdntrpct tho'facili'lieVsh'all
comply.vMth' rules-.,ordersVegulello.ns.^ahd'reguiremehts of (ho.Slaip OflicoVf the Flre.'Marshalend
the locat fire protection'egaiKy.'-'arid.shall be'ln ccnfbrmancei^ih.local building and'zdnli^ «^Q&.dy.>
j.aws'ahd regulations. • ■ • *

16; Egual.Emplo)^orvt:Qpportu.nj^.F*ren (EEpP);.-THe Cpntre.C;tO:f.wtil proytdo.an Equal'Emplo)^enl
bp'pd'rturtit'y. Ptan)(EEbp-) to.th'e^ipffi^ for Clvli Rights,.pijfice of Justice Pr.ogre'ms (bCR.),'i.l i| has
rdceK^.e slngle.'o'ward.of $5d0,66b-'ormore:'If ihe recipient receives. 125,(^ or more'and has'^ 'or

EihAfi C - Spiodat Corimsei

wi.in'i data
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.NdwHampshlre'DiBportmonl Of Ho'dtth end Hum'an'SarvkiM
■ Exhibit C

more em^^yees; ll wtii mainlin e current EEOP' on rile'er)d-:&utmll on-EEOP ̂itificeiibn Fomi to'^
f(Xi^ certjfyfr^ tha't-(t8'EEdR.ls on fRe: For redpionte.recciving less ihan-$2S,bbo. brpublic-groniees'
■'Wih|ewwwjJl^n^»emplpyees;-.rc9ardless'.of ihqemounl.of'l^ Ihe'.redpionlwil! pro^deon
.EEOP.(^'r^ficai^n Fofni to.the.OCR ceit'^ng tils not required■(o:submlt or malniain en.EEOP. Norv-
'pibM.ot^ru^ia^,S;T|nic[i8n Tri^s/and medial end.^uce.iionoi IrrstituUbns.ere exernpt from-the
vEEOP r^irireMerit. bul'.ere^n^U^^ ceitifiuitpn'fbnTi to ihe;C>6R (o.cl^m the exemption,

^rms'ere'avttla^-a http'^Mvniwiic^p.usdbi/ebput/oayp^fs/cbri^f..

*"17.. Limited Ej^U8h Profic|oni^-{^^ As .da^rlfj^ by''Ex««iylj^TOriJ'er '131W. Imw9'vir>g /^.ssjlo'
.^'rVh^^.fOiTfW^ns'.^t^lhUmiieOlEnglish Prpficiancy, dnd'rBsuUirrg-^eWcy'gulda^ rieiibhalbrigin

.  ;(d^^miruij^ln0lj^e's;di5cr(minatlOT''qh* Ihe'.baWpf llm^ "
'di^'^eireev^th ihe^dmrtib^'Cnm^^^^ ond'.Sbfe;S(r^.U;Xct qf'-l'96d;and TlOe yi,df the.Clvll
irtghts'^'bf^l^V'C^ rebsq'nable'sjisps Id ehsurelhaVL^ pef^s haVe
fn'MrtngjuVet^i's^ " ' " •

18. Pliot'Progrom for'Enhancoment of Contractor Employee Whletloblowor Protections;- The
fbilovi^ 8han eppjy to all-contracts that exceed the-Sim|^ir^'Acqutsitidn'ThresKbi'd as'daftned tn46
iei^'llOl .(^frenby.:$iM;6M^

CC^^fritACjOR E>^C6.l^£.WKiS7lj^Lb^ RipKlSAMO-RCOuiREitfr/f To lwf.O«M-EMPUOreES Of
WHISTIEBLOV^ f^KTS (SEP 20.13)

;(a} This-£ni^ on this, oqho^ v^It be suBjWt tp.lhq;v,4risiiebl6vreVi^ .
.br^ rOm'edres In.'iho pilol;prbgram-;on-Con(racjj^'erhpioyee^whlst]eb!br^ pretckfiions ostobjislrcdol-
.41'|J.S.C..47.12-by:soc()dn ^8:of ihe-.Naliohal Defense Authodzalibn'Act for Fr^l'Yeof-26i3 (Pub. L.

•  "l l2-2^):arid FAR;3;96'0l

(l3).ThejC^nifoptw jls.crnployeesln-wfllngjn.thd.preddrnln'annfinguagf.df lh.ewort(fprce.
'  b.'e^^byd0"yr^stJeWoV«r'.rtghis^'|ndi>f.otedtibnsunde/.4-1.^^^^

•.SfOO'S of tho/Fbde.^ Apquijilib'n R^OIaito'n.

(c) nre-.Cdntroctpr shali Inserl-the substance of Ihts clause. Iricludtng Ihls.paragraph (b). in-ail
•^bcopl^'ctS;bver iKe^iMfi^pliried ac^ulsitfon-threshotd. I

T9./Sut^qritreclqrs:<pHHSfec^nijdBs;ihatth8.C.oh't^(oV'may-chM.^,to.u$je^^^ with
yreai^'expeib^^' tb^^nbm care services'or furtelipns for efnoe'nc^^or ixnvenienc'e,
bur^^C^ti;Kl^ ^aji Vetafn'ihe-r^pdnslt^^and^accquntablilly for ]Lh'e'functi6n(s). Prior lo.
^^t^nlrec.lin'Q: Ihe^CqntrpctorshalU if^.-sutxonlraclor'B ebility to per1bnmjhe-;de!egaied.
f6r«^n"(isj'. ihb'i,s/acq^pii^^^.^ o wriiien:egree'mcn! th^ specirresrecU'vlbe^ and'reporting
'res;wn5i6lliUeV'bf;(hb.s'ub^^^ ra,vo^ngi)^-deleg8i!on''dr(rnp»^^
^eVsubr&Uaftw's j^^brma^fsj/foVa^^
<Mr^iir(^_sb5;iheCont^'dbranb^ihe.C^nO]^
wfth those" condWbns.

When (ha Contraclor delegotes e function to a'subconlraclor. iKo Contractor-shall dp the" follmvlng:

10.1 Evaluate.ttic prospective.subconlrocior's-ebility.to perform the acliviiios. befdre delegating
ihe'.fu^tlbn ■ ; . . . " . .

19,2.1 Haysi'oytTilten agreemeril with (ho.subcontractor lliet-speci^fies activities-an^reportlng
responsibiii'ties-'ehd'ho'W senctions/revOcatlpn wIll-'bp'rTianaged if-ihe subddriirector's.
performance Is not-adequate

19)3.. Monilbr'ihe subcontractbr'c pcrformarkce onrart ongoing basis

EvMbUC'-SpeddlPrtMOons -&)ntrBciarNtb^«efL
.tola 3*15^2019
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No^ Hismpshtra' Oopbjtrn<>ni:6f 'and .Human SeK'icba
'  Eihiblt'C

•1Q!4. P/pvideto^pHHS'On-annudl.s$h«^ Wentif/ngairsubctontrt^torsr'doiaiBdtM^
resp<^^SDiiku^.endjvl^^'Lhe'SuteontrMib<''s'peHorm8rKe^vo^l.be:^8view^

1915/- Dh0-iS'sHail.'Ol ib dbaetion; review end approye.'all.8ubcontractSi

|KtKe.'^ntr8^r^.enu'fids:deiyende arsas^for Impmyemant'ere identifrM.. (he-Gont/adorshaU
take cptrective.ocUbn'.

•2p,..^eontred OeflnHlooa;'

■20:1. COSTSi^Shall.meon'those-.direci end indired.Uem& of expense .determined by the Odportmpnl
to-bo;8l|bwabto;encl'reim.b«irs«Ue In.-accomance wltn cost.ond.-ocoountlnp.principles ofiiabQehed
ihiabcorbanoe ^i^''6lab.ahd:fedeml I8we.'r8gula06os..rules ahd.oiibers.

2012.; pEPA.RTME^f^:■'NH■C^.8^■eri|■.ol HeallHjnd Humeri Seryl^'s..
PR'6pp]SAL;:ifepp(ic^^ sKal) mean the-doc.umen.t'Subm.ltled-by tKe'Gprit/iBctor. on.a

Corii^d'l^.settihoifor^ si^urces .of rdvenue.fbr-e^.bK
u.nd,eVlH,el.^.h'u;p.ct;

20.4.- Uf4iT'(;Pbr:eacb'eervice'tHdl Ihe^ntrecior-ls tppro^de tO'eligible'indMduals hereunder,-.Eholt
maanithd peri^ of dme;or'thb^$peci^)bd.oclivily'<)elem1tnod by. the OepDrtrndnt'ond spi^/ied,
in'^hiWl-B bf.'lho'G^'lracL-

aO.S;.

b'ij su<^'jayt$,^r^gula\iohs;.l^ Oioy. rnay be. fi'mdhded'orr^s^^fripm'. bi^'e..tb |ime'.
20',6,- $UPRlI%riN.9S)THf§ FEbEf^l.FUNqSi Funds proiHdbd'-to-.iKp,C.ontracior under-thls

Cbi^t^ yiHIl noilsUpptanl'eny/ex^ fui^s.-8y3ilible'7qr-lhb.se!.8'ef^

EihR^yc i. spcdd! F^oyblofb,. .Centrjkt&i.lnillaia

wwi Pcbo.O.o'i. Oina ^^^^20^9
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Now'Hampishlro 0«partmonl of HoiHh arid Human Sarvlcea'
-  • Exhibit e-1" ■

R^SfONS TO GEHERAL PROVISIONS-

i'.. ^bparagraph 4 of the Ganeral Provisions o( (his con'l^t,. Gondl'lional Nature.br'Agreemant,. Is.
reptaced 8S>foi)ows:

4: ;epNGrtibN^ nature OFACREErliENt. ^ .
'Not^thstandir^-any provisloapi this Agreemeni.to'lhe contrary, -all-obDQalions.or-the'Stata
'he'reur^r. Vn^d^g without limitation, 'U(e continuanco- of payments,. In .y^oie. or In part-
uhder.'.lhls Agreerh'enl.ere-.obnllhgent upon cohilriu^ epprpprieUon or ava'flabtnty.pf rupds,-

.^e.pyeht;bf a redu^w'i^lemlhb^^ nric^tftuli^ of apjpoc^.eied or Available'iuhds,-the
•Sta{e.'^j.rha"yb^ih,e''righijb^^ funds bi&rn"e'!dvd^ If b'^r. the'.
iSti'ib.'ihfeil '(he right to..ro'duce, .lerrhir«te'irmodify'-.s^^Ms; u^r 'this' Agr'e;cM'eht
imrn'^lately Oppn'gMr^^t^'ContrWtbr of ri^uctio'r).'terTritria|Jpn''^ rnotffi'cabqn.
fhe'Slate'Vt.^l ̂ 1 be required to l/i}nsfer'(unds'(rom bny other'source or account chtp'^'e'
•Acc9uni(6j'idbnUried-.imbI6^ 'l:6'6r.-lhe Gerwal'/Proyislons. AccDunt-Numbar;' or any other
.bccounC In ̂ x'venl'fur>ds are r^uced or unavaliab^';

2. Subparagraph 10 of'tha General Provisions of this contrBCl.'t6rmlnation,.is amended by.adding' the
foflowlhg language:

10.1 The.Slale m.ay.iermina.iq the.'Agreement et-eny Vrne for any re.dSon.-.dt iho 6.(>lp..d>scmt].on of
-thb:-^iat'e;-30, da^'jafier 'giwng'the .Conlr'eclbr'Witten riqiicalthat 'the Siaie.;lVBxercisirig lis;

.  ■ 'option t6;termihM

10'.2 In the'-aycnt ,of early'tefminatto.n. the, Conlraclor'^shell; .within'16 days of,.notice or'eaily
./le'rmiriatio.h', and'•'S'ubmii to die State p. Transii'ion 'Pla'n":for/Seryl.pc.s^
'AgrMmenr; l/^ludin^^ limited to'. idehlify'ng.the :pre's8rlt':end' fuiure' r« ofdierils
.r^Mfig' aervitM.Sxy'nder the Agrccm.ent onb-.estg.bt|&h.es'ib proca». to m.eet-th'OM riee.ds.-

10.3 THe.ieohtraclpr sH'all fully 'pboperpie' Wth the •Siate'a'rid shall "prbmplly prbyide bjSttftpb
■.'InforTngflon/ipis Jhe tran^lj^ Ptah Including,' but n6i,l3iniied:tp\ 'a'ny'lnfpmS^
•daib.re'qucsted by;lKe;St8l'e rWat^ to tha termlnaUon 'pf lHe AgriMmen^^^^ Trari'sitlori Plan'
■-'ai^'^aD prp^de'or>^ng^(^ end reMkiorls.of'ihe Trarisltipn-Piantp'iheSlale^as
[fb^'ujBsiod."

10.4; ..fh.(h6;a.yent l}tal'.Mivi.MST,under the.Ag^ecmant. Including bul not limil^ ip dl^ts'feMiving-
;^M'nricbs ynd'er-ihe iransib'oned lo.feying se^w'sderivcred.b^
Ontiuding ^trbclc^ 'RTO^.^e^ O^e-iStale, ;ihV-^"otrtcior -b^^^ prpvi'bb-5."profc« for
-:uriint6rivp,trt delK^ of iwf^ces in the Transition Plan.

10:-5 -The"Co.nti-acibf .'shall establish a.rnelhc^ o.f notifying ctientsiand other affpcted .Individuals
/abpui'.'die (ranslilon. The Contractor shall include''the-proposed .communications In Its
transiii.o'n PJansubmt'tij^\p'lhe='Siate?.8.doscf^^

.3. R'en^l:.
The; Dcp.bri
conti.rigen^
e^prp'yal orthe-lSo^^

E44bl)'&1 Ravbioro-b'SlBndsfd Rn><4»lQ^ -Cortnctn InAisli

ojofofimij Ppoovoli -feta 3-15t2.01.9
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New Hfi'm^hlre OcpBrtm'ent of Health i^nd Human Services
•EihlbllD-

■CERTtFfCATIQNREd^^ WORKkACE REQUIREME^S

l^eiContractorldentiried in-'$ecUon>l.3 of.the GenersrProvisions-^rsies to^comply witf) ihe.provlsions.of
^OpnV5li5is5^b':6ftiie,pru^Jce;W^place.Actof'i^ y. Subtfoe.0;.4i
U.&Q.;-7sdl.;et,^.). 8nd1^^'ir!ef;^reestp,h^JheContrB'd6r'srep^ m.Sectip'rts
V?1 V.end' f42.'6?Jhe\GenerarP/P!^|pns^ ihe l^lowing CertillMtJon:

ALJERNATfyE I r FiOR G^.KIEES pTHER THAN INDiyibUALS

US-OEPARTMENT OFrHEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES -pONTRACJORS
US'^b^iSRTWEin'dF.EDUCATlbN-C&MTB^
US DEP^RI^ENT. OF AORICyLTORE -pONTRACTORS

This'ce'ftiricaUon is'requt/ed by^lhe^'r'e'gulaUons'implemenljng Seciibns-51S1-5160;Of the Ohig-Free
yyort^pfa«V^;pl^i9M;(^^^^^ SubiitibO; 4-1 u's'.Q. 7pt eV^;)! fheJanuary '3,1.
I069''regula.tibns wem-amdM^^ ahd'published as Pah ILof the f^y 25. 'i'996'FederarRa9i|ter (pages
2.iSS-i-!2r69i).'dnd repujm.'co^ii^tjbr! by gmnleesHbnd by ih(erence.'evb-gfanlee8;and;6ut>-'
cortlractafs); pmr to'a^d; :(]ul;t^y'V^I-maintain a daig-^e'e-woHcplace. S6Clibn-3P'l'7.630(c) of (he

.r^uiaUbo p^d'es that'a gfantee (and by. inference, sub^rarftees-artd eub<ontfaciors)'(hdlfs.a''State
rnay^elKlito rnaKe.pne-certlf)C8jibri;lb:the-bepartm eachlTeder^ fiscajyeBrln lieiiof certiricaljn for
each gran! dutihg/the'.federid'fl^&car^^^^^ wyett6 by.the..certJRcaUbn. The ce'rtiricate-&et pui'belpw is a
ihal^idl^irepre^ntation.p^^ ulpP'n;v^^.K relianca'ls pla'ci^ .^ch ,lho agency pward's.!lh'e'gtB'nL .False<
ce'^i^tion prWa.bon.bi'the;Mrti be gipuridaYor.su's'fMntipn of payments..suspens^ or,
&rmiru,Upn.btgm ^ gpyemmenY:<^.^'6Usper)^ or d^rrnent. ICp'ntmclprd.Jslng this form; should
bandli.to: i

l^mmjssibner.
ilH pepartmebl6f'HeSTth a.nd:Hum8nSeM
l29,P{ea'&ani.SVeei:
Goncord' NH (>3.301^505

.1. llieigrantee certihes'Wel it'^ror-vi^Vconlinua.tc provid'e:8 drug-free vvorXplace by: .
1.1:' ' .Publishing e staleme;ni'nptif^g empfbyaes-that-Uie unla^ulmanyfa^re. distribution,,

•dteppnslng.-possession.or u'se of e.contirolied^subsiarice is prohibited (nllhe grantee's
. woriicptace ond.specifylng'the.actions that wQI be taken against employoes'for violation of such

.  .'prb'hibrt^: " ' " . , .
iZ\ •Establh^lng.ano'rjgblrig dVg-fi'^fiwv.e'^ess/prpgmM to. Inform'.cm^

thedangers'Pf.dmgabuse.intheworttplape;.'
•1.p;2v • "p^e granlrtls-jMiiy of fbainYaining a drug-ifiT5e

''r.2!3V ^^'iayallabfe-.dry relbbi]Heitpn;.'end,emp1oyee'.essistdnM prpgramsrend
'V2.'4.- - '.fhp^pe'najiies'thaYm^.b'e Im for drug abuse violations

0ficurringin;the'w
'iX .jri^irtg li.8 ne^ulf;^(M6ni'^ be engaged In the.pbrfbrman^' of the'grant bo

^given'a bo'py; cf ihe'.state'myrii required by pareg/a'pK (a);
1.4. ' N6iifying\the.:ernp}oyee^ the stalerne'ril required ^y paragraph (a) Ih'aL'ps^e Mndtton of-

• ernplb^eniunder;^o'.grBnl. thee.m^ .'..t-
•Abide;bythe'lerrns'oftheslalemenl:-and . . . i.-

"1'.4:2. Nouiy ih'e-emplpyer:in ^ling pf-Kts or her-conviclion for a violation pfa c/irriina) drug
statute.-occurring In lhe:workpiace:rK> lateMKan fTve.-calendar-days-after such

fconviclionf _-
{.9; 'Nobfylr^'ihe\''ag6ncy In wfiling,:wihin-(er) caleridv days aKor r'ocoivirig nplKe under,

rsubparagrep|}''1:4;2'horri'im'e^ other^w receWiSg actual ribUce.qf.such convfctton.
Eirpployers pfponvicl^.emplqyee&'musl'provlde police, induding posllion'.tllle, to every grant

(Offlcer'on Vvhoie;gr8h1 acllvt^ the convicled'.emplbyee.was working, unless the Federal agency

.'E0t(dlO-;C«rtAc»S»nr«ssr4iAaDrvgfrM. -.CQntisctorlnUah.
.wortyiacoResutrVnene' . . o ie*onib

.cv^iqr|i . ,F^«:ro/.2-. D»f» 3-15-Zqi9.
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Now Hampehifo OojMrtmont.of Hootth'bnd Human Sorvicbo;
■  ' • ExhIWtO'

has designatedrS'centrai-pQini for the recaipi of such notices.- Notice. shaU include the'
tdentincation Humberts), of eachiaffected grant:

1:61 Taking pn.e of the fo^)^hg'8cibn.s,'Wlihih'^*caien^ da/s.of.retrying notice under
ubpdragraph'i4';2. .re.siM^ lo'ehy empto^
1.i6;-1; ' Ta&ii^-.Bp'pro^ato^^ ^a.insi.$iu^..an employ^, up.(o;and^

terfhiuli^.-c^.slsteni.vyith'dwlie^qulremenis'o'f Ui^'ReHabiinta
f£mfef>ded;'.*or

i:'6r2': RequlHng''9u0'^erhpi.6yee.(o'pahidpaie .satJstactoh1y'in.ad^.e"lMM^
'  ■re^bil.i.talipri' ^^'i^'a'ppfoyed fpr^such purposes by a'F^eral, StaiaV-pi; local health,-

.iaw'ert'fbr9emeni,^r6iherop^^
1:-7. hte.iun'g a -effort-to cphUnue to miintain^a<df(^-fre'el^rt(p.tace't

Imjiiemcnta.uon ^rpvegrB^s i.iV V.2. ^
2. The.grahte^ Ih.sqrt lh^th.e'.6pa<% prov^ed below th'e'si.te(s) for the.'perform'ance'.of w^.done.m

cgnrfertion'vijlih ih^^^

V  Place of Pertormance (sirMl address. city, county.-slate. zip'code) (Ilsl:e3ch location)

■Ch'ecfi;0''lf tiiere-a/e wortcplaces on ltie';lhat-ere not Identihed here.

Coniractor Name- FITiNHf^H. Inc.

dMarch 15;-2019, . \lmUJi^C\
pa.ie- NarhBi: 'Maureen' ^auregaro''

.l^fesidehi

Exhbip - C»nAutJ»n f^iRltnopAfg RtM Contra'ao'r InUab
.Won^^lRi^ytr^ants:

.CUCHivn^';)' ■ P.«pa'.J/'A2 Dita'3-15-2Q19
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Now'Hampshlre Oopartmoht Of Hoalthisnd Humin Sbrvleos'
'  ■■ " Eahlblt E

CERTinCATlbN REGARDING LOBBYING.
I

p^e'Gbotractof-ideo.li'lad m Ihe Oenerel Provisions agrees (o comply v/ilh the provlsions.pf
Sec&fl '3'19 ofpubiic wide Guldance.for'New ResirtcUons on Lobbying, ond"
-3l'U.S:b* 13S2,i8n:d%r1he^^rett'(o;Kaye ihe.ponlracbx's representative, as idenlilf^ m'Se^.ns 'l:il
ani l . j'Z.bf the General ProN^^n^execOto ihe follovririg "C.ertifica.tioii;

US OEPVWTMEMT-OF. HEAkTH ANO HUWiAN SERVICES-CONTRA'CTbRS
US OEPARTME^n'.■bMbu,eAT|■ON r gpntrac
■us';pEP/y*TMEW';.o>AbRieu.L^^^

Prpgr^^s (i^icate'.iippliu prc^rp'm ^'erbd);
^^mpofary 'Ai^^ Needy pamilies under Title IV-A
•CliiW EnibrMmjMl IV-O
*jS,6cial ^ryi^/E6^'.Grant;Pfi^
■'MedicaW^Pr^ram
'Cbmrnu'nity ^'rvices Bh^'Gfja'ntu
tChild Care'OeweiopmenrBlock Grant under Tiiie IV

Tbe-LinierBlgned cedifies, to iho'bestdfhls.orherknowledga.and beifel. thai

.1. Nd'.pederal;appmprUted'^r)ds!Haye.tM paid or wOl be paid by o'r'cr} tehaliof thAvnderslgned.- to
any perBpn'fpr Inl^'end^ inr^ence an ofil.My'ojr 'erriplpy'ee/cf ariy agency. a.M.ernte/
crCongreu.Woiricor.or prnpioyco of Cpngress'. or an emptpyeo of a Meniber-df-bpngress-in
oonnKlion the .'awarding ofiny Federal .contract, con()hualion,.renewal,-amendm'enti or
rr^jfication^of-any pederal i^ntracl..grard, loan, or cooperative agreement.(and-by spe'crfc mention
sub^/^thlec dr'isul^hlrtclory

'2.- Iffany'funds other than ^PiddrBl epit^mprialed funds have been pajd.or will bp paid lo 'any person (or,
infiue'^c/ng'VA^ officer or c'mpldye'e of a'ny.pgency, a Mernberbf.'Cdngre^;an dfriceirbr;''ernp^ee'6| Cbrigress. br.en employee of e'f^mbcr-'of'Cbngress iri connection Wth this
Federal con'tr^l.-orent, I'oan.-ior .c^perailve agreement (and by speciflc-mentipn'sub-granlee or.sub-

• contrector), .the undersigned'Shall complete and submil-Stondard Form LLl, (O'rsddsum Form to
Report Lobb)rfn'g,.ln eccordance .with Its instructions, attached and (deniiried as Startdard Exhibit £•(.-)

3.- Thc.uddcrs"jgn(^';$h'ell f5.quir0rtiia'l"the.lan'gu3geof'thlsce/t]feaiip'n
documeni for siitK^vards-alsaU'iiers' (including subcontracts, suti^grsnts:, end contracts'tindbr gmn^;
loans,.and.coo^r8t'tv'e.agreements) and that bll-5ubTreclp)dnis;sh'all certify and dDsctose-BCCordingty

ThIscertifiMOpn.Jsfa ^ repfescntabon ot'^lirppn which relibnce.was.plaoed when this'trariia'ction
made b'r'cntbri^lntq! .i^brnl^lon bf'this Mitificalbn b o 'prc/^uislie-fbr making or.enlering into.thts

^sd^n;lmpbse'd'^;^eci^ 1^2, 'llUe 3.1. U.S...Cpde. -Any pfiiion who'fails to.ftle the required ■
'ce'^ticatioh shan 6e '8ub]ect tio.a dvi].penalry of not less than SiO.OOO'a'nd hot rh'dm thari'srbb'.OOoVoi*
e«h 51^'tiijyfe.' " •

Contractor Name: ;FIT-NHNH, Inc.
r

March .15. 201.9 . ^
Name:* Maureen Bbauregard

President

Cflitbil E -'Ctnl.tctUon Rigsrtftng Lob^rtnQ ContrscTor tnloab W—
'bat* 3r15*20l9
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New'H«mp4Kli;e' Oapiirtmerit of Heatth and Human Seivlcei
■.Eihlblt-F ■■

CERT!nCATIQNREGAROINC.DEBARMENT..SUSP£NSIQN
■ANO OTHER RESROWSIBIUTY MATTERS *

The'Conlraciw fdcntlfied iniSectten-1.3 of the iSoneral Provisionsrogrees to comply vwth tho-proviiions of
Execuli^ OfncapftAo President, Execuiive Order i2S49.8nd 45 CFR Pad 76 regarding Oebarment,
Suspension;,and'.t^er Responsibili^-M'atlers.Tand further agrees to have (he iContrador'.S'
fepreeentativo.'as tdenlihed th.'S^^s .1;i 1 and. 1.12 of (he'.Ceneral 'Pr6v1sl6ns-execute.the.f6dow<Ag
Cehincfltibrv

INSTRufcTION^^^
1. By/t|{^'lngjnd;«ubm]ning'tKis:pro()bu\(M^^ p«^'pehHs ̂ 'ovidl'ng the

Krdflc^h ul out.'6dd.w.

2.

expianappn' of why H annot ^yide'th.e. oe.rtlf^lion. Thi^.certific^tion or.'explanation .wiu be
wns^pr^.'In'poW^ OepaiHmenjofHealih'arib'Human-^ivIc^^^
dete>mlna^^<^elher'(b-enler'ii^b (his'^^^^ Hov^yeV; fallure of lh% prpspbciive p^rnary
paftopanf'to'fumish'a certifkatton'or'an explanation shall di.squal^ such-person from'particlpation in
Ihisirans^ion." •

3. The c«riiriutIon-.ln.tbi& clause-is e mate'Hal repreMntalion.cf-fact.upon which reliance was placed
»^cn.OrtHS;cHi.lerminod'lo M Into this transaction.- Ifit Is laierpelenrilned thai Ihe.prospective-
prim^ padiciji^l^nowinQly'rendered en enoneous certificatjon. in addilibn-io .other rernedies.
avateble ,(6 the Federal Goyemrnenl DHHS may termlrSale'lhis .trans^on for 'cause'or default.

4. Theprospectiye'prtrnary particl^nUhall prp immediale*.wrtit(^'notice'to the OHHSagency-to
wtKirn.thls,''prc^u^ (MnLract}.(S-8ubrhitt^ if-al eny time the prpspeciive primary' pa'diciparit'teams
thal.'Us'cedifiuBon was erronieous .yitien submitted or has becorh'e'erronbous by reason of changed
circ^mslahces.

5.. The^crrn^/'coverW b8ijSBption;**del3aiT.ed;*''suspend^ •ihei.iglble.r 'Idwer.iier covered *
^"nsect^n,*'-partidpOnt**:^^^ cbvered'lrensa^PnV -P.rln'd ••propOspr.^e'nd.

• •volunlariiy,:6xdud8d,*'8s.used,ln ihis dause.-'have the rwhings sc't.out.ln the Definitions "ahd
Cpverag6;sect]pns '6f the rules Implementing Executive-Order -1'2'S49: dS GFR Piart 76; the
ettached definitions:

6. Th.e-prpsppc.tjye prlrn.ary partldpa'rit-agrees by-subrn!tting-.(hl$-proposal (cohliract) that, sh'ould'lhe
proposed .<^ere^ lriB.nsl^'on.be.eriter^ Intb. It shall not-knpwingty enter'into-ariy tower Uer co.vered
^n'^ctipri with.'a',pe'.r5pii;who.(s d'eb'ant^^ suspe'^ed.-'dedaredMheiiglbi^^ or voiuntailty ex'dubed
from parti^i/Mtion In ihls.covered trensactfc}n..-unl8ss outhor^ed by DHHS.

7. The,pjosp^ve-prtmary participariCfuriher agrees by submitting this propo.sal thai.il.wUI Inciudc.the.
cIaus;e.tille.d-*tertiricition Regardu^'-p^ liieligibBity and yoliihlary Exdusipn •
Lo^f-tler'Wv'efpd tre'n»fct]6ns!' 'pr^ ijy OHHS..wiiK^ rfi^iftcaUpn.^ In ciribwer tl.eV covered
Irahsyacjfipns in Dir&opataypns'for^

6. A.pa^hi.dpapi.lnra covered transaction may rely.upo'n'a cdrtiricdUp.n of;'e prospective (Mrticipahl ln a.
^eVt.ler covert trensactioh'th.alit'is.no suspend^,'.Ineligible, b> i'nvojyntehly e'xduded
from the covered transaction.- uhi'es's-il knows (Kal the cerdiicalion Lsjerroneous. 'A partidpanl may'
d<«|de-.th.o melhod and frppuency-by. which It delermines ihe eiiglblliiy pf.ils principals. Each
p^idpant may, but is nol.required to, check' lhe:N6nprocuremerit liisl (of exduded parties).

9. Nothing cbritalnob In the.tpregoing shaU be construed to rt^uire cstobiishmeni.of o syslem.of records
in order to render-in good faith Ihe'cehincation'reiquifed by.tKis dause. the kndvifedgd end.

•£;yilSli..F - CchircsCo/l Reei.rtfl^ DtbtnnefU, SuiPen»lpn <'Contro'dor InSiab
Artd'.OlKorfl^ijw'ibaxyManbh'- . ,.,con40

ojrewwiCTjj , Pig«.iol.2 ' -Oata ^*u.i.p
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N6w'Hajni»hlfo>b«p'artm<ont-ofHc8hh'ah^ Humin-Siirvlcoe'-
■■■ -■ 'iExhibilF

Inro.rn^Upn-orB'paiitidpdnl ls;npt requirefl'to' exo^ that'whicA1srK>rTn'aJry-po$'s:es$M'by'apru()ent-
^■fSMjn.thiBOfdihafycburteortosiness'dea^^^^

i6l Excepi'for Uansactions authorized under paragraph.'&.or ihese lhslructon&.'iFa partjcipahHn'a
covered.tran$actbnvknow{ngty;entef6 Into a/lower (lerico[vered Iransacton with a;person-v^o.ls:

- suspend,deterT.e<|;jnelig1ble..0r-^^o(untari)y..excluded-from partldpalionin.lhis:l^sadf6n.in
i^dfdpnjoibth'eVrem^ii^'^valUbie'tO'.the.FederaJ-governrhehl. OHHS/may temlhate'lKlsiUan&action
r6r.;couso.0f defdulk-

P:R"j^V;^CJ\^EpT^AN^^^ ^
i-tvTh;6'pr^»p^v6'prirrili|iY.'RaWcipantc^rt»f^s to'Uie.'beijjpf

pHj^pala: . . .
n^pj.pVe^^n d^ari^'IneligiNe. pV

^om^weViW-lran'^^ d.c^rtrn'ehi;Of.pgency;'
1-1:2./h'dv,e:ho,t.¥^lji"iria Wree-yey'^ri^

p'id^.jbdgfnerirrqn^^ aghlnsl iWm'for cpmrnlu^bn.p^rr^pd oKa'drlrnlnal pftdnse' In
.'.cwriecyphyritfi' ip'bbialh, or peWprmiiilij/a publlc(Feperdl/.StS^ Or ibcai)
transad^:o''a'<$)%r3cV'Urider"a'pu'bl!C^^ FOdeoil pf'Sbte'anUihj^
.'slatiitM orcimfrits^n'pfpmberzleme forgery.- bnbaiy.fals'ficatlon or'^tructMn of
records;vrnakin9 felsp:8taiernenls..0f recc.M

'1 i '3: :.-are;noi.preMntly Indlctep'fpr olherwise.crimlhal.ly.or tivlPy r^argedby a^govemmenial'entity
(Federal. SUle;or Ipcalj wlU\ comrnlislonibf any;6f the.bffenses.enumer8lied.ih paragraph (l)(b)

.oHHts.certiriMX6n:;!.anfl' . . , . . " . .. .
^ 1 ;4.; have nbt'.WlhIn preceding iHls appPcdttdAr^r^$dl-K'ad'6ne...b.r rnore-publtc

'tia'nW(^'pns'(Fede;ral.'S.i3tepr.h^)'idrmlna;ipd;forc^^^

•12'. Where the prpspepiive prlmofy portidpanUiunaWeTo certify.fb.any ortheslatemeiits'in this
Mrtlh'catloh.-such' prospective partidpan! shell attach an expLanatlori lo'tHls proposal (Oontract).

LOVi^RTIER'C'^R^^^
vi. .By,-.signing bnlf^yubniiUjng'lhtelg^ propp^al (conlrb'd). the; prospective low^r Uer- participant, bs

' dcli)W'ln'4f CFR;.P^ft-76^ w)tirie.ftb (he ^sl-oT Its itn^edge ^""d Relief i^i'iiiehd'.Iis prihdpa'ls: '
13^1. are'nd;prosentjyVebaiTeb.yuspended/prppbs'e>bjor^^

, . ;y6i.untajily:exdu'ded'.fr'orn;paitidpalion.tn Ihls lransection'by any feberal .dbpairtment'^r egoncy.
i'l'i.- where■^0.prosp«tive'lp>wr.-.tj>r parti unable to ceiti|y lo'eoy-of the abbve,-.such'

prospedUva.participant-'sh^.'attech an explanation to this pr6posa1;.(contraci).

14'.-;The-prpsp:e(^Vi^-'t)^.''lt'.6r<-p3'r1]clp.anl.'furthervagrees'by'6ubrn!tt}ng<this proposal (cpnlracl)-lhat'il will
Include^S'dauSfiW R^aVdlrig'Debarrnenl. SO.spehs'iOn. Ineijgiblii^Vand '
Voluhlajv'OdOsibn.- Lower tierCove^ trBhs3'ctjohs.*'wilhout;rncWificab6n-i^ airidwer'tiericovered
trohsaciibns-andln'airtroD'dtd'tions for lower tier.covered-ironsoctidns.

Contractor Narfie:" Flt-NHNrt,-.lnc."

March'=1.S;--2pi9^ Oo^/\ ^oajn
Datcc MaurefehB^urbgafd.

■'President

EjeiUi^F T C»n}ricaUoA.R^ir^-.0«ti«|thbM;-Sijt'p«)tstoA :CoA'.rocJw.IfAUbl
Art# Ckhef R«p|Wi^iLHy-Mife . | . v v a

PAge.'Z.^-'Z ' .Datb 5-l5-zQl9-
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New'Hampshii^'Depbitrhohl of Hutth ond Humbn Sofvlceo
Eihlblt'G

■ggRtlFlCAribNOFCOMPbANCEWlTHRgQUIReMENTS-PE^^ TO
FEOERAL'NONOISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMEfff OF FAITH-BASEO ORQANIZATIONS AND

•  • WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The'donlractor.identined ln'S^ioi}ji.3'o(-Vi8'Oeneral'Provlslpns agrees'by signaiure of'lhe-Contraclbr'fi
repraaenlaijve as-identified ia'Secdons.'l.i t and 1.12 bf'the/GenersrProvisbnsl-.io execute the^'foilowlng
certlficelion;

_Cbnti^.orv^comp^,;end v^I r^uire eny eubgranteee.or eut>oohboctora locdrn'piy, with-eny applicable
fdd.eral hondjbCrlrnin'eilbn r;edutrefhents: wtilch may include:-
•  Omn^s.CdMaGpn'b^^^ 1.068 (42-U.'S.C. 'Se^n .37eOd)'v^ich 'pr^ibil8
red^.ents of'fi^efdl funding'-unddr .Ih.is ejalute from dscrimfnatlng, eHhdr (ri embWyirient pfecti^.br'ln ^
.ttiA.del.f^iy-bfVefyii^ bjn'bfils. .piVdie basis-pf ra;&a;-Mlbf;,religion, naiion'al pngin. and'sek.. The-i^L
?cguinu'.'Mr1ain'r^pie'^b..tQ prpdUiCe.ari'Ej^ul Ernpldyrhent Opportunity Plan:

'.•!tfte;!Juvenile-.JusliM'Qeimquency Act of 2002' (42 iJ;S,C/$ect.lbn' ̂ 72(b)) adopis by
reference, (be C(vi],^hb;bbiig'atjdhs^b^^ oie'^afe Stre'els.Act. Recipients,of federal funding under Ui'i's
stati^'a'ra 'pfbhibitf^.from'discrl.rnihaling^ prp'bii^s'or In the d.elive^ of'serylces'br
benefiib;" bh;K?;b 'Sl-'Olbn. naiiqnaI.6H^'n. 8nd;seifL. The^MiinQ^^^
.Empio"^ent'Gpp^fibnlly*R^
- theGrvil Rjghts'Acl;of-1d^, (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d,-¥rhich'pn3hlbte rrapients;of federal rinancial
at^islaoce.frQrhlbibcnnnlnati.ng b.n tlw-basis of'tace, coW. or n'aiibrial origin in anypr^rBm-or e'^ity):
• the-RehabUil8t}on-Ac)'of'i973 (29-lJ-S;C'. Secllori 794)..wtiicb prohibits recipients of Federal financial
as^lince frorn:Vl]i^mih^^^^^ thebb'sis.of-disablGtyrin regard'loern^yment and'Ihed'elivery of •
seryicOT'pr. t>enefit5^lh•a,ny p'fbgm^
-Uie'/ViiC^'ns.v^lhOisabirite^^ Act of (42 U:S;C..Sections..12.131-M^.-»^icH;prbh^
dis^mlhal)b'n;Bnd 'en^ei^Valppi:^^ persons With .di»6i!l0es:ln "erhpibym^^ and local
gbvemmer)t'&ervic'esv:publiC;bcrariim^bdatioris;rcpmrherciarfadlil^8S. ar^d'tra^
• the-Eduutibn ,^eridm.entis-6f 1.972 (2.0 U;S:C. Sections 16.0.V. '1663,16.85.-^.6).-which. prphil^ts
brs^criniinatidn'oh'th'd 'b'f'^x,.in.fedeially awsfededucatbriprogiarh's;
? ^he■:■Age^p(M.rllT>l^aiJohA^ O.'S^Ci Sections 61C^7). which' p'r6fiibi.ts.dis<^minat{qn o the-
basU'.bf.dge lni'p'i^rams.pr-^^^^^ rbcP.lying Federal rrnenc(8l'as,^.stan'ce. ird.bes.n'bllncl.ude

ahdj;Pr6cedures):Exdculiv^b';.Qrd (equal p/blodt.io.rt.p^HhaJ.a^ .for fallo:ba?.W.9rid com
or^anizWibhSj? Execvii^o' 13^559.^which pfciyidb 'fundarh'eritol prihclplbs -end pblicy^dbliirig
'c.riieria'[oy pp^bf!^ips''Mlh,I^^^^ n.eighborKcwpd brganizationii;-

•;2d'C.F.;R. pL 38'.(U;S.=Oepartrnen'l'bf.Ju$Ucd Regulalloris -'Equal Treatrrient for Fa.iih*6ased
drgarilz^'ions);;8nd y^istiabto^ 4l'U.S.C.-§47'i-2.8nd Tii'e Naiibn'at jD'efanseAulhori^aUon

fbr,Flsca.l>year 20"l'i(Pub...L 112-239, enaclad January 2;'.2013) Ihe Pitol Program'for
Eriha'nce'rh'ent pl'Cbnliact Em^y'ee VVhlstleblower Protections;.whi'ch protects-ernployees.agalnsl
reprisal lbr.cer:taih'wH.ls.tla.ibl^ actiyitie.s'ln connaclidn with fede^l grant? and.con.tracts. '

T'he;(^rtlfj«ie:fe.rp'yl;'t)elow.l.9'!e''rii,a)^^ felflri^'is'pl^.d".w^en^
• agenc'y awards.ui'egra'nL Ej^se-.ce'i^ri^lipn or->Hbl3tWb' lhe'ceftin<;^libn shaii be'greunds for
'l^s^rision df.payrh'erV's'.-suspen'slon-;^^^ of grarits, cr^gpv^fnmerii.widee.uspensibn or
deparmcnt.

EiKbSG. . C^KJtrtapf.tnUib fu/y
<cinre*i cT C'ihiterw»eh'riwr«we'F*niihn»'o'r'#eiro*wial»*dne>e\'ci<ir Ti'«MiH:a

' .«wwrtf*iii'ir'iriAt'a^w ••
vzi(^*- . ^ . i^lS-dO'lQ
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Now Hafnpshire.'O.opaitrhoril.of HciliH.ond Hi/fhoh SoWIcm
ExhibltG

■|n®eWtVRodsrafor 'state FeaeW or Siaio admlnistreUvti agency makes a Mis
diib'ittlnaiibii fihef a dui'iivSais Heartng on we-groundsiol racai cotoi, '■e9afisVa.>eagiiifit:of"k)ndsfme'fec!pieriF,WliKoiviard acopy.ol me
UiTappikibl?cohlracdn^ o-gendy ordlvlslon wi.lhin.ttie' Departmenl ql HeaWi end Human.SeivlMt. and.

H»Mah Sorvlces OfCceof iho.Ombodsman.

TheCortdoaof IdenUfiedinScction/i.'sof ihe'cenefaJ ProvisiiSni.aa^e'es by'SlgnaU/rerof
fSpWntatwe ln.Sedj6ns t:i 1 and VU of Ihe-Gefteral Provisions, lo execule.Ihe fpllqwlng

.1. ByVignlnfl w(j'9ut>mlti)no:Uil5 proposal {coh.trB.cl} me^C^trectpi'egr^^ wllhlho provisions
Indicatedrabove.

Contra'ctbf Namo: -FlT-NHNH. In6.-
)

)uLMarch-is: 20i:9s uJ/^^a
Qate ' woei^^ureen'Beau^^ y

President '

Exhibit c
•C^tttOflnjHab

C«UcM(n« CmWtm a»u»**««« l»
WwiiOrt'i 'ii ficlana;.

■  ■p-.j-pii n.., >15-20:19
RH. ttrtww ••5* * ® - '• ——•
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.Nflw Hamp®htrd Ocpartment of ̂^o'a^th and Human Sb»v|co5
ExhibltH

■ CERTIflCATtQN REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAl^ TQBACCO SMOf^E

Publi Law-10^^227. Part-.C ̂  Envtronmenlal Tobacco Smoke; a(iO known .c^'thei.Pri^hild^^ ̂  of 1994.
(A^f ifequiffei'Uwt'amoklrfs riofbe perrhJRed inany portion of.any Indoor■cont(icl^"fw"by-ariVntrfy end used routinely.oi rcguiarty .for the pfo.^sK)n ol he8jlh..day ^re.oVBtirary-^f^ces-lo-childreri ynder-lhoage ofTS'; H the m w»;a>e.fund^ byfede.farfKogmm.s-ellher
dire£^:of-ihrtuoVStato^^'to^ goyemmehls. by federal grant antrac^loaa m
tew'doos nbt'appV'io cfiitdrenls serv.ices-provided in p.rtvate.ijBsidences. faaSliM fun^ w ely by
MbdiC«re'br'Mcdicald-nindSr"and portioni of fadliUei usad for InpaUcht dryg of;o1^hoJ Ireay^nL .Fa^uro
tb:oompN.wiih ihe prov(»rons'df-!tl^"iaw rnBy resull in the imposilibn o[,D.(^l f^bnetary^P^nallX ® ^
ilO'O'O'.per.day end/or the^lm^sTlWb'pf p^pliance .order on'.ihe responsiWe ef>tny.
.The'cbntrictprldontirieid in'"S^n'^1.3'cf the Genef8l>rovisions\^re« 9*
'reprcswl3.tiyVa«.Wenti^^ s?." l.l2of:tHe:Gener^ P(b.visio,ns. to exeajta^lhe-followtr^g.
c^jcabon;-

Tv "Byi6i9nlng;ana>u6mWn^^^^^ ^IracytKe Contractor agrMs:to make
vWft-aii'af^lcab^'prox^ L8w 103^227, P^ C, krKjwn as the ProtChiWrer> Act of 1994..

Contractor-Name: FIT-NHNH.. Inc.

March 1.5;' 20.19"
Dpie NamJjNa

i
Tiltev

t Lpijfx
■.Maufwn'Beaureeard. ^
President

I

CUtM^U07O'

; Exhn4'H'>.C«4jf^iio'n'R.egs'ding
'Eftvt/wmentjl t.obtccb Smck#

Papo t SI i ■

..ConvoclVinVi*)

-.^15.2019
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'NowKamp«hrrepo'j>?r^o^.Vof Hoolth'bnd HymahSoryi^.
ExKrbHI

MFAl TH act

■RliSlNESS AS«;nclATg.AGREEMEMI

Ther6ontf8CtbriaenUqw':lrt,Si^rph-1.>Jflfm^^^
L. ..J'.w Li'^«i»k i«t^V«n>tt'"PA'f«ah5IW''nivl A«5iirilflbililV Act. P.UbllC LflW 104-ISVafw

(i| bannHions.
a.. 'Braach' shall.have the same meanin'g asth0.jierm 'Bfieach^li^s^on IM.402 of T'U!?'^5j

■.^Buslhess'Assi^^ has'tHjaimeanirig givan-s^ term.ln section 'leO.-idS of tille-'^.5v,£od6-
pf'F.ed.erisl Begylaligns;'

'c:- ''fcibvefed' Eniit^ hai' lhe.:fn'6anlnfl.9tven.su'ch' term in •sfi'cjjbn-i.eO.tQB bf nUe'dS.
•Code of Federal Peguiatlons.-
•■ ■ ■■■'' ) " . . . . . . . . . .

;a. 'Dflsibnaieb Record i5"ei*'shali haye'lhe wme nieahin'g as the term "designate.record set
■lmiJ5-CFR::Seciidn tWJsdi.,-

-S.. •'p^i'aAaQre'daltont'shallhave.the-seme'iTndariih'g Os.thb ierm ■da.t^"a9gfegation''ih 45GFR-.
^Section

'I ■■HBaii'hGafe':GVerBtl6nsVshai"l.ha^|'ihe.^rhtem:e;anih9e>'ihe';.t^^^^^
■" |ri:'45-CfR-^ctioh!6'4;5bV.

'd." ""MITECKAcr-m'e'ansithe.-Hbs.lth iMprmeUpn.technqlogy for.EconQmVcand Giolcal.Heallfi
'  'Act^Tlil^lll.'SVdillll^^^^^ y>e''AmeHcan;6^ Reinvestment Act of

h; -HIPAA'm'eans the'-.Heaitli.Insurance Portabiiity'yhd AMbuntability.ACt pf 19^ fyb.Hc Law
1p4-'^9VSnd'the'Stand,a^^ Privacy ..and Secu.Hty of Individually Idehtinable.. Health
lnfdrTrijatiph\ jJS.'CFR. PpK^^ iM Orid' amendments thereto.

\. Tlndi'vlduar" shall hbiie'the-SBm'e mesknihg as the tefhT'indtvldua.l" In 45;C.FR'Section 160.103.
end.shail'lhcldbe: a-'^raSn v^d.-.qyalifies' db.a^ito*Q^nSI>jbpr6'SfnJe.tiveJn'8CC0rdance:wtlh 45
GFR-^cti6n'-ij»:5^^^^

•  /; ■ ^Ph^acv Rule^'shalVmean Ui.biSiaridards.-.fbr Pr.jyacy..pf lhdjyi.duaN^ Identifiable Health-
" ' inf.oiTTiatton.et 45?CFiS'R8^ a;r}d.yw..pr9rnulga!^ under HIPAA;.h~/.me.U.nitedSt8tpV-

DOpaHment pf'HealtKand Human Services.

k.. ^Pfbiected Ha^Blih ihfbrrtiation' shall have thefs.eme m'eanlngl.ps the term ''p.rolecte.d.haaHh''
irtforSotlbn" ^ UmiiW tbytf^ Informallon createdor recelved byBusine.M.Associaie'irbm.dr^ohW^ll'.dfed^^^^ .a^

iib'u .E«r«U- ''c^^rttA6(\H3^iM^Hoaflh t««rinici'pdrta&Bty Aa

■  Oii, WZMS
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'■■N«w'iHanipshtrb;popj?f1^^ Humiri S.^cofi-
ExhlbK'l

I. ''rRyQulredy liw':shairh^^^ mesriing.as the'term:"reqdir^;by lav/ In 45CFR

mV tSeWetaw'-'shail rfieah ihe'S'©crela"ry'oT.me.pepa^ Health,and Human Servicesor
f)ts/!>©r-^si9n«e-..

n... TSficufllv RulfeVshali mean the'Security Stendards/or-lhe.Ffb.t^ori-.orEfecimoic.Pw^
'  ' Heailh lnryiTft^^ R8rt;.l,64. iSubpart CV end emendmentt.thereto.
Q., 'Ljnsecuffld PfQtQ'ctftdlH^B'itb lntb" njeSos protected health Infonnatlon that (s not-

secureid-byilechnol^yistaiSdacd t);uatr0n'defa:p.r6]lccied heailK Infprmalion unuMble.unread8blerorir>declpher8ble;ib unauthoi^d'IndlyldAials'arfd ^
a^iandarda:^ organization thatis-apcredhed by:l>ie;^.cnc^ti t^atibnal S|9nda/jJs

.'insUtute;

■p" ■ -nihaf Detihitto'n'^:- All (erni?-not'id|h;en>^se 'd?fined. herein shall have Ih'e meaning ■
'  ' ,e5febli;8hed u.n#'4'5:C:F.:R-P^

Hiteqh
Act.

(2) puKiriBS9 AfisnrJatft U«e.«nd biRciosurQ of Protected Health InfflniiBtlfla.
!a. Biu4lhd^>;i(^"s6d8te-sh^II.<{pi uisd. disclose- mair^.lalrt*'or'rr6rtS(?rtit■»nl^rn8'tlbn.'(RHiV):ex"c6pl;as"fea5ohablynpcesisaryJo.{>fpv|jJ^0^

Further;, Busihe.ss-Asspciaiie. Ihdydjng.but n Id all.
liSdifedbm find age'nis, shall not;y^;:djscb^^^ m^lntfijn or tran.srnil'
:pHVln'any-man«w WatWould cdnsllluie^a

• b: ' :BuslnessAssQda'te,may.Ose or cllsclbs.ePHl:
; or

•iii.. i'pjfdafa dg^regatidn'pu fpr-the-heallh care opdrali'ons. df-CioVered.

*;c; To^lh0.exteni',Bi:islnesa:;^ Is. perrniUeid under trte;;Aflrea'm^ PHJ JO;®-third pa'rty.';Business A^ociaie. myst'-oijtain, ^fiorlo njaklng-.dny iS^^^
reVspn^bie'ibisu^^ third party'^lher-soch PHI will be.held conndenUally-e'n^^^
ci'^-or 'yurthe^^^^^^^ by or.'fdr-'.the' pu^se for y^lcK.ll;.was.

iaiseib'sed io-ihertn^^^^ (i»)-an agfebrnatnffrom such third party lo.rwtlty Business
ASsbbiale^'iH'ia'^W with •IW'FtlF'AA-Privacy. SecuHty. and Breach .NoUncalipn

df '^d'oonriden^ !.bfi"'extent H has obtained.
kno^edgejdf'siich

d • fW'Busifipis^-Assodate.s^ not. uWlcss'Stich disclosure. nepess.frytpprpvjderSprvices onder'^hibit A 6f:tK6 Ag^meni/disciosi a'ny PHI In resppnse'to.a
r^ues'l for discids.ure cn lhe basis.thai liis'taquired-by law, wliho.ut FrstmbUfylng
OpverfedEntity'sb lhai<^^^ tdobjem.lo the dlsctosOr.e and
tb.'^pk«PRfo"pria^^ C<ivel'i9d'Enitty'pbje«5.l9Auch dlsdlbsura. Jbe Business ^

j/2bi« ' Exjriltiill Ccfltr«ctWlttfUil«ipb^Ke6ltri Iroinnca'PorlAbnty.Aa
t^hesi^ssWaJoAoroemenl . , _ o./c ;ohi 0.

Dato S--15-201.9
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Now HanipshlfPiPepartniontlorHM So^lco?

-Eihiblt I

■■ASsKiatei'shajl refrain from disclpsing ihe.RHI'Uhtili^byerelJ Enti^.HaiexKausled,aH
'remedies.;

e.

a,.

lV'itwvGov!Bfted:En"U]y hdUfie5'tf^;Busiriess:As^iate^^^ has-agreed-to.
be'.bound"by:additibnal'YiB.sldcii,$ns:'ove^^ disclo^rosor security'

■fcafMuardS'Of F^Hrpursuanl;l6 the Priyacy arid'S(?cu;rtly'Rule.^ A?,«)|Ciate
•fiKelTbe\bdv'ndVbylsuch;addW^^ restrictions.arid; shslJnQtdiMjO^^^^ viblali6'n;gf
•6j^h''§jditjori9lT;e eb.ide by anyadditibhal sacuri|9.'s>fegijards.

(3) Ohtlflfltrphs aria ActMtlfifi of Buslnesa AssQClfltff.

The:Busine,ss'Asspciaie noiify.lhe-Gov'e.red EntiV.a P^'dx
'  K^A'mAe.Bu^rarn'nf'anu Iico nr'.HkrJnsuria 6f''b'fdtectea'

prOiedi^ 'heaU any; sScyrity' iricid.erii ihat/may have an impact onlhe-'
prbicded^healfi^infpWnVi.o^

lb. liie Business v'^ociale shajrimrneSiate.ly fwrformia'nsk.b.wbss
"avwre ;p(iny.p1^^ sftuaDons/The rlsk.asMSsrricnlishal) IncJude.'.tXJt'fwt'be

■0 Themalureand extent of the protect^ heallh^infpfTn.atlqn Invplved, irtclydlnci the:
.Vype"3\of'[dentifiiBrfi:.and the ilkoilhood-df r^idenUn^^^ .

o • The unau^bftied person',used the protected .Health Infbfmalldn" or,to-Whom the
'dl^lbsurafwas.made;;

:p 5iy%iH'e.f®P prble.cted he.alth Infohnalfpn was aclualiy.acqulr.ed or .viewed;
'6 fhfextenllo^vWilcHlhB^risKtolheproiScied'hea^

rriiiideied... • . '

;iTi0BuslnegK'A's'^a*^'j^^3"'Icdrnplmethe-r.iske.sse5smen't'wilhin-.^^
•br^a'c^;'6nd""^m|bjaro
"Gbvered Entityj'

'c:- Xh'e'-Bysines'3;'AMpcia,t& shaU pqmply wlH all s.eclions'.bMhe Pr(va<^.."^®^uri,ty.-8nd

d  -BuSine^iAsspciateiSHaJJn^ 8'^of')ts:intefnal procedures/books
and recbrds reraling:iQ''^dui.e.a^^ drsclqsure prPH! rq^ivBd'ffo'M orprealed o.r
recalyed'by'the" B6^me'ss;As3pcl0td9.t*^H®'f pf'Cq.y]prad,Entity .tp'lhe ^c'ret.bry for .•

.  • pufpq'se.ipfdmerrniHihg Cbverod.Entity's cbmblla.n^-^Ih HIPAApndihe Priyacyiand.
•SecuHiy'Ruie.' ' \ '

.0. . B.usine'ss Associate shail require aliofNtsbusibe^.essobiel^in writing to pdh'ere to. th.p.M ^ ^
fes.lriciidnk-8rib^^ridit(bris:p'n4H&^
•the duty.Voretunibr.desilfbythe'PHI.a9pf0.y The.Coyerqa Entity

••sHall l>B';cbrisld0fe.d a/l're^'t'hlrdparty benp^^^^ business.eMoqiate..0greoments;>ri'th;Con&edor's;lKl0nded.buslnes8-a who.will be receiving
w6i'4 ^eootroc^ifthiulJ^—.H^th.lnfturim.PorubOty.'Ad

•p^'iof.e: , Date
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Now Hamp«hiro;Dop8ftmort{ot Health end Human Sorvldw
Exhibit!'

pursuant-ib lh!s:Agre0meni; wilh rights of enforcement and'lndemnincattori from Suc|i
buBine^.aisbcfaies QOvemed:by standard Paragraph «l 3.pf the 6taf>dafb
xcontrad Vo^sibh^l^ Agrpemenf fOr thq purpo^ of use and disclosure of
protected heatih'IriformalJbn.

!;. wtthirifive (5)busrness'daysol receipt of.a.writfen r^uesi from WyeV^.Enti.tj^ ^
iBuSirtoMiAss^laid'^hali m'ske-avallable during normal business hoyfs.et Itspmces.,^!)
rbwrbsi bgoW'^^ procedures relaUng to the. use;ancJdis.clpsuro
of PHIiS'thd-^yered Ehlity!;fpf'^ Covered Entity to delermlne
Businoss-A^oci'^tels.cbfhRllance.wl.ihlhe to.'Ths/pf tho'.Agr^emenl. |

Q' VVilhin'ten (l6>busin9S3 days of receiving a vwifieri repuesl frpm QoVered Entity",
■ "" ' Business Assi^ate shall provide access to PHI Iri a'Oesjgnaffed Rp^rp SpUpthe"

^ypre'd'Entity.praSdiro'ct by Covered Entity, toart'lndtvidupl In.d.fderjd.inept the •
. requ)rements, yi^er'45,;CTR: Section 164.524.

h  Within ten '(i!p) buislness^days-Of recpMn'g a written request from Covered.EhUty for an
amendment d'f'PHi .or a repord abp.uVan Indiylduai co.ntalnW In a peslgnalcd Record
^t; the.Business.AU^Ute-'sh'ali ft»6ke.su.ch PHI ev8ilabie tp,.d^
amenjrnent-and (ncorppml^leeny euch'emc.ndment .lb enable ̂.yered Erility tpVulliil iif
.pbligaiipns under"45 CFRSeclibn 1 W.526.

•1. ■Buslness-Associate-.shall docurtienl such, disclo.sures ol PHI .arid ihfbrmatlon're^led. to
'such'dis.closure^ias would be r^uirbcJ'fpf Qqvpr.ed Eniily to respond to.® •'bbb®st byan
Individual Vbr-8n:'8cc^^ PHI'In-'eccbrdance'wIth 4,5..CFR Section
.1^.526. '

' .1. Within Vfi.b(ip) business days-bf. receiving a'vm.ne.n fequest'from.^yered Erim^^ for a
irequaslfbrpri accountingibf-disclosuref of PHI. Bus.iness Aiso.ciatb shall makeByail'a.ble
ito CpveYbd'Ehtity such'-i Covered Entity may r^u.lre to ful.rill.lls opligatipns
•to pfpyfie ahfi&biinli'ng of discldsurea with-respect'lo PHIln'accordance wiih-4.5 C.FR-

k- In the eybrii any Individual rpquesCs/access'tq.- or eccpunting of PHI•dire.dty:ffpmthB;Busin0S8./^soclale..ihe
buslnbwj.d.a'ys^o^'rd such request-to Covered Entity. Gbvered Entity have.the
•y^sb6iii|l6lijty'$f ■rbspp'hcijng jo'fqrwa.rded requests. However. If forvya'^ing 'the.
'Iridiyiduai's "Covered Entity vrauid ca.use^Covered Entity or-the Business ,

• Associ.delb^dalk.HlP.AA-and'thePri^^^ Rule.'llhe BusinessAs'socIalo
vshall instead re8wnd..t6Jihe IndtyidualVrVqued'asV^ by suchlawarKj i^tity
"^Co.vefed .Entity, pfi^uch 'rbsponse-as soqb as' practicable".

1. Wllhlh ten {10J buslne3S,.da^:of lemiin^Ubn of the Agreement, fbr'any rpaspn'.-the
Business ^sbda'te shall' relum.or destroy. asj.sRecifiied". by-.^^yefe.d Entity.'Pjl PHI,

^  rbcetved-frorn, or cre'ated or received by the.B.uslness As.socl.®!® in.cb.nhecilon wl.th Ihfe^A^ireem■e■ril;:and'6hall h'ot retaln any cpples or twck-up.lapes of such PHI: If rbturnror -
destruction Is nbl. fbWlbie".dr lh.b .dlsp'p.dti6n of the'PHl has bqen olheMse' agreed to'ln
lhe-A9rBemeni,.'6u§ine'i».^^ shall con'iinUe'lo.bxIer^ lhe pr6ted.i.P9.s '
.Agreemeni.Wsuch'PHI -end limtt furth^ u?,es':Bnd dr^c'9?.'J/®3' of.sOch "PHI toil^se

. fiuri^Sesthat make;the.relum.or deslfuclion-.lrifeaslbfe, fbr:Eb.!p:ng.b.B'B"<jslnSss:
V»14 tttflbli I CcvKro^ .

'H«ellMn3ur«ic4 PorUW.Iy Ad
•-aVUfw'jAjsbdeioAyoomcrt . . -■•Vii's.JO'lQ

Pipoi'ofS' ' 0*^4 " ' -
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INow HampahliD bbpartmorrt/qtHpatth and Human

ExhIbitI

;As^al&-mBlnrtlrisi5^> lf'^yer?d En%. Irvitisdl? dl^rebgn,.)^^
'Bi^slKesS: aliPHI. iKe Business-Associate shall certify to

PHI

(4) Qbiiaatipnfi of Coverad-EhtUv

a. Covered EnUty/afiail'-rwUfy Business/Assoclate dr.eny chaViges'pr In ils,-
•Notioi'^f'Pnva^'P lolndivWuals ln-.aa»rdahce \^th'.45. CFR-S^o.n;
••i^.'52b'iUo'tKe*e'xt6nl/u|6 limlt8|I6n may-affect-Business Associate'.s-
use^'crdrsclosyreTbfPHlj.

b. ■CovefodEnUly:sHanpr6rhfeUyfipti.fyBpsiri6S5-.A-pl'pfermission^oVided^to &yefed^^ by lwityldu>l^"who'^; PHI .
' dj^lbsed. by Business Associale undei; ihls ^reerh.ehl.vb.uf:^uantup'.45 GFR S.^tion
i^isp&pr^s.fe^^^

C-. ■ &ver'^:ehtliy;srtall pf"^plty restncUorre.pri.lh8 pse,oY
disdo&'re.prRHlliia^^^ loMnecf^rdenc^^'^ 164.522-,
lo.the%extent thbt-such ^suiclidn hVay ^e^..Bu.slnesS;AsM^^ discj.psure of
PriK;

(5)

In eadUibn.io ReraBraph .1.0 of the si^ndard^errrs'phdcpndilid^^^^ of this
■Agrfejemeni-the;^VWed Entiiv m Agrpern'ent.upon-G^^
Eniiiy-s knpv^b^giB.bf aibreach by-Businc8S.^'soclate'prthe Busihess;;^Ls^iaie-
/A^f'elfii&htyseVfbYth heVein.eV Exhibit I. Thp 'Cbvpred Eritity inay.eilhe/.lmrinedi?tp|y
•terminate ihe-Agreemeni-or-p^^ As^iate tocufe.lhe.
•alleged'bfeach:v^thlna:Umefran[ie.spebiriedby-C^^^
;,detdnhlnes'ih:at neiiheriterrTiinallbn norcufe*ls.Yea^)ble;"'Govefed Eritiiy .shall, re'i^H the
;vlpj.ab6ti!ilp.tHe"S.e^^

.(6) "Miscflllahbous

"a; .DariniiiQns and'.RePuia't'orv-'RefGrences. All terms.usb^^ bu!.not;otbec^se 'de.nh.ed
?'^airhaya ihd'same-m"eanln'g.es:lh'os0l.terTns ih-ihe Pnvacy-end;Security Ruie-.'airipnded,
QfPm-tihie' tot re?flrehC0■|n.th0•v^greernenl. as-arnendeKl-to include this, Exhibit I. tp-.
[.a'^i^Ubn in .thb^Piiysby ehd'S'w^ Rule m6ari9-.ihB.iSection as in.effecl-or as
'•amehddld..

■'b: •Amei^me^r^.VCbvered Entity end Bu5itipss--As^iate agree-fp take'such acilon as Is-
."■hecessaryjo .em^.hdHhe-Agf^^^^^ ijni.e' tb'time ■as-l^-necps^^' fd.r Gpypred

■ Entify.to cprnply'wth'the;chahge^sJ.n"tha.Y;^uir'9fti0nls*pf-HiPAA, ihe.Prtva'cy.arid
'•S.ecuriiy Rul0.-.'8nd.-appiicebie.-f.^er3l.0.nd sta.te lavy.

■e ..Dflta Gwnefshlp.'Tlie Business Associate ecknowleclge.s that lV^has rio pvyn'ership.ngKts
With rdsj^ct'ldclheiPHIp/d.yide.d-by.p^ beha)/,bf.Cpve"red Enliiy.

Ihieroretallon. The pahles.egree.lhal.ariy/am^^ ihe-Agfeement-shall beresolved
Td permit Covered En%lopdmfily v;iihHIP/W^^^ Sedu.rlty Rule:

lEiKbiii '
-He^ rroirance'rb^'tdiijr Ad
•BtBJn»rAiiDd,ale'Aoro®friftni il 5-2019

■••- ••:eoeo-s:of.6- .Pi?l«>

■d/'- .

3)2014
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NewViompshiro WparWom-pfHooMh nnd Hurnan SorvlMs
• EiWbltl

■SetfreiifeVtf lnyl^'or^wn^ of Ihis-Ex.hlbil I or Ihe.applicalion the^f to any.invalidity s^H "o> "Tlw^^nHiL
wdWohs vsrtiich-can be.divenrefidct s^ihout Uw lrivaildjerrn or condrttoni to this end the.\orms 8nd«)ndiijbns;,of this'Exhibit l..aredcclar^^ •

Shall isurvlveiho termination of the Agfeerhenl.

Iht'WITNES'S WHEREpF. the parties her.etp have duty executed thts Exhibii l

•Q'^rtiTienfof Hcdjih B'nd'.HumanSyvt
TheSfete

FITtNHNH. Inc.,
Name of the C^nlra^ir'

LLdML
liveigharpre ofAuthprti^ pepreseDra'n•iSigrialufe^Aulhori^.ROpresen^^^

Wy<.
Name df.ABt^riied Representative •

Tille..6fAuthoi1ted Represen^vg

/.\°v
Date"'

RMiirffg^rd
:Nfimb'dlAMthprtoedRepreMnlaltye

President
■■nile.df A'uihorte^ Representative

Mafcti''l5."2019
Date

3/J014 Inau^ PtttabSty Act

6 01.0.^
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Now Hampshlfo bepartmont bf;Hba^ Human Services '
ExhIbU'J.

^Fptir|r>T|o><PF^flRO|HOTHF^r^^F^^^

MS OOO'-tfe-aNrtf^is wtlecl loathe FFATA reporting rooulremcnU. es.pi iw.oaie ui.y.c
In Bocbrt^^ Part-170 (Reporting Subaward end Ex(!PuU>^ompenM^^^^
DeSeht.o'fiHeallh and Hum^:-^rvic'es (QHHS) .rrjusi. report.^? foiling -nforTT«upo toj any
Hibi^rd wicbnuact.oword^aubjcct io-lhe,FFATA reporting reAU'fCT'.^Ot?/
1;. Name oferility .
2. Amounfof award
3l Funding.pge^ , . s. \. ' . - ^
H. ■ N/yCS pobe for contr^s.f C.FP^, number lor.grants
5". Program , .,
6. A^rdlUUe/besqip^eiof.lh.OfPU p'.t^®l^uncJmg acwn-
7. Upcabori'of
8.. Prif^'pi:cVplaM;br^rfo^^ . .
i:- Unl.ciue.lBehUfipi;'plUierpnb^ . .
10 ToiarMfn^nsation and narrics Of the top fiva execalives If: . .. ,ka,-

■ lO.-V- More 9V9W revenuos are from the Federal government, qnd .those
IevenueVBre;9reatei:th.an;S25M annuall^^^ v •• v •- • •i.- , iw» eer

•10;2. Cbmpensbtjon-lnformalton-is nofelready availaWe.lhrpugh repprbng lo ,lhe;SEC,

Prime Q^nl r^.pibnli-mus( sobrnilFFATA r;e.gulr.ed dala by the.end of the monlh. plus:30 day.S. In whfch
the'av^'rd or award ameribmehi-ls'/riade. . , .
The Con^apr idcrilifie-d I^^n i.S ql the General Provisions agrees lo
the-Federal Fuhding'Acb^ and Transparency Act, P.ubllc,
•and 2 CFR Part-i7b '(R6pbft}n^ Subaward and Executive Gompensabon lr)form.a1i9n)..prK}

Wen^fied in Se^ris UVend Vl^^t the.General Provls.ons

provide need.e.d Information as outlln^ ebove|tq . ■
■Deii^V^'o' Heaim-'^ Human Sdivfc^ comi^ vrilh all applicable provislons-.ol the Federal

•Gontrector Name: .fU-NHNH. In.c:

March ■TS:''2Q19'
Date 'NamerMaureen Beauf^a'rd"

"nfe President
I

J

J.- Ctrtihcatlon, Rae'irtlnfl ih? Fedct'tl FuftdlnpAdcbynlii^'And tr»mwfc^.Ac»'(PFATA)X6^
•••R^-Vdl2

Conffiaot Inil

Rail'3-.i 5-2019
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Now HamMhlre Dbp»Ttmenrof.H'<taW!! an? Seiylco?
Eihibit J

FORttA

/^.Itt^e.Coot^ctor Wentificd In Section i;3 of the GVneral ProvlilonS; rcertify.biat-the'i^^o#^^
betow: llsi^ig'uestofts:^

1- Th^-pinoRn.imh^rtpf.youfgfl'titvls: .'825360399 .

2  In youFbusiness-of.ofganlzaiibn^ p^jBcedlng-co'mplet^'risiBl year, (iia your profgantzalion.
■  ■ fecahf'e'tlJ'SO^percent.oi more of ybuf.annua|fl/«s (eyenuje in y,.S. federal wntr^. isubconlracts.

bans' ofents 8ub-gronlaVendfor'cbope/a0ve'8'g^"errt6hls;'Ond (2).S25.pOO.ppp oj: rnore tn-annual;gro«"'revenueeVorfi.O.SjedefBiLCOrtUacj».:Subflo:nlra^;ibafisr;orantoi^
cboperaitveagreementb?-

■ X . NO .YES

•3.

If llhfe answe/tq'A?'

ir'ific-answer to fll2'abdvft Is -Y^S. please answer me following:

Ooes-thebubJtf;haye:BCMssMo'!nforrnati^ abouVthe coHipensaUonpfihp.exew^ yt^r
buslhdssVr ofgariUaUon'through.p^^ teporte'filed und'eiiMcjtoh 13|a)\or'l5(d)p( the Si^rities
Exc)^>'Ad''of 'igai-OS U.S;C:7afn(a). 78b{d)) or 8eclioh.6l04.of the Internal Reyenue Cpde of
1966? r ' ■

NO YES

lf;the answer to.*,3'above is .YES,-.stop here

If me''ariswef;to\t>3:above:ls.Nd).- frfcase:answerthe foMowihg:

[A.- The hBrfie's endcornpcnsaildn of't^ five mdst highly corppensaiftd olficerBiin your .business; or
■prg'a'ntatloH ^

"Name:
r  . ,1 -

Ifjlame:.

■Name:,

Name:'-

Amount:;.

Amount;.

.Amount;.

Amount:..

•Amount

. ExMbA.J.-: QerOTicaUoA R»girdbg.ih« .F^r>l Fundlno ' Contrscior.lnUatin^
'A'cc6vplJbClyAf»dTfiMp«jVfKy';Aci'(FFATA^^ , x. .c.io^o
*  R®p«2Bf.2 Oatft 3-15tZ0i9
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New rtariipshlre Oepaflment of He'alOi and Human Services
Exhibiik

DHHS Infonnation Securi^ Requironien'ts.

A.- Oefihitio.rw''

■theibltoMng tefTn^ may^ the described meaning in th'is.documeni:
,1 'Bmach- means 'the loss :6f control.- ■,^mp/b.mlsa. .ynaulhoHz.ed-

onauihorUedvadqulsHion. unaulKoHzed-eccess, or- any •s.lmllar lemi W
■Bituailons- where 'persons other than eWWrUed;. users, .er^ fpr p^ SSnm-Iwo
SWhbrired^ Rurpo'se-haye..access .or potential .ai^ess
ihtofThatidn/ Whdlher: physical .or electronic. ^Jlh..r^8rd
Informatidnr^Brca'chr's have;lhe.sarri0. nieanlfi9 as the term. Breach in.sectipn
IW.46^6'f tlile.45;.Cc!.di^o^

d: -bomputec Securliy- Intidenf .shall', have-'.^e Mme me^rijhg-inclderinn seciion'-'Wro t2):ofNlST Publica^.n^.8pc^1,.^^mp^^^^^ ■'HandIif^:Gurde.,.'Natlonal insHtute.of Slandards end T^hnology: g:S. Department .
■  ■otCorn'mcrcev

3: iGorindontial irttomaUon"'or 'Conlldenllal Data' maaris all conndenlial Inlomatron
"' -by brie parly to the piher s.uch as all medical, health, finanaal. public

-assistance benefits^and personal Iriforrriallon- Including "without lirnHilion. Subslat^
';^use treaimenf Records. Case -Records; Protected Health Iriformation -and

■ Personally Iderilinable. lnlormation.

. Confidehlial.lriforrnatibn a.liso Includes any-snd'.all Infonnotion owped.or
the^Staie of'NH - 'creste'd; raceiyed from Dr i:)h'b.et:t.8lj of .Ihe pepedm.eh.t of Ha?.ith ai^ .
Human Services '(OHHS); or accessed \ri ilhe' cdur'se..bf .p^Hdrmlrig conlfe|tOT
sOrvlces -''bl wtif^' cpilecfion. disclosure.- pro'leclion. end dlSpp'sttion Is governed by
s'lile or-federal law;;br-f^ula.lion. this i.nfomwtion Includes;-bulls not llmite.d.to
Prbie-c'ted'Health Irifofmetidn (PHi). PdfSO.ijSI Information^(PI)..Rersonal Bqwal
Infofmatl.bh (PFl).-. Federal tax- Inlprrhaiipri (FH"!). ,^al Secunty. Numbers (SSN).
Reymenl'dard lndus.tfy'(RGl),-0nd orbtheVserisiliy'e'.and ■oonfiae.ntial Information.

4  'End Us'ef^- means eny person-or ■entity (e.;g., cpnlracVor. cq.nt.factbr's e'nip.loy^e.
bu^nesV-b's^o^l.atp.. sulj&rilractor. other- downstream .userjv.elc,) \lhal recew.es
OHHS baiaofbd.rivdl^ 1® accordance with the terrnsof this Gbntract.
■•.HipAA'.mp'^ni^hO,HealthInBurancb'Portabiliiy'ahd Accountability-Actof 1996:endlho.

•  re'gulatlbris promyiba^ ihereundor,.

:6. ■iricldeht• "fri6ans:ari :act-.that.' bo.t;enltdily yiplates. eh expllpil. or'lmpiled;security policy,
v^'ichihclude'i attbmpls (bi.iher ^lled or sixcossful) tb gajri unauthorized access to -a
■system or Its-daVa,- 'uriw^riied disnipt'ibn-or denialof sei^ice-.-the.-una.y^opzed use of -
•a"system for'tho processing:or 8torage..bf daia-ydnd'bhariges.to:-by^iem-h-afdware-,_
'.firiTi'ware- .br^^ftware'-characterisilc.s'i^lh itie.,pwner^s. krfowledge; Instruction, _qr
■rori-&rit.'lricideriis1naud>.the loss'of d^ta through theft or detce rnisplacemenl. loss •
■:or'hilspl'aw^erit' dpcum'enls. and mlsrouting of physical or eleclronrc

ys.'Lmi ui>d3tfl •ityosfiB CtnutK
OHHSi.tnUMTnalton^

Society R^Vornenb.

Co^rador inUAli

0,„'3jWe:
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New. Hampshlre. Depaitment of Health and Human Services;
■  Exhibil K ,

.pHHS Infdrmatl.on Security Requirerhenb

mail, 8l!;Qr which may have i.he potential to put .the .data at. rtsJ* of unaut.hqrized
•access, u'^. bij^psufe, mpdification.ordesiAJctjon:

-7 -Opeh Wlrele^ Netwrkr means any network prsMmentof ®
not <JesionaVed-by' .the Stele" of New HBmpshire.s Departme^ of In
Technology, or. del^ale as a'prdiected n.Stwo.rk
^appfovedi by moans " of>the State., to frensmlt)
rt-0twq:r^-and:nqt adequ^ secure ror;the transmission of .unencrypted PI. PFI.
PHVor.dqnriden.dal^^^^ data.

'8" 'Persofial Informalioh- (or "Pr) means Infprmatbn which can bq. used to 8ist.ingui?h
•dr trew ari IWividuars'idenUty-. aOch as-;ihelr.rtame,". social se.c.unty;numbef;.^rs,oMi
ir.forma5on:as..ci.enne^d W New Hampshire bfomotric^ords etc„
.aione.-or when combined wi.th" other pe.rv>n.a!..pr WenUjylng.lnfor^^^^ v^it^
■or linkable lo a-.speciric-ilndividual.-such ss.date.-and p.lace of biflh, molh.er'.s fhsjp.en
.name. etc.

...a 'P<\m Rule-'Shall mSan ihe Slandardj'lor Privacy o''  Ihfo^.attori-at 45,"C.-F.R, Parts 169 and 1W. promulgated under HlPA^.by the United
States-Oepa.^eolsof'Heaith and' Human .Services.-,

la rPfolecled Health-Iritama.tipn- (or •'PHI') hSs the Mme.nioamrig as provl^^^^
definilioh.cf^tP.rdifipi^^^ H'dalth Inforrnallon* in-.the HIPAA Pnyacy f^u.le 8145 G.F.R. §
i'6.d:'io3;" . ■ '

■11 -Security Ruie"'-6liall niean the-Securily "SiandanJs for'the.PKpie^^/Heaith- lr^ormatlon sl 45 C.F.R. Parti'6.4. SOb'part G;..Bhd ..amendmc.nla
thefelcT;

■12. 'Utisecufed Protected Health Jriformatioh'.means/Rrotocted Health Informatioh th,at.;is
■ not-'SGCurdd by a le'ch'hdtdgy standard, th^l- rer>d.8r.s .Protected H^llh InformaUon

unusable'. : unreadable, or 'iridedpherable. If unauihp.rlzed.
developed pr.'feridprsed bye-standards developing organlzplldn t.hat i.is accredited .by
ih0:)^edcan"^ Siandafdsinslilute.

I.. RESPONSIBILITIES OF pHHS AND THE CONTRAcfbR
A. Busih'e'sS'tJse arid.Disclosure,.of Confidential Information.-

■'1v TheiGbntractbrmust-.-hpt us&.dl^ maintain'onlransmii-lGonfidential lnf^^
" ;6x^fiKbs r0'aibhabi^ h;^"^ysaiv"aV but|ined..und0r this" Conlracl. Further; Conlfeclorv
feuding -but hot limUed'.to/.atriis direC.loi^; •o.fficbrs;..emRldy.ee.s "and agenlS; "^"St.noi
.use.;d%lose," felMblnVoVtfesmil PHI In "any rfianner lhat wo.uld constitule a .violation
olthe Pifecyehd.-S^urityRule.

■■2. The ^ntrecto.r 'must nbl disclose :ariy "Confiderilial Infonrialjon In respbris.e- to a;

•  F'iiiiulK CoftinjciwiofliaJs,y5-..u«,yri>..to,W!8 oHHltlSlto -■
fe"curliyfib<j"ulf""effl«'rt> r^,i3-15r20l9'.

"  • Poi>:i6i-8 ^
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fiew Hampsriire P.ep.a^^ oi HoalUi and Human Services
Exhibit k

,v

.pHH.S Infprmatron Security Requirements

reque^/lor-disaisufe basis-that,iV ls required py iew. ih res^hsa W
6ul>pi4na;-.fifc^-^^iHbu^^^ opportunity tp;
conwril or objeci'to'.lhedis^.wro..

'3 li DHMS nofe .ihe/eontraclor".that DHflS/Kas.-agre^ lo;^
•  irastftctlons-over and abov0vihose.uses:;or;di5^osures.pc phi••pUf8a8nt^tb■•ti^■Pr^vacy^eod^•Securi^ Rule: lhe.,qQnVeclof musri».:l)pund.5y w

;aMttoKai' must :not disclose. P»;il In violaUpn-of s.uch. add-l-onal.
•restiSStdhS;

(li; .ThevepntfaicHpr-^^^^^^ IHat.DHHS^^gata'or .derivatfve-mer? trom discl^ .to an .Erkl'
:-lJser.must!6nly fe .'us'ed'.pM^'u^^ terms(dfthis!^nlrqCt..

. 5. The'CMracloragrees pHHS; t^aia '.objiarned may-npt.bp used for^any..oiher.pur^»ses'•tha1"8re.noi indicate In tfiisJC^nti^tt.
6: The-:Ck)ntrBCtor:egfee5.-!p grant 8ccess:to::lhff.data to ihe.:aum^n^d. ie^re^h^ig

vpf DHH.S. fpr'!ihe purpose. .iSf Inspect.irigno <x)nfihn.corripliahc'e.y^th^lhe;iefrn.s p!-,ll:i'9
,6;

"C^nirartl

li. METWObS.QF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

T. /.Appticitiqri. ;-En'crypU6n; If ".End i.tJsef Isr .transmltVri^ QHH.S ■ daJ^'
.(^nfidenijalDatia.'betv^^^^ ihp''e6him^ddr;altesls.lhp:appticaU0.n;^
•bberi' [evaluated ,6y^ a lexpe.rt'khowledgeBble, in cj^er secudjy-and. .that said
■■appIiMtiori:8(eb"c^plion<^^^^ internet

■'2. ;CdmpW01sks:and Porta.ble^Slbrage Devices'., ■ End User may not^se com^er^^ska
■,or ^.rtpbje.atdrageid^ es'-a thumb'dffveVBS'e.,method of-lrensmitUng DHHS
•deta.' ^

-y Encrypted imalt End-User fn'By-'pnly:.empl6y';€:mail l9,;t'!?.n's^ii,,"■ prnaii I8^encn;;died--snd beihg-'-seril to^and/b'eing'.reGelved-byia.mal.l addre.si5e,s of
persdh^^aJthbrired-y irifdr^atlpn. . '

■4' Encrypted'Web'S'lte. If Ehd-'.Us'e.r ts/empipVihg '.the Web to .transmit Confldehti'at
oeiajlhe secure-ecrtiket-ia.yersTsSL) mus(;.be. Ltsed arid Ihe'.'web.site muBt be.
secure'! [^Spencn^pts'd'ate.iransmltt via-a.Web site-.

5  File Hb3tin9 'Servites.''alsd'known'a'a File'.Sharing.SiteS; End User rnay ■noi^use-fiie.■  .ho8.tinl"(A0iyi^^^^^^ such .(as; .Drbpbbx or 'iSoogle Cloud Storage; .to '.transmit,
fcdriflde'nii'al data,!

6'. feVou"hd",Maii'!Seo'ii^! E.hd;U>er inay:.b.nly'1ran^ Ppta vja cerf/Z/ed-ground
mail within .the.conlinenrai, U:;S!.-. ehd when (sent to. a'named Individual.

7 Laptops- iend' PDA.. If "End ^Oser- ik erhployl'hg .porlebie ■dew.c.e.s- Ib'- 'trBhs^^
c'bniib'dritiai' DbVrsaidid must'ibe encrypted and passwbrd.rprotectep..

0. Open Wireless'Netwotksv End.User'may not.-lVansmil Cpnfidenlidl Data via en ppen

V5.^U)a.upd8ic.iapwitf
D>WS

^curftyW^iAwn^ . .. 3:.45.2b'i9
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-.wireless, hetwbric-. End fJser musl employ, a virtual private, netwo'rtt "(VPN); when
remolW'fr^ri^)^no..yia'fl". op'®" wlreles.shetwprti:.

9 Remoto User Communlcailon: If End User Is epplQyl.ng
"■ fecce'ss or transmit:.ConndenUal Data,, a- virtual .pnvaie.

'  Ins^Jle^d ^'n Jie; Erid'.Ws mobile deylce{s) or laptop frbm vvbjch infomnetion^ii bh.ifShsmit)^ or faoce
■10. SSH Rle.Transfer Protocol (5:ftP). alsp:'ko;own;d5. S;^End User ls .employing .en ,SFTP to transmit .Confidential qai?, ^nd User w«)

SlrtibtoVe: theif^older--arid access privileges 'to^preye.nt inappWf^ale•inforrriaiion.. 'SFfp-folders/'an^^ fp/.transmitting Confidential Data vjll
^be coded for.24-hOuFauio^eIe.tipn '^^ (i^ei'.Cp'nfidenllal Data will be-deleted every 24
hours).

.11 Wireless D.eylces. if-'End User Is tiansmliUng .(>)nfid"eriiial Data via wireless deytees; all
idata-rriu'st bb.,encfypl^-tO prpVenl Inappropriate disclosure dl'lnfoimatlon.

III. .RETENTION ANpjDISppSmON OF IDENTIFIABLE.RECORDS
■The-ContrBclor WH only retain the dala and any derlvatfvo bf lhe:data.fpr i^.dure.tlon-oMhis
'C^riirecl Afterkuch iime.'thO Coritraclor will have 30-.days to des^.oy tt^
■denyaiiye in.wl^te^^^^ ynie'ss. ■dlhefwise required, by law or..pefmm.ed
"under thisitbnl/a'cl. to. this ertd. :the partie.s..must:

•A'i 'Releriti.ori

i.. The •.Cofiwaor pgfeeVII-will not slofe. Icansfer or process .dala coUMl^ in
■  connedlbn wilh the-iservlces rendeeed undprnfilf/Conlraql rQuts de ol .Ihe Unlled

States, this phyfeiwl ipcation r^ulremeriishali a.l.so^ In tbfe lmpl.emema.lio
cloud.comptiling. cloud service dr.clpu'd storage c;apabiHii.ds'. dVid IrKjudes ba.cXup
•^ata-arid •

■■2; The ■epritfactOf;:'egre0S..tp, ensorf-proper.*swurity fporiitbrin9,.capat)lilties .are in
place'^io deject potehiibi^rsecdrily everiliithat^ca.n Irnpacl .State-of NH systems
•and/oVbepdfimdnt'cdnlja.e.nliai in^^^ provided systems.

■■3' the ■■Cdnlraclor egrees.,to prbvlde.-'.secUfiiy a.i^'reneM'arid-odu^^ End
-.Users'ln .supRb.rl.ofprolectirig O.epertrrienV'cp.nfidenlial Infdrtna.tl.dn.

'4: theCbnlrBCldr-^rees to. retain,ell el^ronip-aod.hard..w Confidential Data.•ln-8 secure'locaiion and identified in se^ldn-IV..;A.2.
;5. The" Contractor, agrees Confidential Oats ^ored. lri e-.Cioyd must in d

:FedRAMP/Hit.EeR co.mplianl' solution .and .comply with all applicaf^le statutes, ana^
.rMulalidris regirdlrig the privacy end isecyrity. • Ail servers and .device^ must have"correnily-s'upporte'd'arid riarde.n'ed ope.rstirig-.systerns, the Idtesl anll.-vlral. ant»-
•hacker eri|p'sparri.;anli.sp)^re.:- and";8nti:malwa^ Th"0-envl.fonmenl. as a

•  •-wi.. « F*«wiK Convi<aa» inltW*

ri,b,.3^15-20.19
P#B#4 0f» -•••



OoeuSigA Envtlopc'lO: 20SIP7994CA9^205^7C-62EA8C8B26S0

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibil.k

OHHS Information Security Requirements

•whole, rriusthe,ve aggriBM^ iniAJSion-d.etecllon'ar^ firewall prolection;

.-6'; n'Ke-.Cdfi'trBdbr"eQfe.es to end ensyres- Hs toompI«0''cpoper8Uon: swith the Slale.'s
'GHIef infp'nrnatlpn Officiihn ihe. detain'of any security vulnerability Of the hosUng
ihfraslrwture'..- . ' .

B. -pis^dtidn:

f. If the" pdritracfor will mainiairf any'Confidential Information oh lls.syslems (or. Its-
•Jsuth^h^dbr-sys .Gbritredtpr Wll maintain a documented process-.for.
.securely-disposing of-such data upon|r^u0Sl or" cpniracj termination; .and .will

•  .obtain .written cefiificailoh" for any Stat^ljf :New. Harrip^ .destmyed' by the-
i'Contractor.-.or.any.su^niia.ctors as a part of brigping. e'rrie^bn'cy/.a ^'^stef
•recovery'operelibhS'. When" ho lof>g"0r In u^.-. ele^o.nip, mt^lajCOhtainin^
New Hamp.ahire.':data-8hall be rendered "unrecoverable via B-.secure:wij» prpgrem
•In a^rdani^ -'v^ih industry-aaepted.standards for secure-deletion and-media-
sanll&lpnf 6/ physically'.dpslroi^ng the-;, media (for .-exarnple.-
degby^ing) as'-des^bed In fiilST Spc'cial Publication SOO*^; Rev 1..-Guidelines*
■for 'Media Saiyt.t^'libn, NaiionaMnstrtuie ofStendards end" Te^r^togy, U. S.
department offl^rnmerce. The Gbnlractpr-wfli '^ocurheni and. .certify .In" wtlng-.'al
ll^.e of "the da'ta' desirOctlon. arid wtl) pfo.vide wriUen ceruflcatlpn .to Ihe Department
•.uRQh .raqyesl.- tiie, written ••.ce.rtiricalldri will ."irtclyde, ell details-necessary rto
•dempf)'sb;8't0;'daia has bpen -pfoporly destroyed. .8fid.validaiedt,Wher0..dppllM
regulMory and pVofessiohal -stand requlferhents s^ll be-'jp.lntlyevaiuatad-j^HHb-Staleand C.ontractpf prx)r-to-de$tructlon."

.2.: "UhlBSS :oth0rv^seV"spec^^ "wllhln .thir^ (Opj days of the terrnlnatlon of. this
ConTfacltCOh.ireblbV-'agree^^ all ha"rd-cbpics";pf Gonfide.nllal D.ala usl.rig a
secure-.m8lh6<j.'6ijch as: ̂ redding..

■3; Unless-iolherwisOf.apecJfied; .wlifiln -thirty ('50) d'ays of 'the.;!6nrnjftailbft of -this
Gp"nlr8ci,.Cpntraplpr-.0gre'es lo Op.mpletcly des.troy-all eiectrbnic Cdnfideriilal"Dale

' by'.rhBans;pf;data.!Bfa"suf€;'al.soknpym-.0S-."secure-da . .

iV; .^PRbtEDURE.? FOR SECURITY

A. ■•Contrador-agrees.lo-:'safegMard the DHHS...b.at"a received under ihls Contract, and.eny
'd.eilyb'ltyd.dat'a 6r/il8.s..;asTollows:

'l. The Cbntr^ctbf" wlf mairi.tain -pro'per sbcunly .cor>lr,pls; to p;io!ecl Department
.conrideniiaiiinlbrmaUpn coilecibd. pr^ess^,- mariaged, and/b/ |t6red,in',me.:dellv0fy
•bf oonlractedvservices-. •

,2: The' 'Gbrilreclor will maihi'ain pbi.lcies' .end -p'rbce.dures -to protect Oepailfneht
Hc»ri'fideritl.8.rtn[bhn ih'e Ihformalipn lirecyc.le.^vyhere .applicable, (frorh
;.6lneaiion. ^n^orrhaiton, use.->slor8ga and secure, deslructlbrij regardless- pf the
me)ilia";u5edl6"8iore.,th'e.'d8t8 (i.e.. tape, di.sk; ;paper. etc.).

w I iflyM-lft. . Eirt^ K- CoilriicJiy I
■  — OHHSbite^Oon
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3  -'The ^Cbfiiract'or" wtn maintain epprppflate /aulhcriUcatTpn ei^ ;"apces?
transmll. or.store Dep3rtmefil-confidenllaUnforrn,ation

v!^e;S.:8pp.licSbIe:

4. tho 'Gbplraaor wjH ensurp.prpper -spcufity •mPriitonnfl capabilities are,;in plac^ ib\
delect-pbianiial'tseburity levent's- if»n ^impact Sjate'-of NH ;syslems and/or
bep8fbiheril.conndof^8nrifofmaUbh:fpf:<onifpctor-pf^yidod;:8^

5.. ■The; Ck)ntractor;wljl provide regular security.awarencM^
ln;su^ pfprolecting Dispartmerit-cdnridenilal Irifprfnalion,

6  If the eontractb"r..wlil b0':sutw:onifacting any .core- funCtioris ther.engagjrrtenl.Suppbrtl"fyW¥crvrces"for-Sl0le'bf NoW'Haff>pshire;Mh6:'.G^ntrector:.vv1ll rnainlpin a
.bfMram /of 'Sn'"Vnterttal" process pr- processes- that /dannas spfe^fic sbcurtty

j  icxwciaUbn'si'aW rnoriilpring ppmpllanc^..tp setunty repuj/ements-lhal -el a rnmimum
■maich IhdSafSltRe^&rilEBtSpjr-. Including breach npilf^tipn fepulremanls..-

•7: TTie tontractof wiil worit.;Wl'Ui tfie"; pe^rimenl to slg'o ar^ comply wih alI.8RplIc^blB
' ■ 'Siele:-©? f^ew Hampshl're^and DOpartVneni sy^lem •access ahdVaOlhprizaiipn policies

lai^'Vpfboa'durds; syslOms aeccss' fpirn'^- and qompuler use- agreements-aS. p;^^^
oblalrtinj^/arid-rnarnlalni/^^^^ lo airiiy Depait^nl,systafp(sj.;Agre6"^6pls will be
."cpmpted^ aqpll^ble subrcpntreclora prior lo
JsystViT! access-.bOingputhonzey'.

iB:" I'f iho'p'opartmeht-.j^eterTninea ihe'Gioht^octf:^ Is a Buslnes^'Assaclalepursuanl to.45
CRR^O^VdJ. wil p'xbi^.e'a HIPM;;Buslnes3; Assoclale/Agreeme
|B^j\\ytlh"the"- ije^ is .mainidih!ng,.cpmpliance wilh -the
.'agreemenl'

-V. fhe-=Gonlractor will vror^ wlih die'.poparbheril at j^ repuesVlg- cbrnp!ete;>^/;Sy5te/n ■
■  Managerrient/S.uryey. 'the i purpose, .of fhe'^survey''is .lb oriafi!e!^lhe Dd(Mrtme.nl:and.

■^ri^ipi- W mbnridr'.fprarTiy -chaqges^^^^ vulnerabllitie's lhat .rnay
'oVbV-ihe .engisgemenl.- the suh/ey vwl! be completed

•8^riual^'y.oran•aii■ema^^Urne^■f^am;e■:^^^^
• Ihe-'Conlractor. or.ihe' departOie'nt-iri'ay-^u.es^^ W.ip^pleled the- .
.Scope.oi theer^agemenl.tJelween the Departmenl'and.lhe"-G6htf{iclor..changes.

lO.i^he^ht^actbr will nbi. store., knowingly ,br unknowingly, any N6w .H^.mps^ire
or^department daia offsHore-i*- .ou^sldeHh? b'oundbd^ .Stales-^u.nj.e^.
prior-.-egress written consenj- Is •obtained frdm- .thg Infoirn^tiOh S.ec.unty. Office
led.ders.hip'niemt)er-wliHln the G)epaftrrienl.,.

11. .Data' Secu.n> Brea^. Liability. In the:e.vent of'ariV" sec.udiy'b.reacti Contr.ado;r sh;g]l
makorffe.Hbrts.^.lb^l^ MusM'.pT^'.ihe. breach, pfortiplty^ take measures to"
pteyenl fOtbry'brepcKiand,-^ loss fgsultlhg'from- the. prpach.
thp Sleip.ehSi'rewv.ef fern ,th;e-Qbbli^^br'a.ll;c6slS;pf.rasppnM^

05;iii,K«tolbtdtWte E^hfbttV . CcrtfPClorWUato.
,0HKS IftloffiMJlion
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.the breach. Ih'cludlhg'bul nol limiied lo; creOU nwriHorii^ services, mailirig-.costa.an'd
ciftia Bs^at^.wilh v^b^ite. end telephone pall, center services necessary due to

..the breach;-

iiLGorilrecto'r niust.. comply" Wth all appllca.ble stelules "erfd repwikUonsTeoerdirig the .
privacy -end securlty' .of Confiderrlial lhf(prmDiib.n, ,e,nd. must. In {all .other r^ppcls
malnielp" tihe prlvecy end security df PI e^ PRI el b level end ̂ pe.ilhal Is horlDM/
than the'level arxJ scope-of requiremenis eppllcible^b f.^erel ff̂ ei^es. Ihcludihg;
bbl>rwt iimlted to.•pro'^slons bf the Privacy Act.of 1974 (5.!J.S.C,v§"5520), pHHS
PriVafcy Ad'Regulations'{45 C.'F.R; §5bj. HIPAA" Privacy and Se^rity Rul'es-(45,
pptR: .parts'i6p;0.nd/lW)-ffi^^^ p.roiactj.ons (or.indivldually identifiable health
jHfbrm'aiion'-end as^applica.ble.un^^^ /

ia.GonVBdbragrees'^o'e?^ maifil^iri a'pfiropriate admlnistrativc.-le and
physic8l-.88fegu'ardS'"'lo .protect" the. of ihb"" Confib^eintiial Data end to-,
prevent ..unaiAhorized' use or ecie'ss to- ii.,.The-.8afegu.ard.8 mus^^ leypl-end

oi secuHly that is nol less than the ieyei end spope of s.wrlty- requiremane-
;eSi£!bli8.h"ed by the Slate of New Hampshire.■Department of InfoimaliOhJechnoldgy.
•Refb""r to Vertdbf Re'spurce's/Pnicurernent 8l:https://www.nh.90v/bbi.i/yend6r/ln.d
•Tor 'the: Department .of Ih'fbrmatibn Tochnblogy fwlicies; iQUl.delines. .siandards.- and
•prbcurerhent Information relating to vendors.

14:;Cb;h.lre;ctpr 'agre.e^s" Ip- rnaintain a documented bre'ath" hotification lai^ Inpideht
.rbsppnse' proPess-;' The .Cpnlractor win riotify. the -State s Prlyg'cy .Officer jen.d,_lhe
^State's S'efeurity "bfnce'r ;of" any" wcurity -briMch Imrncd.iptb.ly. aX; lhe.prnaii-;addr?.s"ses
.p.rovfded In •^clfon VI. .this Includes a cohfidenUal .'Info.rma.iloh brea^,.'cj^'i?utd<;,6e^uiity''lrl9l.deri.i;..!o"r<suspected breach which pff'ecis 6r"lnciudeV8ny Slatp-pf "New
•Ham(i'5'hire'.si4^^^^ to lhe;Sl8le of New.Hampshire-hetWorK.

'•iS.VQPhlfB^pr "must restrfPl ••'access- to the* Confidential Data obtained Ur)de.r this.
" " ;Gon(ract ".to onty""..ihbi5.a need such D.HHS Data to-

.-pertbrm-Otelrptfidar dutiasin.conh^^^ v^.lh pprp'bsesldenlifi'ed Irt'-lhi.s GpoU eqt-.
\  . . 1 - 4 *•-1„6.'fh0;pontr8Clor musfensuro lhal.ail End Users;

a. -TOmply .with.- such -safeguards a.s referenced "in .-Se'^.qn lV -A. "•above.
I^piarpented ̂ to prbtect -Cohfldenlial InfbrmaUbn .thai" "is "furnished by DHHS
under-'u^.is "Contract from loss, .theft or inadyerterif disci.osurc.

b.: safeguard tHisilnfo.rmation el all llmesi
c. en'sure/.lHaf.laptbps 0nd olhe.r.-electronic' devicesi/med'ia-cbhtaining- PHI. PI. or

PFIa.i8\Gricirypted.5h"d..p8SSv^rd'pre
b:. ^Kd,G'rnalis-..S5nla"ihin9 -Conlidehtl3^ infbrrnadon only If encryplad end ^Ing

sent to ,8rid..l^lr^ received by erfiaii -add.re'isej of .perjoris authorized lb
re.ce.lve ,s"uc,h' Iriforrh'alion,

•V5.--USI update'icyoy.is. '.M'wk . .C6nn0bt\rm9
OKHS'inldnnalido

-1^
SoairttyfJequJre^nli .v., «s ic o'niQ

" P®g9-,7-er.S •
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e... limil'disclosure ;bf the ̂ nfideniia.l Informaiiqn to ihs.-exteni perrriiHed by lew..
ConridenUal mfdrrtaUbn ^ecetyed under this Contract -and Indh/Wually
id'eniinable-iiata'dbrWed frQm'DHHS-pat9..'irhust be stored In an area thai Is
physically arid techr^iogicajiy-secufe. from ec^ss-by una^^'rt^^ P^.rwns
dudno duty, hours as Weil as .non-duty t^.urs CaJg.. cibor locks. ,<ard keys'
biom'eiir^ Identiriers', etc.).

g. dnly euthprtzed. End Users may transmit the ̂ hfldantlal Dati.lnCtUdii^' ariy
.derivative files' cphtainlng personaUy IdbntifiaWe lhfgrtnaUon;..8nd "In all-cases.
,such ^ata'^usi-.be'.€hcr^lod In tr8ns,ll!-=.?t-resl-. or wtten.
stored ohvpo'rtabl.e rtjedia-as f'equlred In

h: In ail oiher ■insiancOs •Cdrifidenti'al O'ata' fhusl. be malniein^. used :0nddisctosed .uslhg aqprojw.iete .sat^uard^". 'as deterrhiriejd by -Ja rwK-based
.assessrhent qf'.tha.drcumslances-lnvoiyec):

.1. undgtstand th'at thelr- psor credentials (user-name arid 'pass^rd) m^'t hbt.^'
•shdfcjd v^th-anypne.- End..Users will keep.their .credential Inforrnallon secure...
T.HisiyRplteVlo' credenila.ls .usedio'^eccess^ihe "site directly Ofindlrectly Ihrough
■a third pa'i^'spplIc'aUon.

•Cprilfdctpr fe re"spdnsible'"fbf oversight end ^compIiarvM of their. End .Users. p.HHS.
rre'^fypbfthe- right' [b;'^,nduc{ onsite ••InspccU'dhs; to .rnonllpr •compliance with thlis:
fGS:),n■tr8^^Jnclud^ri"g■ lhe.:P'rivacy:8nd securi'ty rdquire'rhertl'^ Iri ■bpr.elr)....HIP^.;.-,
••arid olhdr'apRli.cable" ia\^ e.nii Farteral regulalidhs.unUI 5uch.tlme;the:pd.hfi.d8hlial C)a,la\
Ms.^ispoSjBddf In 'a'cwrpancewilh Ihls Gqnt/act.

V. LQS.S REPORTING

The; Cp.ntractor rrius.l-nolify- the • Staieis. Priyaqy OfTice'r -aiW .'j^.cOrity Ofncer -of any
Security .Incidonti end. 6re'acrie.s" Imrh'edVatelyi at-'lhe 'email 'addresses.'provided .In

,Seid.ilqn:Vi.

th'^:Cbhlractbr mu.5i; furlhe'r'handle, and r.epprt,-Incidents and Bre"aches-ihvolvinQ.PHrin
ebdbr'dari^ vrilh ^the''agencyB'.dpcumerited Handlirig.'ar^ -Breach No.tincation
procedures and in 8ccpfdah(» 42 .C.F;R. §§ 431.3.0,0 -'SPS. ih'.BpdJlipn to. end
•nbtwil.hst8ndihg,<:onlre^6r;s:9orh with all-eppllMble bbllg'alions-and-procedure's.
■'Cbntracto.f-s-procedure's rn.ust.elso'ed.dreiss KbW iherCpntreclor wili:
i.' Idenljfy.lnclderiis.:
2' 'beiermine.lf personally lderiiifiable^lnfbnhalipn Is Invoked Iri Incidents;-.
.3. Re'p'ort suspoctedfor.confimted Inciderils es'required1n"thls:^xhlb)i;4>i.P-37:'

•4.- I.dentlfy'-iand cp'nv'erie-a.^cp.re response group-to delefmlne'the^isk l.e.VeLof .Incidents
end detenriirie'.risk-ba'sVd responses .(o' lr>cldenls;-end

V5;LMlmd«Ol0WWl8- .£«««!<.' .Conin>dorlfW*b.
OHMS hbri^tlOrt.

"SoWKty RoquW^ ..-a.-ic^niQ
■  PiW'Sol.S" •DaiBi.'>-'>4U.'V
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Vi.

5. Dcte.rfTiii7e/wfielher-BjreaUV If m. .identify appropriate
Bf(&ai:h timing/ ;^;htenis';ff6m arnopg different
opiionW, arid cp'sfa/ 0'$$ptlet9d!'vrilh .jha Breach hdtic© 'es- well ;ai any mitig'ati.oo
meaibfei

lr>dde.ritfl..'and/of.'^roaches^thal..implicate PI must be addressed: end. ropofted. -as- -
afipliMWe.'lh 8'cwrda.r^.>^|h"NH RSA;35^.C:yo'.

1R£RS0]N§-to; epHTACT

A, DHHS P'rivacyCpffiw^i^

B: .brtHSV$ecuriiy:0tficer.
■pHHSinform8tlbriSecurityQfflce'@dhhs.nh;90v

VS: Leil.vv^iM;i,CKI«16. cjtr&iK
OHHS'l/iWro^

Secur^ R^uliombf^!

Contr^w uyiials-

Da'to •3-1^2019


